DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 397 965 PS 024 379

TITLE Directory of Early Childhood Care and Education

Organizations in the Arab States.

INSTITUTION United Nations Educational, Scientific, and Cultural

Organization, Paris (France).

PUB DATE 95 NOTE 147p.

PUB TYPE Reference Materials - Directories/Catalogs (132) --

Tests/Evaluation Instruments (160)

EDRS PRICE MF01/PC06 Plus Postage.

DESCRIPTORS Child Advocacy; *Community Programs; *Day Care;

Developed Nations; Developing Nations; *Early Childhood Education; *Family Programs; Foreign Countries; Government Role; Infants; Information Centers; *Organizations (Groups); Preschool Children;

Teacher Education Programs; Well Being

IDENTIFIERS *Arab States; UNESCO; United Nations Convention on

Rights of the Child

ABSTRACT

The care and education of children is a primary task of all societies, and the role of parents, families, and communities is essential in this process. This directory describes the major activities of 64 non-governmental and governmental organizations, based on 12 Arab countries (Algeria, Djibouti, Egypt, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Mauritania, Morocco, Sudan, Syria, Tunisia, and Yemen), involved in early childhood care and education. Pertinent data on these organizations' young child, family, and community programs and their information activities is included. The directory is intended for professionals working with and for children, to facilitate communication and information sharing in order to improve the situation of children. Directory information was compiled through a questionnaire sent to 240 organizations in Arab states. A sample questionnaire is included with the directory to encourage users to update the information provided. Two articles offer an overview of the situation of children and their family environment in the Arab states and an analysis of the information collected in the directory. Statistical tables then present an overview of basic social and economic statistics by country, directly concerning the 0-5 year age group. Profiles are arranged alphabetically by country and official organization name and include the following: (1) identification and contact information; (2) aims, type, and countries of actions of the organization; (3) cooperation/partnership activities; (4) major activities in the young child, family, and community programs; (5) services and information activities offered. Lists of potential funders of early childhood activities and information sources on early childhood issues are included. Five indices facilitate information retrieval. Included in the annexes are the main provisions of the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child. A form for evaluating the directory is included. (KDFB)



EARLY CHILDHOOD COCARE SEDUCATION

Paris de la Carrente de la Carrente

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Office of Educational Research and Improvement
EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION
CENTER (ERIC)

- This document has been reproduced as received from the person or organization originating it
- Minor changes have been made to improve reproduction quality
- Points of view or opinions stated in this document do not necessarily represent official OERI position or policy



PS 024379

BEST COPY AVAILABLE

THE PARTY OF THE P

•

PERMISSION TO REPRODUCE AND DISSEMINATE THIS MATERIAL HAS BEEN GRANTED BY

Bernard

TO THE EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES

Directory of Early Childhood Care and Education Organizations in the Arab States



Directory of Early Childhood Care and Education Organizations in the Arab States

First edition 1995

UNESCO



Authors are responsible for the zhoice and presentation of facts contained in their articles and for the opinions expressed therein, which are not necessarily those of UNESCO and do not commit the Organization.

The designations employed and the presentation of the material in this publication do not imply the expression of any opinion whatsoever on the part of UNESCO concerning the legal status of any country, territory, city or area, or of its authorities, or concerning the delimitation of its frontiers or boundaries.

Published in 1995 by the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization 7 Place de Fontenoy, 75352 Paris 07 SP, France



Foreword

4

As today's children are the citizens of tomorrow's world, their survival, protection and development is the prerequisite for the future of humanity. Empowerment of the younger generation with knowledge and resources to meet their basic human needs and to grow to their full potential should be a primary goal of national development. As their individual development and social contribution will shape the future of the world, investment in children's health, nutrition and education is the foundation for national development.

(Plan of Action of the 1990 World Summit for Children)

All nations are responsible for their children, and for the welfare of those who contribute, directly or indirectly, to the child's development and environment. The care and education of children is a primary task of all societies, and the role of parents, families and communities is essential in this process. Early childhood programmes actively seek out and build on existing inherent strengths in families and communities, as well as responding to their diverse needs.

A young child's development does not occur in isolation. It is strongly affected by its family and community, which continue to influence the child's later learning achievement in terms of enrolment, progress and performance in school. The care and education (including health, nutrition, attention and stimulation) a young child receives from birth depends very much upon the parents, family and community. This depends not only on availability and on the abilities of parents and caregivers, but also on access to services that can help the child and support parents in their role and function of parenting.

Many governments have started to raise their targets substantially for early childhood if all children are to be helped. Children's needs do not have to be met exclusively by formal government funded programmes. Many countries with limited national resources have been successful in forming alliances among Ministries of Education, Health and Social Welfare or with local government, NGOs, private enterprises and local communities, in order to set up successful, low-cost early childhood programmes.

As illustrated in this publication, early childhood programmes are provided in a variety of institutions and organizational settings, such as preschools, kindergartens, nurseries, day care centres, or play groups. These programmes are organized by various Ministries and agencies concerned with the education, development, care and welfare of young children, by non-governmental institutions (such as NGOs, religious groups, women's associations or universities), as well as by parent and community groups. These various organizations direct their early childhood interventions towards all aspects of the child's environment parents, families, communities, as well as professionals, paraprofessionals and decision-makers who intervene in the child's life.

We trust that the information made available in the present *Directory* will facilitate contacts among institutions and individuals working in the field of early childhood and convince them of the convergence of their interests and the need for concerted efforts to ensure a fair start for children.



Table of Contents

Foreword

List of Organizations by Country	9
Overview	
UNESCO Activities in Early Childhood	13
The Directory of Early Childhood Care and Education Organizations in the Arab Sta	tes 16
Articles	
Early Childhood Care and Education in the Arab States: survey findings	21
Early Childhood in the Arab States: Challenges and Opportunities	27
Equivalences of Descriptors Used in the Profiles (English/French/Spanish)	35
Profiles of Organizations by Country	
Algeria	47
Djibouti	49
Egypt	51
Jordan	58
Kuwait	65
Lebanon	68 71
Mauritania Morocco	71
Sudan	73 74
Syrian Arab Republic	78
Tunisia	80
Yemen	90
Information Lists / Bibliography	
UNESCO National Commissions in the Arab States	93
United Nations Information Centres in the Arab States	95
Organizations/agencies involved in social and economic development in the Arab Star	
Selected publications on early childhood care and education	109
Indexes	
Country Reference Codes	124
Alphabetical List of Organizations	125
Organizations' Acronym Index	129
Type of Actions Index	131
Focus of Programmes Index	133
Index of Services provided	135 137
Geographical Coverage Index	137
Annexes The Convention on the Rights of the Child	143
Statistical tables: explanatory note	14.5
	loose-leaf



List of Organizations by Country

ALGERIA

ASSOCIATION ALGERIENNE ENFANCE ET FAMILLES D'ACCUEIL BENEVOLE	(DZ001)
UNION POUR LA DEFENCE ET LA PROTECTION DES DEFFICIFNTS MENTAUX DE LA WALAYA DE TLEMCEN	(DZ002)
DJIBOUTI	
ASSOCIATION MERE ET ENFANT.	(DJ003)
ECOLE MATERNELLE LA FARANDOLE	(DJ004)
ECOLE MATERNELLE LA NATIVITE	(DJ005)
UNION NATIONALE DES FEMMES DE DJIBOUTI	(DJ006)
Едүрт	
ARAB COUNCIL FOR CHILDHOOD AND DEVELOPMENT	(EG007)
ASSUIT DISABLED CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION	(EG008)
LES CHIFFONIERS DU CAIRE	(EG009)
CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL	(EG010)
DEPARTMENT OF CHILD EDUCATION.	(EG011)
EGYPTIAN FERTILITY CARE SOCIETY	(EG012)
EGYPTIAN SAVE THE CHILDREN	(EG013)
FACULTY OF SOCIAL WORK	(E.G()14)
INSTITUTE OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS - MIDDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRICA	(EG015)
INSTITUTE OF POST-GRADUATE CHILDHOOD STUDIES.	(EG016)
SOCIAL RESEARCH CENTER	(EG017
JORDAN	
GENERAL UNION OF VOLUNTARY SOCIETIES	(JO018)
HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION	(JO019)
INSTITUTE FOR CHILD HEALTH AND DEVEL OPMENT / NOOR AL HUSSEIN FOUNDATION	(JQ()20)
MINISTRY OF EDUCATION	(JQ021)
MINISTRY OF SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT	(10022)



QUALITY OF LIFE PROJECT	(JO023)
QUEEN ALJA JORDAN SOCIAL WELFARE FUND	(JO024)
SOS CHILDREN'S VILLAGES - JORDAN	(JO(125)
UNITED NATIONS CHILDREN'S FUND - JORDAN	(10026)
KUWAIT	
CENTER FOR CHILD EVALUATION AND TEACHING	(KW027)
DEPARTMENT OF SPECIAL EDUCATION SCHOOLS	(KW028)
KUWAIT SOCIETY FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF ARAB CHILDREN	(KW029)
LEBANON	
ASSOCIATION LIBANAISE DES VILLAGES D'ENFANTS SOS	(LB030)
GHASSAN KANAFANI CULTURAL FOUNDATION	(LB031)
INSTITUTE FOR WOMEN'S STUDIES IN THE ARAB WORLD	(LB032)
LEBANESE ORGANIZATION FOR THE LEBANESE CHILD	(LB033)
Mauritania	
PROJET ENFANTS MIGRANTS DES KEBBA	(MR034)
WORLD VISION MAURITANIA	(MR035)
Morocco	
ALLIANCE DE TRAVAIL DANS LA FORMATION ET L'ACTION POUR L'ENFA	ANCE(MA036)
GROUPE KORANIC PRESCHOOLS	
SUDAN	
AHFAD PRESCHOOL CENTRE	(.SD038)
MINISTRY OF SOCIAL WELFARE AND DEVELOPMENT.	
PRESCHOOL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT	(SD040)
PRIMARY HEALTH CARE AND RURAL HEALTH CENTRE	(SD041)
SOS CHILDREN'S VILLAGE SUDAN	(SD()42)
SUDAN FAMILY PLANNING ASSOCIATION	(SD043)



SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC

ASSOCIATION ARABE SYRIENNE DES VILLAGES D'ENFANTS SOS	(SY044)
SYRIAN FAMILY PLANNING ASSOCIATION	(SY045)
Tunisia	
ASSOCIATION D'AIDE A L'ENFANCE	(T.N046)
ASSOCIATION DE SAUVEGARDE DES HANDICAPES MOTEURS DE SFAX	(TN047)
ASSOCIATION LA VOIX DE L'ENFANT	(T.N048)
ASSOCIATION MEDICO-PSYCHOTHERAPIQUE INFANTILE IBNOU SINA	(TN049)
ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE D'AIDE AUX SOURDS	(TN050)
ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE DE L'ENFANT	(T.N051)
ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE DES VILLAGES D'ENFANTS SOS	:(TN052)
ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE DU PLANNING FAMILIAL	(TN053)
DIRECTION DE LA MEDECINE SCOLAIRE ET UNIVERSITAIRE	(TN054)
DIRECTION DES SOINS DE SANTE DE BASE	(TN055)
FONDATION TUNISIENNE POUR LE DEVELOPPEMENT COMMUNAUTAIRE	(TN056
INSTITUT DE PROMOTION DES HANDICAPES	(TN057
INSTITUT NATIONAL DE NUTRITION ET DE TECHNOLOGIE ALIMENTAIRE	(TN058
INSTITUT NATIONAL DE SANTE PUBLIQUE	(TN059
MINISTERE DE LA JEUNESSE ET DE L'ENFANCE	(TN060
OFFICE NATIONAL DE LA FAMILLE ET DE LA POPULATION	(TN061
UNION TUNISIENNE D'AIDE AUX INSUFFISANTS MENTAUX	(TN062
UNION TUNISIENNE DE SOLIDARITE SOCIALE	(TN063
YEMEN	
VENTEN FAMILY CARE ASSOCIATION	(YF064



UNESCO Activities in Early Childhood

Principle for action

Learning begins at birth. (Article 5 - 1990 Jomtien World Declaration on Education for All)

Early Childhood Care and Education is an integral part of basic education and represents the first and essential step in achieving the goals of Education-for-All. Recent world conferences testify to a growing appreciation of the crucial importance of the child's earliest years, and of the need to support families and communities in their role as the child's most influential educator. The learning capacity and value orientations of children are largely determined by the time the child reaches the age of formal schooling. For this reason, any sustained effort in Education for All must set targets and programmes for early childhood and attempt to raise the life-skills level of families.

Improving children's health and nutrition is necessary, but increasingly, in a situation where fourteen out of fifteen of the world's children survive until the age of one, governments and civil society are turning their attention to the psycho-social and cognitive development of children. Well conceived quality early childhood programmes help meet the diverse needs of young children during the crucial early years of life, enhance their readiness for schooling, have a positive and permanent influence on later schooling achievement. In addition, countries that succeed in mobilizing local government, municipalities, communities and voluntary organizations in the care and education of young children have been able to decentralise and innovate in their educational systems and, at the same time, make an important contribution toward population information and family education.

Goals and objectives

Within this context, UNESCO intervenes at various levels:

- at the interagency level, by participating in United Nations or other international initiatives in favour of children and families;
- at the intergovernmental level, by encouraging governments to integrate early childhood and family education programmes in their long-term social and economic planning:
- through technical assistance in the design, development and implementation of integrated early childhood programmes: as well as contributing to the improvement of the child development skills of parents and caregivers by encouraging child care information and education services, and community-based family support programmes:
- by acting as a networking centre and clearing-house on information about early childhood care and education systems, organizations, policies, programmes and activities.

UNESCO's Young Child and the Family Environment Project

Established by the UNESCO General Conference in November 1989, the Young Child and the Family Environment (YCF) Project co-ordinates research, activities and initiatives undertaken by UNESCO in early childhood care and education, parent and family education, and in favour of the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child. The Project seeks to:

- improve access to early childhood care and education by making such programmes more widely available and accessible, and improving school-readiness:
- support family education and policy formulation by encouraging the participation and promoting the role of families and communities in basic education programmes:
- improve the content of early childhood programmes, in particular their design and quality.
- redirect and strengthen early childhood training programmes;
- strengthen the information base on early childhood by improving the availability and quality of information, research and data on young children and their families:
- promote legislation on behalf of children and families, in particular the Convention on the Rights of the Child, through awareness raising and advocacy;
- collaborate in artistic, intellectual and cultural events promoting reflection on childhood and family issues.



Early Childhood Interventions

With the help of its specialized services, its roster of consultants, its partnership with sister agencies of the United Nations - in particular UNICEF and WHO - and the co-operation of major institutes and NGOs, UNESCO provides various services to its Member States. UN Agencies, foundations, organizations and individuals working in favour of children and families. Some of its activities include:

- supporting early childhood development/family education programmes in the Middle East, the Pacific, Latin America and South East Asia;
- publishing information and research results on early childhood topics, such as:
 - Enhancing the Skills of Early Childhood Trainers, a training pack for the training of trainers produced with the Bernard van Leer Foundation
 - Toward a Fair Start for Children: Programming for Early Childhood Care and Development in the Developing World by Dr Robert Myers, already published in Arabic. Chinese. English. French, Hindi, Indonedian, Russian, Portuguese, Spanish and Thai.
- creating graduate-level diplomas in early childhood in selected universities in Brazil, with the Centre International de l'Enfance:
- sponsoring sub-regional training workshops for administrators in policy and organization of informal early childhood development systems in the Pacific. Africa and the Middle East:
- strengthening or establishing regional Early Childhood Co-operating Centres in Europe and Francophone Africa:
- undertaking a national inventory of early childhood resources in Burkina Faso to reinforce national capacity and potential in the care and education of young children.

Family Education and Early Childhood Development

Systemic e 'ly child development programmes are an excellent investment for States, in that they raise significantly the health and educational levels of young children and allow women to enter the labour market. Children, however, always need the security and orientation which the home provides, nor should it be forgotten that societies are founded on the quality of the homes and families of which they are composed. Family education

- · provides parents with the necessary knowledge and skills to raise their children successfully:
- builds up self-reliance, networking and social consciousness among parents.

Member States have much to gain from promoting family education. In situations where it is impossible to set up early childhood, centre-based programmes funded by the State, excellent child care and education can be provided through educating parents and supporting their initiatives at community level. UNESCO recommends State support for family education not only as a fruitful investment in children but also as a means of raising the educational level of a country as a whole In a context dominated by rapid social change and by the expansion of scientific and technological knowledge, parent education is a first step toward supporting community development and education. In the past three years, the Organization has supported over twenty different projects in Member States worldwide focusing on the development and education of families and young children.

Children's Rights Initiatives

The Articles of the Convention which present a particular challenge to UNESCO are those relating to education (Articles 27, 28 and 29) and culture (Articles 12, 13, 14, 17, 28, 29, 30 and 31) UNESCO promotes the Convention on the Rights of the Child by:

- acting as a focal point for enquiries concerning the Convention, sending out literature and attempting to attend the more important meetings on the Convention convened by the United Nations and NGOs;
- providing assistance to the UN Committee on the Rights of the Child in monitoring the Convention, in particular as it relates to education and culture.
- helping to translate the Convention into national languages.



- contracting original materials on the Convention, especially publications and booklets prepared for or by young children.
- assisting governments and non-governmental organizations in publishing children's versions of the Convention and guidebooks for teachers:
- co-sponsoring meetings on the Rights of the Child with the International Institute for Human Rights Studies (Trieste), the UN Centre for Human Rights (Geneva), the Arab Institute of Human Rights;
- co-operating with UNICEF on matters pertaining to the Convention, within the framework of early childhood education;

Early Childhood Information/Documentation Activities

To create opportunities for institutions and individuals to learn about each other's needs and actions, enhance information exchange on early childhood, and build up active relationships to benefit young children and their families, UNESCO:

- collects, compiles and disseminates basic information on early childhood care and education systems, organizations and curricula.
- maintains a data bank of early childhood care and education information.
- produces practical directories, publications, briefs and reports on early childhood care and education systems, organizations, curricula or policies.
- provides input into, and support for, selected professional journals and reviews, such as the Interagency Consultative Group on Early Childhood Care and Development's Coordinator's Notebook.

The YCF Databases

The YCFE International Database - In an effort to foster and facilitate inter-institutional collaboration, the Young Child and the Family Environment (YCFE) International Database was set up in 1990. The Database contains information on some 1500 organizations in 146 countries of the world, involved in early childhood care, development and education, and focuses on activities aimed at the Young Child, the Family and the Community. The organization profiles are both general (as to the institution's name, address, contact person, number of staff) and specific (regarding the major foci of activities, types of activities, including grant-making and information activities, and regions of activity, as well as funding sources, partnership links and target groups).

The ECCE Database - The Early Childhood Care and Education (ECCE) Database was set up in 1993. The Database contains information on early childhood care and education policies, legislation, partners and major activities in 116 countries, along with pertinent data on publications and databases concerned with early childhood issues. Each country profile contains information on the national policy on early childhood, the coverage and supervision of programmes, major actors and partners, issues and problems encountered, successful initiatives, staff training and qualifications, as well as on parent/community involvement in activities and media/information actions in favour of young children.

The YCF Directories

Information from the YCFE International Database was used to publish the International Directory on the Young Child and the Family Environment (1991) and the Directory of Early Childhood Care and Education Organizations in Sub-Saharan Africa (1992). Information from the ECCE Database is being used to prepare a World Sourcebook on Early Childhood Care and Education. The current Directory on the Arab States is a continuation of the series of Regional Directories started with the volume focusing on Sub-Saharan Africa.

Further enquiries

For further information, contact:

The Young Child and the Family Environment Project, ED/BAS/YCF, UNESCO
7 Place de Fontenoy

75352 Paris 07 SP, FRANCE

tel: (33-1) 45 68 08 12

fax: (33-1) 40 65 94 05



The Directory of Early Childhood Care and Education Organizations in the Arab States

The Directory of Early Childhood Care and Education Organizations in the Arab States describes the major activities of 64 non-governmental and governmental organizations, based in 12 Arab countries and involved in early childhood care and education, along with pertinent data on their Young Child, Family and Community programmes and their information activities. This publication aims to be an important information source for professionals working with and for children, and to encourage and facilitate communication and information sharing between institutions and individuals active in improving the situation of children. It seeks to give a just insight into the national, regional and international contributions to early childhood activities in the Arab States.

Methodology

The information presented in the Directory was compiled through a questionnaire survey sent to 240 organizations in the Arab States. The information contained in the profiles was provided by the organizations themselves. All responsibility for this information thus remains with the organizations responding to the survey. The objective of this publication has been to make available, rather than evaluate, the data thus provided. This survey, which covered a period of approximately six months, was complemented by information from other relevant sources.

Update

Although the data contained in this Directory has been repeatedly checked, errors and omissions may still exist. All modifications and additions should be entered on the questionnaire included in the volume and returned to the address provided. This sample questionnaire is included to encourage users to complement and update the information provided, and to offer those organizations which are not included the chance to be considered for future editions. An evaluation form is also included to help improve future editions of the Directory. Users are invited to complete this form and return it to the address provided.

Sections of the Directory

Articles

Two articles offer an overview of the situation of children in the Arab States and of their family environment in general, and provide an analysis of the information collected in the Directory.

Statistical Tables

Before presenting the different organizations in each country, statistical tables give an overview of the basic social and economic statistics available by country, which directly concern the 0-5 age group and their families.

Profiles

The profiles are arranged alphabetically by country and by the official name of the organization. A reference code assigned to each profile is listed above the official name. This code is used in the indexes to refer to the organization, rather than the page number on which the profile is found.

Each profile contains five types of information about the organization: a) identification and contact fields; b) the aims, type and countries of actions of the organization; c) information concerning the co-operation/partnership activities of the organization; d) the major activities within the Young Child. Family and Community programmes of each organization; e) the services and information activities offered by each organization.

Identification fields

Practical information on each organization is provided, including the official name and translation; acronym when it exists; address; telephone, telex, cable, telefax and E-mail numbers; and contact name.

General information fields

The major aims of the organization are listed, along with the type of actions it undertakes and the countries in which it is active. The foundation date, the number of staff of the organization and its budget are also provided.



16

1.4

Co-operation/partnership fields

Information is provided on the organization's links with other institutions and different communities, as well as on the extent of its membership, and its affiliation to networks.

Major action fields

Under the headings Young Child Programmes, Family Programmes and Community Programmes, the activities of the organization are listed according to the main foci of its programmes. The target populations for these programmes are also indicated.

Services & information activities fields

When applicable, details of the services, publications and materials the organization provides are listed, as well as details on its information activities.

Information Lists/Bibliographies

The following information lists and bibliographies are included at the end of this publication to help users gain knowledge of potential funders of early childhood activities and of other information sources on early childhood issues:

- UNESCO National Commissions in the Arab States
- United Nations Information Centres in the Arab States
- Organizations/agencies involved in social and economic development in the Arab States
- Selected publications on early childhood care and education

Indexes

The following indexes are included at the end of this publication to facilitate information retrieval:

- an Acronym Index
- a Type of Actions Index
- a Focus of Programmes Index
- an Index of Services Provided
- a Geographical Coverage Index

For example, organizations working on child-to-child projects are identified by profile code in the Type of Actions Index under the heading Child-to-Child. Users can then refer back to the profiles to locate the organizations corresponding to these codes. In addition, an alphabetical listing of the official names of the organizations included in the Directory is provided, as well as a similar listing arranged by country in which the organization is located.

Acknowledgements

We would like to thank all the organizations which answered the questionnaire for their cooperation in providing the information for this publication, and for putting us in contact with other organizations involved in early childhood care and education activities. Furthermore, we acknowledge with many thanks the assistance of UNESCO's Regional Office for Education in the Arab States (UNEDBAS) in dispatching the questionnaires, as well as the co-operation and encouragement of UNESCO National Commissions and UN agencies field offices in the Arab States.

Further enquiries

Further copies of the directory may be obtained from UNESCO at the address below.

ECCE Arab States Directory YCFE Database Project, ED/BAS/YCF, UNESCO 7 Place de Fontenoy 75352 Paris 07 SP, FRANCE



<u>Ł</u>5

ARTICLES



Early Childhood Care and Education in the Arab States: Survey Findings

The responsibility of caring for and assisting children, their families and communities in the Arab States is shared by a variety of non-governmental and governmental organizations. Each of these organizations plays an important role in using the available resources to meet the health, welfare and educational needs of children and their families.

This regional survey of organizations involved in early childhood care and education in the Arab States elicited responses from 64 organizations in 12 countries. Their answers to the Questionnaire (a copy of which is included with the Directory) provide examples of many of the issues raised in the article. Early Childhood in the Arab States: Challenges and Opportunities, and offer an insight into their goals and actions. These organizations recognize that their actions need to involve not only children but also parents, families and communities in order to create an appropriate environment for the healthy development of children.

The survey highlights their activities in the following three programme areas: the Young Child, the Family and the Community. While some of the organizations focus on only one of these areas, most undertake activities in all three. Experience has shown that activities, which attend to needs in the three areas, obtain more holistic and long-lasting results. Each of the organizations included in this Directory has its own approach to meeting the needs of the child, its family and community in the Arab States. Their combined efforts work to improve the well-being of the child within its family and community. Whatever their approach, the organizations recognize that provision of basic services (such as health care, clean water supplies, nutrition, education, and welfare services) is essential to ensure a fair start for children. This summary of responses highlights issues that are of major concern to individuals and organizations working in this field in the Arab States by demonstrating the who, for whom, what, how and with whom of their actions.

The organizations

Of the 64 organizations in the Directory, 46% are non-governmental, non-profit organizations; 27% are research institutes, training organizations, schools and universities. The remaining 27% includes Ministries and governmental agencies. United Nations agencies field offices, hospitals/medical centres, foundations, women's groups and trade unions. The findings illustrate the wide variety of organizations that are responsible for current actions in the field of early childhood. These actions are carried out by some 56,400 staff members of whom 84% are non-salaried.

The beneficiaries

The responses also help to understand for whom the activities are undertaken. There seems to be an equal interest in activities focusing on the three main programme areas: the Young Child, the Family and the Community.

Those organizations which work with young children work more with children aged four to six than with infants or two to three year olds. There is a tendancy to focus more on children in rural settings (35%) than on children in urban settings (31%). Slightly more attention is given to girls (35%) than to boys (31%). One third of the organizations which assist children target their activities toward, families and professionals.

Looking at the responses of organizations working on family programmes, families in rural and urban settings receive nearly equal attention. 28% of the organizations focus their family-oriented activities on women, while only 12% target men. Furthermore, a quarter of the organizations provide assistance to parents of disabled children, while 21% target their actions on policymakers.



!

Looking at community programmes, 23% of the organizations work with rural communities and 17% with urban communities. Thus in all three programme areas, the rural setting is more favoured than the urban setting by a small, but consistent percentage. Families and policymakers receive equal attention, while a third work with children and a quarter with parents.

The type of activities

Responses provided information on the type of activities the organizations undertaken for their Young Child, Family and Community programmes. Activities were divided into eight main categories: Research, Training, Policy, Programmes/Projects, Services, Publications/Materials, Networking and Grant-making.

Each of these main categories was chosen by over a quarter of the organizations. Training was selected by 86% of the respondents. Research and Programmes/Projects both by 77%, and Networking by 67%. It is interesting to note that slightly more organizations work in the area of Policy (54%) than in Services (53%). In addition, the organizations also are involved in Publications/Materials (35%), and 26% undertake grant-making activities in favour of children, families and communities.

Within these main categories, the following activities were cited the most often: programme/project implementation (74%), training of professionals (72%), applied research (60%), meetings/workshops (47%), development of services (46%), policy development (40%), and publications/materials distribution (33%).

The focus of actions

Respondents provided information on the focus of their actions within their Young Child. Family and Community programmes. Actions in favour of the child were divided into four main areas: child health and development, child care and education, child at risk, and child advocacy. Activities relating to the family were divided into four main areas: family health and welfare, family education and awareness, family at risk, and family advocacy. Actions concerned with the community were divided into four main areas: community welfare and involvement, community development and awareness, community livelihood, and community advocacy.

Each of these main areas was chosen by over a third of the organizations. Child Health and Development was selected by 88% of the respondents. Family Health and Welfare by 77%, and Community Development and Awareness by 79%. It is interesting to note that more organizations work to promote child health and development (88%) or family health and welfare (77%), than child care and education (75%) or family education and awareness (74%), while the opposite is apparent for the community. Actions for community development and awareness (79%) are higher than those for community welfare and involvement (67%). In addition, the organizations also assist children (65%) and families (44%) at risk, and undertake advocacy for the community (42%), and for children and families (35%).

Young Child Programmes

Those organizations working in the Child Health and Development sector seem to give equal attention to child development activities as to health and nutrition activities. However, childhood disabilities (65%) and childhood diseases/growth (53%) are the two activities chosen the most often. The wide range of actions demonstrates the many and varied needs of children in the region. Of the two activities chosen the least often, oral rehydration was nevertheless attended to by a fifth of the organizations, while 9% were concerned with AIDS.

In the Child Care and Education sector, there are again a wide range of activities, each attended to by between one tenth and two third of the organizations. Preschool education, that is educating and caring for children above the age of 3, is covered by 63% of the organizations, while infant care falls in the realm of activities of 17%. More organizations provide home-based programmes (31%)



22

or non-formal centre-based programmes (26%) than formal childcare centres (19%). Over a quarter of the organizations focus on institutionalized (26%) or disabled children (30%). A small number provide foster care (12%), while only 2% are concerned with child adoption. In this sector, the division between care and education is a fine one, depending on the age of the children and the attitudes that caregivers, educators and parents have about the role of education in the development of the child between 0 and 6.

Between 10% and 32% of the organizations work in the Child at Risk sector. This sector can be divided into three categories: activities for children with developmental/health difficulties, those for children abused by others, activities for children in difficult situations. Children with emotional difficulties (30%) and learning difficulties (26%) fall in the first category, child abuse/neglect (32%) and child labour (21%) in the second, and care for street children (21%), orphans, refugee children, and children of war/conflict (each 10%) in the third. Over a fifth of the organizations work with children who have special needs.

The final sector of activities specifically dealing with children. Child Advocacy, was attended to by between 16% and 32% of the organizations. Nearly one third work to promote children's rights, while 23% work in their own countries to advocate the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child, and 19% to promote child protection practices.

Family Programmes

Actions of the organizations working in the Family Health and Welfare sector include both health and welfare components. Of primary importance is the welfare of the mother and infant (60%), while the well-being of the whole family through primary health care is attended to by 26%. Family planning assistance, family guidance and family services are provided by one fifth of the organizations, while health centres and household food security are attended to by over 12%.

When working in the Family Education and Awareness sector, two thirds of the organizations provide education for parents/caregivers, while over a third work in the fields of child-rearing, parent/child interaction and health education. Most of the organizations focus more on parent/caregiver education (60%) than on parent-to-be education (19%) or on the father's role (12%). Finally, it is clear from the responses that these organizations see their role more in providing education related to the child than in providing general education, such as literacy courses (21%).

In the Family at Risk sector, poverty is the concern of the most organizations (31%), followed by single-parent families (17%) and the unemployed (16%). Refugees are assisted by 10% of the organizations.

The responses concerned with the Family Advocacy sector indicate that the organizations first priority are health (28%) and family (26%) protection issues, followed by human rights (17%) concerns.

Community Programmes

In the Community Welfare and Involvement sector, social services (53%) and health services (33%) were chosen most often. Home visits and social welfare were undertaken by over more than a quarter of the organizations. Community-based preschool/care (28%) and formal preschool care (19%) are provided by more organizations than parent-based preschool care (10%), while only 5% are concerned with workplace childcare.

In general, in the Community Development and Awareness sector, responses indicate that more focus is placed on social welfare and social mobilization than on physical and resource improvements for the community as a whole: sociocultural (49%), socioeconomic (46%) environments and awareness raising (39%) versus community health (28%), skills training (26%), and water and environmental sanitation (21%).



2.3

Between one tenth and a third of the organizations work in the Community Livelihood sector. Women's programmes (30%) and environmental protection (28%) were chosen most often. Rural development, human resource development and income-generation activities are undertaken by over a fifth of the organizations.

The responses related to the Community Advocacy sector indicate that the organizations first concern are the protection (28%) and rights (24%) of children. Approximately one fifth of the organizations promote general health policy (19%) and population policy (17%), whereas human rights (12%) and family legislation (10%) are less often targeted.

Services, funding & information sources

The Questionnaire also solicited information on services provided by the organizations, their funding sources, budgets and information sources. These responses provide a clearer picture of the organizations working with children, families and communities.

The services provided the most often range from documentation/information activities (81%) to counselling/guidance services (30%) and radio/television programmes (28%). The range of services provided reflects the variety of clients who depend on such activities, from individuals working with young children, to NGOs, governments, research institutes and other welfare organizations. Among the documentation/information activities most often provided are training/workshops (78%), conferences/seminars (73%), library (48%) and publications services (47%).

Only 36 organizations responded to the question on funding sources. Such sources range from national governments (53%), foreign aid programmes and fundraising (both 42%) to NGOs (36%) and sales of publications (3%). Membership fees (39%) and funds received from private donations (28%) and from foundations (19%) are also significant sources, while industry, religious organizations and financial institutions (each 3%) are limited sources of funding. Responses thus indicate that the need for funding requires resourcefulness in accessing a variety of funding sources.

As only 32 organizations responded to the question on the organization's budget, it is not possible to indicate exactly how much is available for early childhood care and education activities and related services in the Arab States. The total sum of annual budgets indicated is US\$ 42,084,870. While the actual figure for each organization varies greatly, the approximate average figure of US\$ 1,315,150 per organization represents a considerable amount, when comparing it with the per capita GNP of most Arab countries.

Over half of the organizations obtain information for their work from international and national/local NGOs, governmental agencies and schools/universities. UN agencies provide information to 44% of the organizations, while professional associations are information sources for 25%. Between a sixth and a third of the organizations seek more specialized information from a range of other organizations, such as research and training institutes, hospitals, women's groups, youth groups and religious organizations.

Obstacles and objectives

The actions and programmes of the various organizations in the field of early childhood have helped the identify common problems and objectives in performing their activities. To explore these difficulties and goals, three analysis questions were included in the survey solliciting information about major obstacles encountered in the course of activities, major elements of good early childhood programmes and major successful actors in the field. Of the organizations responding to the survey, 58% answered these questions.



The first question asked the respondents to list the five major obstacles encountered in implementing early childhood activities. Lack of funds (66%) was the most pressing problem, followed by bureaucracy (53%), lack of staff and technical support (both 44%), and lack of contacts in other organizations and with information sources (28%). Three other obstacles were also cited: differences of opinion about early childhood care and education (25%), target group's reluctance to accept innovation (22%) and lack of interest (19%).

The second question sollicited information on the five essential elements that make up successful early childhood programmes. Encouraging parent and community involvement in the planning, management and evaluation of programmes (65%) was the most important element, followed by trying to reach the largest possible number of children and families in difficult conditions, taking a multifaceted view of child development (both 52%), and looking toward approaches and models that are financially feasible and cost effective (48%). 42% of the respondents also felt that the following two elements are essential: allowing parents to learn more about the needs of young children, and allowing children to learn to be creative, cooperate, solve problems, share, socialize, play and grow.

The partners

When undertaking their activities, many organizations recognize the benefits of working with partners to reach the goals identified. National/local NGOs are the partners of the largest number of organizations (37%), followed closely by international NGOs (35%). Schools/universities, UN and government agencies are called upon by a third of the organizations, while parent groups and trade unions are the partners of under 10%. A range of other organizations (such as research and training institutes, women's groups, community groups, professional associations and foundations) were also identified as partners by between 15% and 25% of the organizations.

The final analysis question in the survey turned the focus to organizations' opinions regarding the most successful actors/partners undertaking early childhood actions in the Arab States. Asked to select the five most successful partners, respondents chose national/local NGOs (65%), international NGOs and governmental agencies (both 42%). UN agencies (35%) and schools/universities (32%). Other actors chosen were training organizations and hospitals/medical centres (26%), community groups (23%) and women's groups (19%). The actors cited least often were foundations, youth groups and parents's groups (each 6%).

Complementary approaches

The results of this survey illustrate the complementary nature of the approaches and actions of organizations in the field of early childhood care, development and education. The activities of the organizations included in this Directory clearly emphasize the interdependence between actions aimed at children, those focusing on the family and those concerned with the community. These actions take into account the physical, intellectual, sociocultural and economic aspects of the environment the child lives in: thus involving aspects that not only concern the child itself, kbut also his immediate family and his community.

From this survey, it is apparent that topics which have captured the attention of organizations working in the Arab States in the last decades, such as childhood disabilities, mother and infant welfare or preschool education, are still of great importance. In addition, this survey also shows that such organizations have been able to respond rapidly to emerging critical issues, such as refugee children and children's rights.

It is only by comparing these results with those of future studies that it will be possible to better understand the vital role, contributions and achievements of these varied organizations in actions in favour of the young child, the family and the community.



Early Childhood in the Arab States: Challenges and Opportunities

The Arab States

The Arab States are unique in that their populations share common social, cultural, historical, linguistic and demographic features. Despite their independent and varied political systems, even despite their great variation in wealth. Arabs like to be considered as one nation. Most Arab countries present similar social and demographic characteristics: high rates of population growth, a young population structure, high rates of marriage at a young age, and high fertility rates with large family size norms. In addition, despite rapid rates of urbanization, most Arab countries tend to have an agrarian, rural-oriented community life.

Along with similarities, there are also noteable differences. The Arab region is made up of 21 countries with diverse social and economic potentials, representing a total population of 240 million (1993 estimate). Gross national product per capita (1992 US dollars) ranged from \$150 in Somalia to \$22020 in the United Arab Emirates. Population size, according to 1993 estimates, varied from less than 0.5 million in Djibouti to more than 56 million in Egypt. Access to basic services (food, health, education, welfare) and the possibilities for socio-economic development vary greatly from country to country. They also depend on the type of groups considered, whether the population is urban or rural, and on gender. Hence, it is difficult to establish a generalized "definition" of the situation of the Arab child, as most data available does not take into account the differences that exist in access and quality of child services from one area to another, and from one country to the next.

Over the past 30 years. Arab countries have demonstrated their commitment to improving the lives of children by giving them an increasingly important place in their development efforts. A number of Arab countries have recorded significant progress in reducing infant mortality, improving child health and raising literacy levels. A majority of Arab governments have adopted policies favorable to child care and development, in part as a result of a growing awareness among political leaders of the serious demographic, socio-economic and child survival problems that exist in the region. As proof, a majority of Arab leaders gave their support to the 1990 World Summit for Children. Nearly all Arab countries have ratified the Convention on the Rigths of the Child.

Tradition, too, helps the progress of children as Islam emphasizes the value of children, the importance of insuring a healthy progeny and the great prestige to be given to mothers. According to Moslem scholars, the future of Islam is said

to depend on the physical, educational and technological preparation of children. To achieve this goal, children have the right to be conceived by healthy mothers, and to be born healthy into a family prepared to receive them and raise them in the Islamic way and protect them from defects and ill-health. (Kessel, 1989)

Child health

The major health care problems faced by Arab children include nutritional deficiencies, diarrhoea, perinatal diseases, respiratory diseases, tetanus and common infections. High levels of illiteracy, poor housing and overcrowding, poor sanitation, the lack of safe water supplies and inadequate health care infrastructures contribute to poor child health conditions.

Remarkable achievements have nevertheless been made, particularly in the field of immunization and oral rehydration. An effort in favour of universal child immunization in the past decades has allowed all Arab countries to instigate immunization programmes against the most common childhood diseases. More than 70% of children have access to oral rehydration salts in the Arab world through national oral rehydration programmes. Nearly 77% of children are immunized against the 6 major childhood diseases (diphteria, tetanus, whooping cough, tuberculosis,



poliomyelitis and measles). These statistics demonstrate that programmes in Arab countries have been successful in raising public awareness of the importance of good health practices.

Nutrition/food

Adequate nutrition, both in quantity and quality, and family food security are major needs of children in the Arab region. Malnutrition is a widespread and chronic problem, particularly in poor areas and urban slums. The importance of breast-feeding and the need for appropriate weaning foods to be available must also be stressed.

Achieving such needs is often prevented by the following: poverty and underdevelopment; inadequate agricultural production and infrastructure; lack of stable economic policies, ignorance and poor education; maternal malnutrition; recurrent childhood infections; civil unrest and conflicts. Some of these factors are partly responsible for the Arab world's need to import more than 50% of its food, including wheat (Miladi & Khidhayir, 1989). In the face of such difficulties, concerned governments have launched programmes and public awareness campaigns that focus on infant feeding, weaning foods and practices, and nutritional education.

Schooling

In general, Arab countries have made significant progress in providing schooling for younger children. Early childhood care and education is seen as an important factor for creating foundations that will increase the effective participation of children in primary school. However, its growth continues to be slow. Social demand for schooling is extremely high, as Islam calls for education from the craddle to the grave. Many communities and families support Koranic schools and private sector initiatives, to ensure the education of their children.

The number of early childhood care and education institutions and programmes varies considerably among Arab countries owing in large measure to their not being considered a public or governmental responsibility. Moreover, the provision of early childhood care and education is constrained by location (urban or rural areas), lack of resources and funds, and inadequately trained personnel. Other factors that play a role in limiting access to schooling are the absence of legislation for compulsory education in some countries, the prevalence of habits and traditions that limit education, especially of girls, and the decline in the material and social status of teachers.

Access to early childhood care and education institutions thus varies greatly from one area to another, depending on location, level of poverty and gender; children of poor families are less likely to attend early childhood programmes; girls are less likely to be encouraged to go to these programmes, in particular in rural areas. In most countries only a small percentage of children have access to early childhood care and education programmes of any kind, and the facilities that do exist are in inverse proportion to demand and population size. There is a need for curriculum development at national level, local production of learning materials, and the creation and strengthening of early childhood facilities.

The changing family and social environment

Today the Arab family model falls into three categories: the tribe or traditional extended family where power is in the hands of the elders and the men, the parental family in which two or three generations live together with authority in the hands of the eldest male; and the nuclear family (father, mother and children). Owing to economic hardship, the parental family model has been on the increase in rural areas; whereas the nuclear model is spreading throughout the urban Arab world.



Within this context, the 'individual' is first and foremost a 'member of a community', of which he has to present a positive image, and within which his individuality and personality are little tolerated. Hence, women are granted a secondary role (housewife/lactating mother) providing the 'food' which is very important everyday and on every occasion: 'Her first duty is to nurture her child'. Hers are the 'day-to-day' affairs, not guidance, while the man is the 'contact' with society. He has to guarantee the income, the 'money', meet the households' material needs and provide for the general guidance. The man has difficulty in being the 'educator' and in playing a warm, supportive and everyday role near the child. His intervention is usually sudden and temporary. (Bibi, 1993)

Social changes have been rapid, due to migration from rural to urban areas in search of work, or from poorer countries to oil-producing ones. These migration patterns have greatly increased pressure on housing, basic services and infrastructures thus increasing the difficult conditions faced by children and their families. New forms of consumption have emerged, making many rural areas dependent on cities for basic needs.

The Arab world has been and remains an area of long-running wars and armed conflicts It has one of the highest per capita rates of arms purchases in the world. (Miladi & Khidhayir, 1989) Child soldiers are frequent in some areas of the region.

And always, the heaviest burden is borne by children - children who miss their one chance to grow normally in mind and body, to be educated and to acquire skills to find a place in society. These children, physically and mentally scarred by the conflicts of their elders, are part of the generation on which the future must be built. (Grant, 1992)

However, in a number of conflict areas in the region, warring factions have agreed to 'days of tranquility' or 'corridors of peace', which have permitted the delivery of medical and food supplies, the immunization of children and the establishment of emergency water supply and sanitation services. In some cases, various factions even assisted by providing vehicles and communications.

Changes in family structures and socio-economic levels in the region have led to changes in values. attitudes and child-rearing habits. Families have had to look for alternative ways of taking care of their children. This role is now being filled more and more by voluntary agencies. NGOs, and local communities in an effort to build a common sense of solidarity. The organizational means to meet children's needs are being enhanced and require

the development of a more comprehensive view of children, both in terms of their vulnerability and of their potential as individuals and as future participants in social and economic change. (Lemma & Valkonen, 1989)

Links between various early childhood services and institutions coupled with the need for innovative, cost-efficient approaches are being recognized as necessary elements to prepare a national base to expand services for children. This concern, both at the governmental and non-governmental levels, for proper and adequate carly childhood care and education, stems from the growing recognition of the crucial importance in human development of the first six years of life.

It is not only young children who benefit from early childhood programmes. These programmes also offer unique positive spin-off opportunities for others involved in their lives: their parents, older siblings, and the immediate community. In a number of countries, a further step has been taken. Both governmental and non-governmental organizations are providing parent education programmes to help parents better understand how their children grow, develop and learn, and thus improve their parenting skills to be better able to help their children.



Governmental & non-governmental involvement

On the political front, significant progress has been made in recognizing the place of early childhood care and education in national development. Governments have begun to frame concrete policies and regulations for developing early childhood services. Governments are also encouraging and supporting the initiatives and innovations of NGOs and other voluntary organizations to provide early childhood services to communities, in particular in rural areas. Local as well as professional organizations are emerging to help governments in their fight gainst ill health, disease and high infant/child mortality. Universities are starting to revise their curricula to address health and child care problems in their countries

Following the decisions of the World Summit for Children, Arab governments have prepared National Programmes of Action to meet the goals agreed on at the Summit. These Programmes of Action include goals such as halving malnutrition, reducing the impact of the most common diseases, bringing clean water to all communities, and ensuring that all children have access to basic education. In the area of early childhood care and education, this has meant increasing the availability of early childhood services, particularly in rural areas, and ensuring adequate training of early childhood staff. Arab leaders are starting to recognize the inherent importance of early childhood programmes to a community environment that helps children grow and learn. They are also beginning to view these programmes as a community service and resource that encourages greater participation in community life and national development. However, real commitment to early childhood care and education continues to be hindered by pre-occupation with pressing social and economic concerns.

Early childhood care and education programmes can act as a focus for community involvement and development in many fields. These activities may include institution-based programmes, such as day care, nursery, preschool and child care centres. They may also include educational activities in broader community programmes, such as supplementary feeding, health and nutrition education, support and education of parents, community well-being, mass media programmes and child-to-child activities. The establishment of educational and care services for young children usually becomes a community involvement project.

The general consensus is that the greater the level of parent/community involvement, the more likely it is that early childhood services will meet parent/community needs and become an integrated part of community life. Parents are policy makers in most areas of their children's lives. Their involvement in the design and operation of early childhood institutions increases the likelihood of continuity of experience between home and preschool for the child. Parent/community involvement and support offer promising strategies for facilitating early childhood programmes. (Khattab, 1995)

Without the partnership of parents and communities, efforts to improve early childhood care and education would be unlikely to be effective. The involvement of communities and individuals in various aspects of early childhood programmes and services, in-kind contributions from governmental agencies and NGOs, and the extensive participation of parents can ensure that services may be within the reach of young children and support the long-term sustainability of these programmes. However, the demand at present far outstrips the number of trained and qualified staff.

regrouping individuals and institutions concerned with early childhood care and education. These associations provide the opportunity for all those concerned with the welfare of young children to interact, share knowledge and speak with one voice at the national level. In some cases, these networks can serve as intermediaries between governmental agencies concerned with young children and the multitude of preschool actors and practitioners in working together to establish and enforce standards of preschool education and care, and thus to insure equal provision and access to quality services for young children throughout the region.



3()

In the Arab world, the Commention on the Rights of the Child has been ratified by a majority of countries, but its implementation is hindered, as the Convention needs to be translated into binding laws and there still exist conflicting legislations that need to be revised. Though the Convention is seen by many to be in harmony with Islamic Sharia and Arab tradition and culture, reality in Arab societies still shows big gaps and discriminations. (Bibi, 1994)

Early Childhood Care and Education in the Arab States: what future?

It is a sad reality that the suffering of children in the Arab world has not yet been accorded the priority it deserves. It is high time we recognize that development plans in the Arab world can no longer ignore the pressing problems of Arab children or afford to waste scarce regional and national resources in piecemeal, ad hoc projects. While we recognize the achievements of the past, we must emphasize the importance of pressing ahead by cooperating on a regional level in the field of child development (Miladi & Khidhayir, 1989)

The fact that national health, welfare and education policies in many Arab countries are based mainly on the idea of non-interference in affairs relating to the care and education of young children hinders the implementation of integrated early childhood activities which require material and financial resources (trained personnel, equipment and supplies). However, despite these, the situation of Arab children has improved as provision of basic services (such as immunization, hygiene and sanitation, schooling) is improved, as well as where political will to tackle the problems of children exists and partnerships between governmental and non-governmental actors have been initiated. The Arab States are thus faced with a number of challenges and needs which require a democratic approach allowing for:

- participation, positive change and collective and complementary responsabilities by state and society;
- an environment supportive of the child by providing services, structural changes and cooperation by all:
- involvement of children and their participation by developing awareness and changing attitudes among adults:
- holistic programmes:
- positive NGO intervention by creating successful programmes that encourage people and governments. (Bibi. 1994)

The challenges are thus many. Promoting and facilitating the expansion, availability and quality of early childhood care and education will continue to challenge the creativity and imagination of planners and practitioners, and require the support of all - governments. NGOs, universities, local communities, families and parents - to reach the greatest number of children possible. Crucial in this matter will be the extent to which appropriate national policies and plans can be developed, adequate resources allocated, participation in early childhood programmes encouraged through support to health and nutrition needs, partnership with families and communities enhanced as a cost-effective and relevant source for content and instructional materials (UNESCO, 1994)

The time has come for all of us to contribute from our respective positions of responsability to establishing a comprehensive Arab plan -- based on facts rather than speculation, and information rather than wishful thinking -- so that we can achieve unified action by streamlining our efforts and financial resources. (Miladi & Khidhayir, 1989)

The growing interest, among both governments and donors working in the region, to invest resources in early childhood care and education, the positive shifts in national policies towards young children, the fast growing number of NGOs, institutions and local communities able to provide services to children, and the increasing amount of inter-organizational collaboration and networking are some of the opportunities existing and waiting to be furthered for the maximum benefit of children in the Arab States.



References

- G. Bibi, The UN Convention on the Rights of the Child in the Arab World: Realities, Needs and Challenges, Radda Barnen & Arab Resource Collective, Nicosia, 1994.
- G. Bibi, Towards Involving Parents in Early Childhood Education Partnership with Parents, Arab Resource Collective, Nicosia, 1993.
- Europa Publications. The Middle East and North Africa 1995, 41st edition. Europa Publications Ltd., London, 1993.
- E. A. Fisher, Early Childhood Care and Education A World Survey, UNESCO, Paris, 1991.
- J. P. Grant, The State of the World's Children, UNICEF, Oxford University Press, 1992 & 1994.
- D. Jacobs, *Protecting Children from the Scourge of War*, The Coordinator's Notebook. Issue No 10, Consultative Group on Early Childhood Care and Development, New York, pp 1-13.
- M. S. Khattab, A Comprehensive Review of the Status of Early Childhood Development in the Middle East and North Africa. Education Section, UNICEF Middle East and North Africa Regional Office, Amman, 1995.
- E. Kessel & A.K. Awan (eds.), Maternal and Child Care in Developing Countries: Assessment, Promotion and Implementation, Ott Publishers, Thun, 1989.
- A. Lemma & E. Valkonen (eds.), Towards National Capacity Building in Africa: University-Community Linkag for Child Survival and Development, University of Helsinki-Lahti Research and Training Centre & UNICEF International Child Development Centre, Florence, 1989.
- S. Miladi & M. Khidhayir, *The State of the Child in the Arab World 1989*, Arab Council for Childhood and Development, Cairo, 1990.
- R. Myers. The Twelve who Survive: Strengthening Programmes of Early Childhood Development in the Third World, Routledge, London, 1992.
- UNESCO, MINEDARAB V Fifth Conference of Ministers of Education and those Responsible for Economic Planning in the Arab States Education for Development: Meeting Challenges of the Twenty-First Century, Cairo 11-14 June 1994, UNESCO, Paris, 1994.
- UNESCO, MINEDARAB V Final Report of the Fifth Conference of Ministers of Education and those Responsible for Economic Planning in the Arab States, Cairo 11-14 June 1994, UNESCO, Paris, 1994.
- UNESCO, Regional Seminar of Experts on Quranic Schools and their Role in the Universalization and Renewal of Basic Education Final Report, Khartoum 20-24 January 1993, UNESCO/Sudanese National Committee for Education, Science and Culture, Paris, 1994.
- UNICEF, Early Childhood Development: The Challenge & The Opportunity, UNICEF Education Cluster, New York, 1993.
- A.R. Omran, J. Martin & B. Hamza (eds.), High Risk Mothers and Newborns: Detection. Management and Prevention, Ott Publishers, Thun, 1987.
- N. Sadik (ed.), Population Policies and Programmes: Lessons Learned from Two Decades of Experience, United Nations Population Fund, New York University Press, New York, 1991.



DESCRIPTOR EQUIVALENCES



Equivalences of Descriptors used in the profiles

ENGLISH	FRENCH	SPANISH
0-1 year infant	nourisson (0-1 an)	lactante (0-1 ano)
2-3 years child	enfant (2-3 ans)	niño (2-3 anos)
4-6 years child	enfant (4-6 ans)	niño (4-6 anos)
advisory & support services	services de conseil et soutien	asesoramiento y servicios técnicos
AIDS	technique SIDA	SIDA
AIDS/transmitable diseases	SIDA/maladies transmissibles	SIDA/enfermedades transmisibles
applied research	recherche appliquée	investigación aplicada
audio-visual aids (films/videos/slides/posters)	matériel audiovisuel (films/ vidéos/diapos/affiches)	material audiovisual (peliculas/ videos/diapositivas/carteles)
audio-visual service	service audiovisuel	servicio audiovisual
awareness raising	éveil de conscience	conscientización
awareness raising/advocacy	éveil de conscience/plaidoyer	conscientización/alegato
basic research	recherche de base	investigación básica
behavioural difficulties	troubles du comportement	trastornos del comportamiento
boys	garçons	muchachos
capitals or large cities	capitales ou grandes villes	capitales o ciudades grandes
care services	services d'accueil/soins	servicios de atención/cuidado
child abuse/neglect	enfants maltraités/négligés	niños maltratados/descuidados
child advocacy	défense/protection de l'enfant	protección del niño
child care & education	accueil et éducation de l'enfant	ayuda y educación del niño
child health & development	santé/développement de l'enfant	salud/desarrollo del niño
child in multicultural setting	enfant en milieu multiculturel	niño en ambiente multicultural
child in rural setting	enfant en milieu rural	niño en ambiente rural
child in urban setting	enfant en milieu urbain	niño en medio urbano
child labour	travail des enfants	trabajo de menores
child legislation	législation sur l'enfance	legislación sobre la infancia
child pornography	pornographie infantile	pornografia infantil
child prostitution	prostitution infantile	prostitución infantil
child protection	protection de l'enfance	protección de la infancia
child safety	sécurité de l'enfant	seguridad del niño
child sponsorship/adoption	adoption/parrainage d'enfants	adopción/padrinazgo de niños



child-rearing practices	puériculture	puericultura
Child-to-Child programmes	programmes d'Enfant pour l'Enfant	programas de Niño a Niño
childhood disabilities	handicaps infantils	discapacitación infantil
childhood diseases/ growth	maladies infantiles/croissance	enfermedades infantiles / crecimiento
children	enfants	niños
children at risk	enfants à risque	niños que corren riesgos
children of war/conflict	enfants de la guerre/de conflits	niños victimas de la guerra/de conflictos
children with AIDS	enfants séropositifs	niños con SIDA
children with special needs	enfants avec des besoins spéciaux	niños con necesidades especiales
children's rights	droits de l'enfant	derechos del niños
community	communauté	comunidad
community advocacy	défense/protection de la communauté	apoyo a la comunidad
community development & awareness	développement et éveil communautaires	desarrollo y conscientización de la comunidad
community groups	groupements communautaires	grupos comunitarias
community health	santé communautaire	salud de la comunidad
community leaders	responsables communautaires	dirigentes de la comunidad
community livelihood	ressources communautaires	recursos de la comunidad
community welfare & involvement	participation/bien-être communautaires	bienestar y participación de la comunidad
community-based preschool/care	accueil/crèches communautaires	guarderias/assistenci a comunitarias
computerized information service	service d'information informatisé	servicio de información
conferences/seminars	conférences/séminaires	computarizada conferencias/seminarios
cooperatives	coopératives	cooperativas
counselling/guidance services	services de guidance	servicios de orientación
credit systems, savıngs	systèmes de crédit, épargne	sistemas de credito, ahorros
data collection/surveys	collecte de données/enquêtes	recopilación de datos/encuestas
development of models/methods/ materials	développement de modèles/ méthodes/matériels	diseno de modelos/metodos/ materiales
development of services	élaboration de services	desarrollo de servicios
developmental difficulties	troubles du développement	trastornos del desarrollo
disabled children	enfants handicapés	niños impedidos
documentation centre	centre de docunientation	centro de documentación

		convisios do documentación/
documentation/information services	services de documentation/ information	servicios de documentación/ información
early childhood development	développement de la petite enfance	desarrollo infantil
early intervention	dépistage précoce	detección précoz
emotional development	développement affectif	desarrollo afectivo
emotional difficulties	troubles affectifs	trastornos afectivos
environmental protection	protection de l'environnement	protección ambiental
families	familles	familias
families at risk	familles à risque	familias que corren riesgos
family advocacy	défense de la famille	protección de la familia
family education & awareness	éducation et éveil de la famille	educación/concientización de la familia
family guidance	guidance familiale	orientación familiar
family health & welfare	santé et bien-être de la famille	salud y bienestar de la familia
family in multicultural setting	famille en milieu multiculturel	familia en ambiente multicultural
family in rural setting	famille en milieu rural	familia en ambiente rural
family in urban setting	famille en milieu urbain	familia en medio urbano
family legislation	législation sur la famille	legislación familiar
family planning	planning famılıal	planificación familiar
family protection	protection familiale	protección familiar
family services	services pour les familles	servicios de familias
family support groups	groupes de soutien pour les familles	grupos de apoyo familiares
family welfare centres	centres de protection familiale	centros de bienestar familiar
father's role	rôle du père	papel del padre
formal childcare cent es	centres officiels d'accueil	centros formales de ayuda a la infancia
formal preschool/care	accueil/crèches officielles	guarderias/assistenci a formales
foster care	garde d'enfants	custodia de niños
foundations	fondations	fundaciónes
girls	filles	muchachas
governmental agencies	agences gouvernementales	agencias gubernamentales
grant-making	allocation de subventions	provisión de fondos
health care	soins médicaux	atención médica
health centres	centres médicaux	centros de salud



health education	éducation sanitaire	educación sanitaria
health policy	politique sanitaire	politica de salud
health protection	protection sanitaire	protección sanitaria
health services	services de santé	servicios de salud
home visits	visites à domicile	visitas en el hogar
home-based programmes	programmes au foyer	programas en el hogar
hospitals/medical centres	hôpitaux/centres médicaux	hospitales/centros de salud
hotline, help/support services	services d'aide/soutien, téléphone	servicios de ayuda/apoyo, teléfono
household food security	sécurité alimentaire du foyer	seguridad alimentaria de hogares
human resource development	développement des ressources humaines	desarrollo de recursos humanos
human rights	droits de l'homme	derechos humanos
illiterate	analphabėtes	analfabetos
immunization	vaccinations	imunización
income-generation activities	activités génératrices de revenus	actividades generadores de rentas
infant care	puériculture	puericultura
information activities	activités d'information	actividades de información
information campaigns	campagnes d'information	campañas de información
information exchange	échange d'information	intercambio de información
information/inquiry service	service questions-réponses	servicio de preguntas y respuestas
infrastructure development	développement des infrastructures	desarrollo de infraestructuras
institution's activities reports	rapports sur les activités de l'organisation	informes de las actividades de la institución
institution building/support	création/soutien d'institutions	creación/apoyo da infaestructuras
institutionalized children	enfants en institutions	niños en instituciones
instructional guides/manuals	guides/manuels didactiques	guías/libros de planes de estudios
integrated community programmes	programmes communautaires intégrés	programas integrados de la comunidad
integrated programming	programmation intégrée	programación integrada
intellectual/language development	développement intellectuel/ du language	desarrollo del inteligencia/lenguaje
intergovernmental agencies	agences intergouvernementales	agencias intergubernamentales
international NGOs	ONG internationales	ONGs internacionales
issue-oriented documents/dossiers	documents/dossiers thématiques	documentos/legajos con temas específicos
leadership training	formation d'animateurs	entrenamiento de líderes



learning difficulties	troubles d'acquisitioin des connaissances	trastornos del adquisición conocimiento
legal services	services juridiques	servicios juridicos
library	bibliothèque	biblioteca
literacy	alphabétisation	alfabetización
literate	personnes sachant lire et écrire	instruídos
meetings/workshops	réunions/colloques	reuniones/talleres
men	hommes	hombres
membership fees	cotisations	cotizaciónes
mental health	santé mentale	salud mental
migrants	migrants	migrantes
minorities	minorités	minorias
mother & infant welfare	soins de la mère et du nourisson	salud materno/infantil
multicultural communities	communautés multiculturelles	comunidades multiculturales
multiculturalism	multiculturalisme	multiculturalismo
national government	gouvernement national	gobierno nacional
national/local NGOs	ONG nationales/locales	ONGs nacionales/locales
networking	contacts/partenariat	companerismo
non-formal centre-based programmes	programmes de centres informels	programas en centros no formales
nutrition education	éducation nutritionnelle	educación nutriciónal
nutrition/feeding programmes	nutrition/programmes alimentaires	nutrición/programas de alimentación
oral rehydration	rehydratation orale	rehidratación por via oral
orphans	enfants orphelins	huerfanos
outreach programmes/extension work	programmes externes/ vulgarisation	programas al exterior/de extension
paraprofessionals	paraprofessionnels	paraprofessionales
parent-based preschool/care	accueil/crèches parentales	guarderias/assistenci a parentales
parent-to-be	futurs parents	futuros padres
Parent-to-Parent programmes	programmes Parents à Parents	programas de Padres a Padres
parent/caregiver education	éducation des parents/aides	educación para padres/personas que cuidan a los niños
parent/child interaction, stimulation	interactions parents/enfants, éveil	relaciones padres/niños, estimulación
parent/community programmes	programmes pour parents/ communautés	programas para padres/ comunidades
parents	parents	padres



parents' groups	groupements de parents	grupos de padres
parents of disabled children	parents d'enfants handicapés	padres de niños impedidos
parents with disabilities/AIDS	parents handicapés/séropositifs	padres minusvalidos/con SIDA
partners	partenaires	socios
partnership building	développement du partenariat	desarrollo del campanerismo
periodicals/journals	périodiques	publicaciónes periodicas
physical development	développement physique	desarrollo fisico
physical upgrading	amélioration de l'habitat	mejoramiento de habitat
policy	politiques	políticas
policy advocacy	soutien de politiques	apoyo de políticas
policy development	élaboration de politiques	elaboración de políticas
policy implementation	exécution de politiques	ejecución de políticas
policy monitoring	suivi de politiques	observación de políticas
policymakers	décideurs politiques	líderes politicos
poor communities	communautés pauvres	comunidades pobres
poor families	familles pauvres	familias pobres
population policy	politique démographique	política de población
preschool education	éducation préscolaire	educación pre-escolar
primary health care	soins de santé primaires	atención primaria de la salud
professional associations	associations professionnelles	asociaciónes profesionales
professionals	professionnels	profesionales
programme/project design	élaboration de programmes/ projets	diseno de programas/proyectos
programme/project evaluation	évaluation de programmes/ projets	s evaluación de programas/ proyectos
programme/project funding	financement de programmes/ projets	financiamiento de programas/ proyectos
programme/project implementatio	n exécution de programmes/ projets	s ejecución de programas/proyectos
programmes/projects	programmes/projects	programas/proyectos
project funding/cofinancing	financement/cofinancement de projets	financiamiento/cofinanciamiento de proyectos
provision of equipment/supplies	fourniture d'équipement/ matériels	s proporcionamiento de equipo/ materiales
provision of services	fourniture de services	prestación de servicios
publications	publications	publicaciones
publications service	service de publications	servicios de publicaciones
publications/materials	publications/matériels	publicaciónes/materiales



publications/materials design	conception de publications/ matériels	diseno de publicaciónes/materiales
publications/materials distribution	distribution de publications/ matériels	distribución de publicaciones/ materiales
publications/materials evaluation	évaluation de publications/ matériels	evaluación de publicaciones/ materiales
publications/materials preparation	préparation de publications/ matériels	desarrollo de publicaciones/ materiales
radio/television/media programmes	programmes de radio/télévision/ média	programas de radio/televisión/ media
recreational facilities	installations de loisirs	instalaciones de recreación
reference documents (directories, bibliographies)	documents de référence (répertoires, bibliographies)	documentos de referencia (directorios, bibliográficas)
refugee children	enfants réfugiés	niños refugiados
refugees	réfugiés	refugiados
rehabilitation	reéducation	reeducación
religious organizations	organisations religieuses	organizaciónes religiosas
research	recherche	investigación
research institutes	instituts de recherches	centros de investigación
research/conferences reports	rapports de recherche/ conférences	informes sobre investigaciónes/ conferencias
research/consultancy services	études/consultations	investigaciónes/consultas
responsible parenthood	parents responsables	padres responsibilidades
rural areas and villages	zones rurales et villages	zonas rurales y aldeas
rural communities	communautés rurales	comunidades rurales
rural development	développement rural	desarrollo rural
schools/universities	écoles/universités	escuelas/universidades
services	services	servicios
siblings	frères/soeurs	hermaños
single-parent families	familles monoparentales	familias monoparentales
skills training	développement des compétences	formación de competencias
slums	bidonvilles	tugurios
smail enterprise development	développement des petites entreprises	desarrollo de pequeñas empresas
social development	développement social	desarrollo social
social marketing	marketing social	marketing social
social mobilization	mobilisation sociale	movilización social



REST CORY MAILAR IN

social services	services sociaux	servicios sociales
social welfare	bien-être social	bienestar social
sociocultural environment	environnement socio-culturel	ambiente sociocultural
socioeconomic environment	environnement socio-économique	ambiente socioeconómico
special education	éducation spéciale	educación especial
street children	enfants des rues	niños de calles
suburbs	banlieues	alrededores
teaching aids/kits	dossiers/auxiliaires éducatifs	documentos/medios de ensenanza
technical services	services techniques	servicios técnicos
teenage parents	parents adolescents	padres adolescentes
teenage pregnancy	grossesse adolescente	embarazo adolescente
textbooks/publications	manuels/ouvrages	libros de texto/publicaciónes
towns and small cities	petites/moyennes villes	ciudades pequenas/medianas
toys/recreational materials	jouets/matériel éducatif	juguetes/materiales educativos
trade unions	syndicats	sindicatos
traditional support systems	systèmes traditionnels de soutien	sistemas tradiciónales de apoyo
training	formation	formación
training of caregivers	formation d' aides	formación de personas que cuidan a los niños
training of paraprofessionals	formation de paraprofessionnels	formación de paraprofessionales
training of parents	formation de parents	formación de padres
training of professionals	formation de professionnels	formación de profesionales
training of students	formation d'étudiants	formación de estudiantes
training of trainers	formation de formateurs	formación de educatores
training organizations	organismes de formation	organizaciónes de capacitación
training/workshops	formation/ateliers	formación/talleres
UNIngencies	agences des Nations Unies	agencias de Naciones Unidas
UN Convention on the Child	Convention des Nations Unies sur l'Enfant	Convención de Naciones Unidas sobre el Niño
unemployed	chômeurs	desempleados
university courses/programmes	programmes/cours universitaires	cursos/programas universitarios
urban communities	communautés urbaines	comunidades urbanas
voluntary services	services bénévoles	servicios voluntarios
water & environmental sanitation	assaınıssement de l'eau/ l'environnement	saneamiento del agua/medio ambiente
weaning practices	sevrage	destete



women	femmes	mujeres
women's groups	groupements de femmes	grupos femeninas
women's programmes	programmes pour les femmes	programas femeninas
working parents	parents travaillant	padres que trabajan
workplace childcare	accueil/crèches en entreprises	guarderias/assistenci a en ambiente de trabajo
youth	jeunes	jovenes
youth groups	groupements de jeunes	grupos juveniles
youth programmes	programmes pour les jeunes	programas juveniles



PROFILES OF ORGANIZATIONS



ALGERIA

Children under 5	Under 5 mortality	Malnurished childre
(thousands)	rate	under 5 (%)
1993	1993	1992 a/
4000	68	9
Male literacy	Female literacy	Total fertility
rate (%)	rate (%)	rate per woman
1995	1995	1993
74	49	4.8
GNP per	Access to health	Access to
capita (US\$)	care services (%)	safe water (%)
1992 Ы	1985-93	1988-93
1840	88	68
Pre-primary	Pre-primary gross	Convention on the
age group	enrolment ratio (%)	Rights of the Child
1991	1991	ratified
5	3	16/05/1993

DZ801

ASSOCIATION ALGERIENNE ENFANCE ET FAMILLES D'ACCUEIL BENEVOLE (AAEFAB)

Algerian Childhood and Volunteer Foster Families Association

Immeuble Casoral, 27 rue Mohamed Fellah, Kouba Alger Algeria

Telephone: (213-2) 581575 Fax: (213-2) 581575

Contact: Président - Témi Tidafi

Founded: 1985

Aims: To defend the moral and material interests specific to volunteer foster families. To contribute, in cooperation with governmental agencies, to the development and improvement of the care of children deprived of families. To provide information on foster care and raise awareness of issues related to children without families. To promote with the national authorities respect for the rights of children, in particular their right to have a family. To help provide assistance in case of unwanted pregnancies.

Active in: Algeria

Actions in Algeria

Research: data collection/surveys -

Training: training of paraprofessionals - training of caregivers · training of parents ·

Programmes/projects: programme/project design ·

Services: development of services provision of services

Networking: institution building/support · information exchange ·

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: Union des Associations Maghrébines de Protection de l'Enfance, Fédération Européenne Enfance-Adoption-Accueil, FICEMEA (France)

Target communities: towns & small cities - capital or large cities ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: early childhood development ·

Child care & education: institutionalized children preschool education ·

Child at risk: child abuse/neglect · orphans ·

Child advocacy: child protection child legislation children's rights ·

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child family

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: family services:

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education

Target groups: family in urban setting .

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services community-based preschool/care

Community advocacy: children's rights child protection

Target groups: urban communities · children · families

Services & Information

Services: care services · documentation/information services radio/television/media programmes information campaigns:

Information Activities

in Algeria: awareness raising/advocacy conferences/seminars training/workshops

Publications: textbooks/publications institution's activities reports ·

DZ002

UNION POUR LA DEFENCE ET LA PROTECTION DES DEFFICIENTS MENTAUX DE LA WALAYA DE TLEMCEN (UDPDM)

Union for the Defence and Protection of Mentally Disabled of the Walaya of Tlemcen

7 rue Bezar Mohamed Tlemcen Algeria

Telephone: (213-7) 263611

Contact: Mohamed Tadlaoui

Founded: 1988

Staff: 17 salaried · 12 non-salaried ·

Aims: To provide rehabilation and vocational training for mentally disabled children and adolescents. To create psycho-pedagogical centres, vouth centres, vocational training centres and work centres.

Active in: Algeria

Actions in Algeria

Research: development of models/methods/materials Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of students

Policy: policy development

Programmes/projects: programme/project design ·

Services: provision of services

Publications/materials: publications/materials design ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development disabilities · early intervention

Child care & education: formal childcare centres disabled children rehabilitation preschool education ·



Child at risk: developmental difficulties · emotional difficulties · learning difficulties · child abuse/neglect

Child advocacy: children's rights

Target groups: 4-6 years child child in urban setting child in multicultural setting boys girls professionals · paraprofessionals · policymakers ·

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: formal preschool/care community-based preschool/care Community development & awareness: awareness & involvement: formal

Target groups: policymakers · community leaders ·

Services & Information

Services: counselling/guidance services · care services documentation/information services radio/television/media programmes

Information Activities

conferences/seminars Algeria: in training/workshops

Materials: toys/recreational materials ·

DJIBOUTI

Children under 5	Under 5 mortality	Malnourished children
(thousands) 1993	rate 1993	under 5 (%) 1992 a/
77	158	23*
Male literacy	Female literacy	Total fertility
rate (%)	rate (%)	rate per woman
1995	1995	1993
60	33	6.6
GNP per	Access to health	Access to
capita (US\$)	care services (%)	safe water (%)
1992 b/	1985-93	1988-93
1210	37	43
Pre-primary	Pre-primary gross	Convention on the
age group	enrolment ratio (%)	Rights of the Child
1991	1991	ratified
5	1	05/01/1991

DJ003 ASSOCIATION MERE ET ENFANT

Mother and Child Association

Route de l'Aviation, BP 320 Djibouti Djibouti

Telephone: (253) 353427

Contact: Amina Ahmed Founded: 1978 Staff: 65 salaried

Aims: To provide care, development and education services for orphans and children from disadvantaged social milieux (disabled parents and other social cases).

Active in: Djibouti

Actions in Djibouti

Services: development of services provision of services

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: health care · Child care & education: preschool education · Child at risk: orphans ·

Family Programmes

Family at risk: poor families parents with disabilities/AIDS

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services

Services & Information Services: care services

DJ004 ECOLE MATERNELLE LA FARANDOLE

La Farandole Nursery School

Q. Djebel Ambouli, BP 1896 Djibouti Djibouti

Telephone: (253) 340011

Contact: Sylvie David

Founded: 1991 Staff: 4 salaried

Aims: To develop the intellectual, manual and spatial capacities of young children. To give them the pleasure of speaking their own native language in preparing them to learn French.

Active in: Djibouti

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: early childhood

development ·

Child care & education: preschool education

Target groups: 4-6 years child ·

DJ005 ECOLE MATERNELLE LA NATIVITE

La Nativité Nursery School

Plateau du Serpent, BP 53 Djibouti Djibouti

Telephone: (253) 350972

Contact: Soeur Marie Claire

Founded: 1960 Staff: 4 salaried

Aims: To enable children to learn to be creative, to cooperate, to solve problems, to share, to be sociable, to play and to grow.

Active in: Djibouti

Young Child Programmes
Child health & development: early childhood

development

Child care & education: preschool education ·

Target groups: 4-6 years child -

DJ006 UNION NATIONALE DES FEMMES DE DJIBOUTI (UNFD)

National Women's Union of Djibouti

BP 127 Djibo 4 Djibouti

Contact: Secrétaire Générale - Kaltoum Mead

Founded: 1977 Staff: 26 salaried

Annual budget: US\$ 20000

Aims: To reduce the rate of adult female illeteracy. To improve mother and child health. To help women have access to paid employment. To help improve daily household work conditions. To strengthen women's groups.

Active in: Djibouti

Actions in Djibouti

Training: training of trainers—training of parents—
Programmes/projects: programme/project
implementation programme/project evaluation
Networking: institution building/support—information

exchange meetings/workshops



Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: national/local NGOs · international NGOs · governmental agencies · UN agencies ·

Target communities: rural areas & villages towns & small cities · eapital or large cities ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: health care nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: infant care preschool

education ·

Target groups: family .

Family Programmes
Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare primary health care · household food security · Family education & awareness: child-rearing practices literacy weaning practices Target groups: women · community ·

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services social welfare · voluntary services ·

Community development & awareness: water & environmental sanitation · skills training · awareness raising

Community livelihood: women's programmes income-generation activities rural development · environmental protection ·

Target groups: families -

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services research/consultancy services :

Information Activities

- in Djibouti: information/inquiry services raising/advocacy awareness conferences/seminars · training/workshops ·



42

EGYPT

Children under 5	Under 5 mortality	Malnourished childrer
(thousands)	rate	under 5 (%)
1993	1993	1992 a/
7700	59	9
Male literacy	Female literacy	Total fertility
rate (%)	rate (%)	rate per woman
1995	1995	1993
64	39	4.1
GNP per	Access to health	Access to
capita (US\$)	care services (%)	safe water (%)
1992 b/	1985-93	1988-93
640	99	90
Pre-primary	Pre-primary gross	Convention on the
age group	enrolment ratio (%)	Rights of the Child
1991	1991	retified
4-5	7	02/09/1990

EG007

ARAB COUNCIL FOR CHILDHOOD AND DEVELOPMENT (ACCD)

Conseil Arabe de l'Enfance et du Développement

P.O. Box 15 Orman - Cairo Egypt

Telephone: (20-2) 3405196 / 3408011

Telex: 20783 Aboltd Un Fax: (20-2) 3408013 Cable: TOFOULA

Contact: Programs Coordinator - Kawthar Abu Ghazaleh

Founded: 1987 Staff: 25 salaried

Annual budget: US\$ 1000000

Grant-making: (60% of annual budget) in Egypt in other countries

Aims: To identify the current and future needs, and priorities of the Arab child, and establish a comprehensive action plan to attain these needs. To increase public and family awareness of childhood issues and problems through social mobilization. To elaborate innovative programmes and activities in favour of the Arab child. To assist in developing national capacities in the domain of child care, with emphasis on augmenting the institutional capabilities of existing grassroots projects through increased self-reliance. To respond to the urgent needs of children in distress throughout the region.

Active in: Egypt, Algeria, Bahrain, Djibouti, Iraq, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Libyan Arab Jamahiriya, Mauritania, Morocco, Oman, Palestine, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, Somalia, Sudan, Syria, Tunisia, United Arab Emirates, Yemen

Actions in Egypt

Research: basic research applied research data collection/surveys development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of trainers.

Policy: policy development policy advocacy policy.

Policy: policy development policy advocacy policy monitoring

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services · provision of services ·

Publications/materials: publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation

Networking: institution building/support information exchange project funding/cofinancing meetings/workshops

Actions in other countries

Research: basic research applied research data collection/surveys development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of trainers

Policy: policy development policy advocacy policy monitoring

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services provision of services

Publications/materials: publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation

Networking: institution building/support information exchange project funding/cofinancing meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Member organizations: yes Individual members: 250

Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies. UN agencies training organizations research institutes.

Target communities: rural areas & villages · slums · towns & small cities · capital or large cities ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities early childhood development early intervention mental health

Child care & education: home-based programmes · disabled children · preschool education · special education · foster care ·

Child at risk: child labour street children refugee children children of war/conflict

Child advocacy: children's rights -

Target groups: 0-1 year infant 2-3 years child 4-6 years child child in rural setting child in urban setting child in multicultural setting boys girls parents professionals paraprofessionals policymakers family

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare Family education & awareness: parent/child interaction, stimulation

Family at risk: refugees -

Family advocacy: family protection - human rights -Target groups: parents of disabled children - women professionals - paraprofessionals - policymakers -

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: communitybased preschool/care

Community development & awareness: awareness raising

Community livelihood: environmental protection · Community advocacy: children's rights · human rights



Target groups: children · parents ·

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services research/consultancy services outreach programmes/extension work ·

Information Activities

- in Egypt: documentation centre · library · conferences/seminars training/workshops computerized information service

EG008 ASSUIT DISABLED CHILD CARE AND **DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION**

Association d'Assuit pour les Soins et le Développement de l'Enfant Handicapé

PO Box 65, Elfath Building Assuit Egypt

Contact: Board Chairman - Dr Galal Zaki Saeed

Founded: 1991

Staff: 139 salaried · 15 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 170893

Aims: To provide quick and effective response to the needs of the disabled child from the social and health point of view. To carry out social and health education. co-operate with governmental and nongovernmental agencies. To offer health and rehabilitation care for disabled children. To provide medical services for children in villages.

Active in: Egypt

Actions in Egypt

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of caregivers training of parents · training of students ·

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation

Networking: institution building/support

Co-operation/Partnership Partners: national/local NGOs · international NGOs · UN agencies · foundations ·

Target communities: rural areas & villages · towns & small cities suburbs

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: social development physical development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities · health care ·

Child care & education: disabled children . rehabilitation :

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child child in rural setting child in urban setting boys girls parents paraprofessionals family ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: primary health care - family

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education nutrition education health education literacy

Target groups: family in rural setting - family in urban setting parents of disabled children women paraprofessionals community

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services health services · home visits

Community development & awareness: community health water & environmental sanitation awareness raising

Community livelihood: small enterprise development human resource development · leadership training · income-generation activities rural development environmental protection ·

Target groups: rural communities - children - parents -

families ·

Services & Information

Services: care services · documentation/information services · outreach programmes/extension work ·

Information Activities

- in Egypt: training/workshops ·

EG009 LES CHIFFONIERS DU CAIRE

The Ragmen of Cairo

Collège de La Salle Daher Post Office, BP 12 Cairo 11563 Egypt

Telephone: (20-2) 5105756 / 5128194

Fax: (20-2) 5128194

Contact: Soeur Sara

Founded: 1977

Staff: 300 salaried · 30 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 1000000

Grant-making: (28% of annual budget) in Egypt ·

Aims: To undertake development actions in favour of the ragmen of Cairo.

Active in: Egypt

Actions in Egypt

Research: development of models/methods/materials Training: training of parents - training of students -Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation ·

Services: development of services provision of

services

Networking: institution building/support · information project funding/cofinancing exchange meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: national/local NGOs · international NGOs training organizations schools/universities religious organizations · parents' groups ·

Target communities: slums

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth · childhood disabilities · health care · early childhood development early intervention mental health oral rehydration nutrition/feeding programmes :

Child care & education: formal childcare centres recreational facilities - infant care - disabled children preschool education · special education multiculturalism · foster care · child safety ·

Child at risk: behavioural difficulties emotional difficulties · learning difficulties · child pornography · child labour · children with special needs



PROFILES: EGYPT (EG)

Child advocacy: child protection · child legislation · children's rights · UN Convention on the Child · Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 4-6 years child ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare primary health care · family planning · teenage pregnancy · household food security · family services health centres - family guidance - family support

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education child-rearing practices parent/child interaction, stimulation father's role nutrition education - health education - responsible parenthood

parent-to-be literacy

Family at risk: minorities single-parent families teenage parents poor families unemployed

Family advocacy: family protection - family legislation health protection - human rights -

Target groups: professionals - policymakers -

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services health services · social welfare · home visits voluntary services youth programmes workplace childcare formal preschool/care community-based preschool/care - parent-based preschool/care -

Community development awareness: socioeconomic environment physical upgrading community health - water & environmental sanitation social mobilization infrastructure development skills training - awareness raising - social marketing -

Community livelihood: small enterprise development : human resource development - leadership training women's programmes rural development environmental protection -

Community advocacy: health policy population policy - child protection -

Target groups: rural communities · poor communities · children vouth parents families professionals policymakers - community leaders -

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services - care services documentation/information services research/consultancy services - technical services radio/television/media programmes information campaigns hotline, help/support services ·

Information Activities

in Egypt: awareness raising/advocacy documentation centre library audio-visual conferences/seminars service training/workshops -

Publications: textbooks/publications periodicals/journals -

Materials: audio-visual (films/videos/slides/posters) - teaching aids/kits tovs/recreational materials -

EG010 CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL

Hôpital pour les Enfants

Ain Shams University Abbassya Cairo Egypt

Telephone: (20-2) 820633

Contact: Director - Prof. Hamed Mahoud Shatla

Founded: 1946

Annual budget: US\$ 353357

Aims: To undertake teaching, medical care and research in the field of pediatrics.

Active in: Egypt, Middle East

Actions in Egypt

Research: basic research - applied research -Training: training of professionals Policy: policy development - policy advocacy programme/project Programmes/projects:

implementation programme/project evaluation

Networking: institution building/support

Actions in other countries

Research: basic research - applied research -Policy: policy development policy advocacy Programmes/projects: programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation Networking: institution building/support

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: Mediterranean Pediatric Association

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: childhood disabilities health care early childhood development nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: infant care · institutionalized children

Child at risk: child abuse/neglect -Child advocacy: children's rights -

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare -Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education - child-rearing practices - parent/child interaction, stimulation :

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services: Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment awareness raising

Community advocacy: children's rights ·

Services & Information

Services: advisory ĸ support services documentation/information services -

Information Activities

- in Egypt: information/inquiry service - awareness raising/advocacy documentation centre library audio-visual service publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops computerized information service -

in other countries: information/inquiry service : awareness raising/advocacy documentation centre · library · audio-visual service · publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops - computerized information

service

DEPARTMENT OF CHILD EDUCATION

Département d'Education de l'Enfant

Girls College, Ain Shams University Heleopolis Cairo Egypt

Telephone: (20-2) 666052

Contact: Chairman - Prof. Saad Abdel Rahman



Staff: 20 salaried ·

Aims: To undertake graduate research, offer teaching programmes and consultations in the field of child education.

Active in: Egypt

Actions in Egypt

Research: basic research -

Training: training of professionals - training of students -

Programmes/projects: programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: childhood disabilities - early childhood development

Child care & education: institutionalized children preschool education

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare
Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver
education parent/child interaction, stimulation

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services - university courses/programmes - research/consultancy services -

EG012 EGYPTIAN FERTILITY CARE SOCIETY (EFCS)

Société Egyptienne de Fertilité

2(A) El Mahrouki Street, Mohandessin Cairo Egypt

Telephone: (202) 3470674 **Fax**: (202) 3468782 **Cable**: Fertility, Cairo

Contact: Executive Director - Prof. Ezzeldin Osman Hassan

Founded: 1974

Staff: 21 salaried · 10 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 250000

Aims: To promote maternal and child health through the promotion of child spacing, fertility management and care.

Active in: Egypt, Arab States, Iran, Turkey, Syria, Yemen, Sudan, Tunisia, Jordan

Actions in Egypt

Research: applied research - data collection/surveys - development of models/methods/materials -

 Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of trainers training of caregivers

Policy: policy advocacy policy implementation

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Services: development of services Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation

Networking: information exchange meetings/workshops

Actions in other countries

Networking: information exchange meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership Individual members: 264

Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies. UN agencies research institutes schools/universities hospitals/medical centres professional associations foundations women's groups.

Target communities: rural areas & villages - slums - towns & small cities - capital or large cities -

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: health care

Child care & education: infant care

Target groups: 0-1 year infant | child in rural setting | girls | parents | professionals | policymakers | family |

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare

primary health care - family planning

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education child-rearing practices parent/child interaction, stimulation father's role nutrition education health education responsible parenthood parent-to-be literacy weaning practices

Family at risk: poor families + unemployed + parents with disabilities/AIDS +

Family advocacy: family protection - health protection

Target groups: family in rural setting illiterate women professionals paraprofessionals policymakers community

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services traditional support systems health services voluntary services

Community development & awareness: socioeconomic environment community health water & environmental sanitation infrastructure development skills training awareness raising

Community livelihood: credit systems, savings human resource development leadership training women's programmes rural development environmental protection

Target groups: rural communities poor communities parents families professionals paraprofessionals policymakers community leaders

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services | legal services | care services | documentation/information services | research/consultancy services | technical services | radio/television/media | programmes | information campaigns |

Information Activities

 in Egypt: information/inquiry services—awareness raising/advocacy documentation centre—library andio-visual service—publications service conferences/seminars—training/workshops—computerized information service—

Publications: textbooks/publications periodicals/journals research/conferences reports - Materials: audio-visual aids

(films/videos/slides/posters) ·



EG013 EGYPTIAN SAVE THE CHILDREN (E/SCF)

Sauvez les Enfants Egypte

P.O. Box 5854 Hilioplis West | Cairo 11771 | Egypt

Telephone: (20-2) 2438273 / 2427534

Fax: (20-2) 3540261

Contact: General Director - Mohamed A. Hassan

Founded: 1982

Staff: 8 salaried · 10 non-salaried ·

Aims: To establish integrated service centres concentrating on programmes of benefit to infants and children. To promote improved mother and infant welfare as well as community development programmes.

Active in: Egypt

Actions in Egypt

Training: training of professionals - training of trainers - training of caregivers - training of parents -

Policy: policy development

Networking: institution building/support -

Co-operation/Partnership Local branches/offices: 4

Young Child Programmes

Child care & education: infant care · preschool education ·

Child advocacy: children's rights -

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare Family education & awareness: child-rearing practices

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment awareness raising

Community advocacy: children's rights -

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services documentation/information services

Information Activities

 in Egypt: information/inquiry service | library | conferences/seminars | training/workshops |

EG014 FACULTY OF SOCIAL WORK

Facul**t**é de Travail Social

University of Helwan 3 Kamal El-Dine Salah Street, Garden City — Cairo Egypt

Telephone: (20-2) 3549230 Telex: 21682 HEUN-UN Fax: (20-2) 3455461 Cable: Social Cairo

Contact: Dean - Di Abdul Halim Reda

Founded: 1946

Staff: 141 salaried ·

Annual budget: US\$ 398849

Grant-making: in Egypt in other countries

Aims: To provide social work training at undergraduate and postgraduate levels.

Active in: Egypt, Arab States

Actions in Egypt

Research: basic research applied research

Training: training of professionals - training of trainers

training of caregivers training of parents Policy: policy development policy advocacy

Programmes/projects: programme/project

implementation · programme/project evaluation ·

Networking: institution building/support

Actions in other countries

Research: basic research - applied research -

Training: training of professionals - training of trainers

training of caregivers training of parents

Networking: institution building/support

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: early childhood

development :

Child care & education: non-formal centre-based

programmes · institutionalized children ·

Child at risk: child abuse/neglect

Child advocacy: children's rights -

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare :

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education child-rearing practices parent/child

interaction, stimulation · Family at risk: single-parent families ·

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services Community development & awareness: sociocultural

environment socioeconomic environment awareness raising

Community advocacy: children's rights -

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services

documentation/information services

Information Activities

 in Egypt: information/inquiry service - awareness raising/advocacy - documentation centre - library audio-visual service - publications service conferences/seminars - training/workshops

EG015 INSTITUTE OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS - MIDDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRICA (ICA)

Institut des Affaires Culturelles - Moyen-Orient et Afrique du Nord

c/o IBA, 1079 Corniche El Nil Cairo Fgypt

Telephone: (20-2) 3503009 Fax: (20-2) 3504055 attn ICA

Contact: Director of Community Programmes

Mohamed Yasin Ahmed

Founded: 1976

Staff: 13 salaried : 65 non-salaried : Annual budget: US\$ 400000



Grant-making: (100% of annual budget) in Egypt

Aims: To strengthen local community organizations and assist international agencies and government departments to meet the real development needs of the community.

Active in: Egypt, Jordan, Sudan

Actions in Egypt

Research: applied research -

Training: training of professionals · training of trainers training of caregivers · training of parents

Policy: policy advocacy

Programmes/projects: programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation Networking: institution building/support

Actions in other countries

Training: training of professionals:

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: Institute of Cultural Affairs International (Belgium)

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: childhood di abilities : health care :

Child care & education: preschool education

Family Programmes

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment awareness raising

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services documentation/information services

Information Activities

 in Egypt: awareness raising/advocacy documentation centre publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops

- in other countries: training/workshops -

EG016 INSTITUTE OF POST-GRADUATE CHILDHOOD STUDIES

Institut d'Etudes Supérieures sur l'Enfance

Ain Shams University 7 El-Aspagh Street El-Zyton Cairo Egypt

Telephone: (20-2) 2413498 Fax: (20-2) 2413498

Contact: Prof. Saadia Mohamed Bahader

Founded: 1981 Staff: 35 salaried

Annual budget: US\$ 60000

Aims: To conduct research on child development (physical, psychological, social). To offer M.A. and Ph.D. degrees in the field of childhood studies to form the elite nucleus staff of similar institutes and colleges. To prepare experts in the field of child studies who will help the government in establishing programmes to spread child culture on a scientific basis. To establish

scientific and academic relations with similar centres and institutes in the Arab World and in other countries.

Active in: Egypt

Actions in Egypt

Research: basic research applied research data collection/surveys development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of caregivers training of students

Policy: policy implementation -

Services: development of services provision of services

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation

Networking: meetings/workshops -

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: governmental agencies · research institutes · schools/universities · hospitals/medical centres ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities health care immunization early childhood development early intervention mental health nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: preschool education

Child at risk: developmental difficulties—behavioural difficulties—emotional difficulties—learning difficulties—child abuse/neglect—child labour—street children—children with special needs

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child · child in rural setting · child in urban setting · boys · girls · parents · siblings · family ·

Family Programmes

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services health services

Target groups: children parents professionals policymakers

Services & Information

Services: counselling/guidance services documentation/information services university courses/programmes research/consultancy services radio/television/media programmes

Information Activities

in Egypt: information/inquiry services | library | publications | service | conferences/seminars | training/workshops

Publications: textbooks/publications institution's activities reports research/conferences reports

EG017 SOCIAL RESEARCH CENTER (SRC)

Centre de Recherche Sociale

American University in Cairo 113 Kasr el Aini, PO Box 2511 11511 Cairo | Egypt

Telephone: (20-2) 3576942



Telex: 92224 AUCAI UN Fax: (20-2) 3557298

E-mail: sznagi@auc-acs.eun.eg

Contact: Director - Dr Saad Z. Naqi Founded: 1952

Staff: 35 salaried · 10 non-salaried ·

Aims: Conduct and encourage multi-disciplinary research in the social sciences and social policy in Egypt and the Middle East. To focus studies on such areas as fertility and family planning: migration, settlement of reclaimed land, and other aspects of change in population; the dynamics of poverty: social and economic support systems; social epidemiology; and health and human services. To seek to address topics of particular importance to developing societies.

Active in: Egypt, Middle East

Actions in Egypt

Research: basic research applied research data collection/surveys development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of professionals training of students

Policy: policy development

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Services: development of services Publications/materials: publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution

Networking: institution building/support information exchange meetings/workshops

Actions in other countries

Networking: information exchange meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: governmental agencies UN agencies research institutes schools/universities hospitals/medical centres

Target communities: rural areas & villages : slums : towns & small cities : suburbs : capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: childhood diseases/growth oral rehydration

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child · child in rural setting · child in urban setting · parents · policymakers ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare: Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education:

Target groups: family in rural setting · family in urban setting · policymakers · community ·

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: health services - social welfare

Community development & awareness: socioeconomic environment community health water & environmental sanitation social mobilization awareness raising

Community livelihood: small enterprise development credit systems, savings human resource development women's programmes incomegeneration activities rural development environmental protection

Community advocacy: health policy population

Target groups: rural communities urban communities poor communities policymakers community leaders

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services research/consultancy services

Information Activities

- in Egypt: conferences/seminars training/workshops

Publications: instructional guides/manuals textbooks/publications institution's activities reports periodicals/journals research/conferences reports



JORDAN

Children under 5	Under 5 mortality	Malnourished childre
(thousands)	rate	under 5 (%)
1993	1993	1992 a/
800	27	6
Male literacy	Female literacy	Total fertility
rate (%)	rate (%)	rate per woman
1995	1995	1993
93	79	5.7
GNP per	Access to health	Access to
cepite (US\$)	care services (%)	safe water (%)
1992 b/	1985-93	1988-93
1120	97	99
Pre-primary	Pre-primary gross	Convention on the
age group	enrolment ratio (%)	Rights of the Child
1991	1991	ratified
4.5	21	23/06/1991

JO018 GENERAL UNION OF VOLUNTARY SOCIETIES (GUVS)

Union Générale des Sociétés Bénévoles

P.O. Box 1350 Amman Jordan

Telephone: (962-6) 630398 Fax: (962-6) 659973

Contact: Munawar Khrais

Founded: 1958

Staff: 3500 salaried · 46000 non-salaried ·

Grant-making: (85% of annual budget) in Jordan

Aims: To draw up the general policy for the activities of NGOs in collaboration with the Ministry of Social Development. To draw plans for financing NGOs and their projects and activities. To train local leaders, social workers and volunteers. To ensure the exchange of information on social services.

Active in: Jordan

Actions in Jordan

Research: basic research applied research data collection/surveys development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of trainers training of caregivers

Policy: policy development - policy monitoring - policy implementation -

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services provision of services

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation

Networking: institution building/support information exchange project funding/cofinancing meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership Local branches/offices: 8 Individual members: 50000 Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies UN agencies training organizations research institutes schools/universities hospitals/medical centres professional associations community groups foundations women's groups

Target communities: rural areas & villages · slums · towns & small cities · capital or large cities ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities health care early childhood development mental health nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: non-formal centre-based programmes formal childcare centres recreational facilities infant care disabled children rehabilitation preschool education special education

Child at risk: learning difficulties child abuse/neglect child labour street children refugee children orphans children with special needs children of war/conflict.

Child advocacy: children's rights · UN Convention on the Child

Target groups: 0-1 year infant - 2-3 years child - 4-6 years child - child in rural setting - child in urban setting - parents - family -

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare primary health care—family planning—household food security—family services—health centres—family guidance—

Family education & awareness: child-rearing practices parent/child interaction, stimulation health education responsible parenthood literacy

Family at risk: refugees poor families migrants unemployed

Family advocacy: family protection - health protection

Target groups: parents of disabled children - illiterate -

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services traditional support systems health services social welfare home visits voluntary services formal preschool/care community-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: awareness raising

Community livelihood: small enterprise development credit systems, savings human resource development leadership training women's programmes income-generation activities rural development environmental protection

Community advocacy: health policy population policy children's rights child protection

Target groups: rural communities : urban communities : refugees : poor communities : children : youth : families : community leaders :

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services connselling/guidance services care services documentation/information services research/consultancy services outreach programmes/extension work technical services radio/television/media programmes hotline, help/support services

Information Activities

 in Jordan: information/inquiry services - awareness raising/advocacy - documentation centre - library audio-visual service - publications service - conferences/seminars training/workshops computerized information service

Publications: textbooks/publications institution's activities reports research/conferences reports reference documents (directories, bibliographies)

JO019 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (HUDC)

Office du Logement et du Développement Urbain

P.O. Box 2110 927198 Amman Jordan

Telephone: (962-6) 644307 / 899361 Telex: 22024 HOUS JO / 22249 UDD JO

Fax: (962-6) 628930 / 883197

Contact: Director General - Yousef Hiassat

Founded: 1965

Staff: 515 salaried · 65 non-salaried ·

Aims: To provide low cost housing schemes affordable for low income households. To upgrade low services areas. To undertake complementary programmes in community development. To provide educational, health and community facilities.

Active in: Jordan

Actions in Jordan

Research: basic research applied research data collection/surveys development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of trainers - training of students - Policy: policy development - policy advocacy - policy monitoring - policy implementation -

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services provision of services:

Networking: institution building/support · information exchange · meetings/workshops ·

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies training organizations research institutes schools/universities community groups foundations

Target communities: slums towns & small cities capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development immunization early childhood development.

Child care & education: home-based programmes non-formal centre-based programmes recreational facilities preschool education special education

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: primary health care - health centres

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education health education literacy

Family at risk: poor families unemployed

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services health services social welfare home visits

voluntary services—youth programmes—formal preschool/care—community-based preschool/care—

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment · socioeconomic environment · physical upgrading · community health · water & environmental sanitation · social mobilization · infrastructure development · skills training · awareness raising ·

Community livelihood: small enterprise development human resource development - women's programmes

Target groups: urban communities:

Services & Information

Services: legal services care services research/consultancy services provision of equipment/supplies outreach programmes/extension work technical services

JO020 INSTITUTE FOR CHILD HEALTH AND DEVELOPMENT / NOOR AL HUSSEIN FOUNDATION

Institut pour la Santé et le Développement de l'Enfant Fondation Noor Al Hussein

P.O. Box 955 Sweileh Jordan

Telephone: (962-6) 844190 / 844191 / 844192

Telex: 23694 SSCRB JO Fax: (962-6) 685298

Contact: Institute Director - Dr Hind Dawani

Founded: 1986 Staff: 20 salaried

Annual budget: US\$ 195000

Aims: To further the national efforts employed to improve the quality of maternity and child health services through providing a model clinic that adopts comprehensive approach to the needs of mothers and children, be they physical, mental, psychological or social. To train health workers in Mother and Child Health services. To conduct operational research among children and mothers.

Active in: Jordan

Actions in Jordan

Research: basic research - applied research - data collection/surveys -

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of caregivers training of parents training of students

Policy: policy development

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Services: development of services provision of services:

Networking: information exchange project funding/cofinancing meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: governmental agencies - schools/universities - hospitals/medical centres -

Target communities: slums - towns & small cities -



Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities health care immunization early childhood development early intervention mutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: infant care institutionalized children preschool education child safety

Child at risk: developmental difficulties behavioural difficulties emotional difficulties learning difficulties child abuse/neglect orphans children with special needs

Target groups: 0-1 year infant : 2-3 years child : 4-6 years child : parents : professionals : family :

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare -

primary health care - family planning -

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education child-rearing practices parent/child interaction, stimulation nutrition education health education weaning practices

Family at risk: poor families · unemployed ·

Family advocacy: health protection

Target groups: family in urban setting parents of disabled children

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: health services home visits

Community development & awareness: physical upgrading

Target groups: children · parents ·

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services counselling/guidance services documentation/information services outreach programmes/extension work

Information Activities

 in Jordan: information/inquiry services · awareness raising/advocacy · library · conferences/seminars · training/workshops ·

JO021 MINISTRY OF EDUCATION

Ministère de l'Education

Amman Jordan

Telephone: (962-6) 669181 **Fax**: (962-6) 666019

Aims: To promote education.

Active in: Jordan

Actions in Jordan

Research: basic research applied research data collection/surveys

Training: training of trainers · training of caregivers · **Policy:** policy monitoring · policy implementation ·

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Services: development of services provision of services

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation publications/materials

Networking: institution building/support · information exchange · incetings/workshops ·

Target communities: rural areas & villages towns & small cities suburbs capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities health care immunization early childhood development early intervention mental health AlDS oral rehydration nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: non-formal centre-based programmes i formal childcare centres i recreational facilities i infant care i institutionalized children disabled children i preschool education is special education imulticulturalism i foster care i child safety

Child at risk: developmental difficulties behavioural difficulties emotional difficulties learning difficulties child labour street children refugee children orphans children with special needs children of war/conflict

Child advocacy: child protection - child legislation - children's rights - UN Convention on the Child -

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 4-6 years child ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare primary health care family planning family services health centres family guidance

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education child-rearing practices parent/child interaction, stimulation father's role nutrition education health education responsible parenthood parent-to-be literacy weaning practices

Family at risk: refugees · single-parent families · poor

families unemployed

Family advocacy: family protection - family legislation - health protection - human rights

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services traditional support systems health services family welfare centres social welfare home visits voluntary services youth programmes formal preschool/care community-based preschool/care parent-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment physical upgrading community health water & environmental sanitation social mobilization infrastructure development skills training awareness raising social marketing

Community livelihood: women's programmes - rural development - environmental protection

Community advocacy: health policy population policy child protection

Services & Information

Services: counselling/guidance services care services documentation/information services university courses/programmes research/consultancy services provision of equipment/supplies outreach programmes/extension work technical services radio/television/media programmes information campaigns

Information Activities

 in Jordan: documentation centre library audiovisual service publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops

Publications: instructional guides/manuals institution's activities reports issue-oriented



52

documents/dossiers reference documents (directories, bibliographies) ·

audio-visual aids Materials: (films/videos/slides/posters) · teaching aids/kits toys/recreational materials

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Ministère du Développement Social

P.O. Box 6720 Amman Jordan

Telephone: (962-6) 673191 Fax: (962-6) 673198

Contact: Minister of Social Development - Dr Amin Al-

Mashaobeh Founded: 1956 Staff: 1214 salaried ·

Annual budget: US\$ 494200

Aims: To enhance the development of social welfare. To increase the activities of social action to include rehabilitation and welfare programmes for all kinds of people, in particular low-income persons, orphans, victims of broken families, elderly persons, the poor and the handicapped. To help develop the local communities. To fight against the causes of deliquency and other social problems. To support the actions of the voluntary sector and extend the participation of people in the development process.

Active in: Jordan

Actions in Jordan

Research: applied research · data collection/surveys · Training: training of professionals - training of paraprofessionals training of trainers training of caregivers · training of parents · training of students ·

Policy: policy development - policy advocacy - policy

monitoring policy implementation

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services - provision of services.

publications/materials Publications/materials: preparation publications/materials distribution

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies · UN agencies · training organizations research institutes schools/universities professional associations community groups · cooperatives · women's groups · parents' groups

Target communities: rural areas & villages · slums · towns & small cities · suburbs · capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood disabilities health care immunization early childhood development early intervention mental health oral rehydration nutrition/feeding programmes :

Child care & education: home-based programmes non-formal centre-based programmes formal childcare centres · recreational facilities · infant care · institutionalized children disabled children rehabilitation preschool education special education foster care child safety

Child at risk: developmental difficulties · behavioural difficulties 🕟 emotional difficulties learning difficulties child abuse/neglect child labour street children refugee children orphans children with special needs · children of war/conflict ·

Child advecacy: child protection child legislation children's rights. UN Convention on the Child.

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child child in rural setting child in urban setting · boys · girls · parents · siblings · professionals paraprofessionals policymakers family

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare family planning family services family guidance family support groups

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education child-rearing practices parent/child interaction, stimulation father's role nutrition education · health education · responsible parenthood · parent-to-be · literacy · weaning practices ·

Family at risk: poor families

Family advocacy: family protection - family legislation

health protection · human rights ·

Target groups: family in rural setting family in urban setting working parents parents of disabled children siblings illiterate literate men women professionals paraprofessionals policymakers community -

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services traditional support systems - family welfare centres social welfare home visits voluntary services youth programmes workplace childcare formal preschool/care · community-based preschool/care · parent-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment · socioeconomic environment · physical upgrading community health water & environmental sanitation · social mobilization · infrastructure development skills training awareness raising

Community livelihood: small enterprise development credit systems, savings huma development leadership training human resource women's programmes income-generation activities rural

development environmental protection

Community advocacy: health policy family legislation population policy children's rights

child protection · human rights ·

Target groups: rural communities - urban communities poor communities children youth parents families professionals paraprofessionals policymakers community leaders

Services & Information

Services: advisory æ support services counselling/guidance services care services documentation/information services provision research/consultancy services equipment/supplies · outreach programmes/extension work technical services radio/television/media programmes · information campaigns ·

Information Activities

in Jordan: library conferences/seminars training/workshops

Materials: audio-visual (films/videos/slides/posters) teaching aids/kits toys/recreational materials



JO023 OUALITY OF LIFE PROJECT (QLP)

Projet Qualité de la Vie

Noor Al-Hussein Foundation Amman Jordan

Telephone: (962-6) 699143 **Fax**: (962-6) 685298

Contact: Development & Communication Specialist - Dr

Sima S. Bahous Founded: 1988 Staff: 10 salaried

Annual budget: US\$ 100000

Aims: To improve the quality of life of the community at large. To carry out socio-economic development projects to benefit all communities. To encourage grassroot participation in planning, implementing and evaluating community development projects.

Active in: Jordan

Actions in Jordan

Training: training of professionals - training of trainers - training of caregivers - training of parents

Policy: policy advocacy

Programmes/projects: programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: health care nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: home-based programmes non-formal centre-based programmes preschool education

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services
Community development & awareness: sociocultural
environment socioeconomic environment
awareness raising

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services documentation/information services outreach programmes/extension work

Information Activities

 in Jordan: awareness raising/advocacy conferences/seminars training/workshops

JO024 QUEEN ALIA JORDAN SOCIAL WELFARE FUND (OAF)

Fonds Jordanien pour le Bien-Etre Social de la Reine Alia

P.O. Box 5118 Amman Jordan

Telephone: (962-6) 825241 / 825242

Fax: (962-6) 827350

Contact: Executive Director

Founded: 1977

Staff: 70 salaried · 290 non-salaried ·

Aims: To provide social services to the most needy areas. To prepare and implement programmes to serve the most needy.

Active in: Jordan

Actions in Jordan

Research: applied research data collection/surveys Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of trainers training of caregivers training of parents

Policy: policy development policy implementation
Programmes/projects: programme/project design
programme/project implementation
programme/project evaluation programme/project
tunding

Services: development of services provision of services

Networking: institution building/support information exchange project funding/cofinancing meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs UN agencies training organizations schools/universities community groups women's groups youth groups

Target communities: rural areas & villages + towns &

small cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities health care immunization early childhood development early intervention mental health AIDS oral rehydration nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: formal childcare centres recreational facilities disabled children rehabilitation preschool education special

education

Child at risk: learning difficulties children with special needs

Target groups: 0-1 year infant + 2-3 years child + 4-6 years child + child in rural setting + child in urban setting + boys + girls + parents + siblings + professionals

· paraprofessionals · policymakers · family ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare family planning family guidance

Family education & awareness: child-rearing practices nutrition education health education literacy

Family at risk: refugees poor families unemployed parents with disabilities/AIDS

Family advocacy: health protection -

Target groups: family in rural setting family in urban setting working parents parents of disabled children illiterate men women community

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services health services family welfare centres social welfare home visits voluntary services youth programmes formal preschool/care community-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment community health skills training

Community livelihood: small enterprise development human resource development leadership training



women's programmes income tration activities rural development environmental protection

Community advocacy: population policy child protection

Target groups: rural communities poor communities children

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services counselling/guidance services documentation/information services research/consultancy services outreach programmes/extension work information campaigns

Materials: toys/recreational materials -

JO025 SOS CHILDREN'S VILLAGES - JORDAN

Villages d'Enfants SOS - Jordanie

P.O. Box 926405 Amman Jordan

Telephone: (962-6) 665724 Fax: (962-6) 688372 Cable: 24242 ASTRA

Contact: National Director - Lina O. Kopty

Founded: 1983 Staff: 9 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 615385

Aims: To take care of abandoned and parentless children in an atmosphere very similar to that of a natural family life, by providing them a permanent home and a mother. To remain in charge of these children until they are able to look after themselves.

Active in: Jordan

Actions in Jordan

Training: training of professionals · training of trainers · training of students ·

Policy: policy development · policy implementation ·

Services: development of services ·

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation

Networking: institution building/support - information exchange - meetings/workshops -

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: SOS-Kinderdorf International (Austria)
Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies. UN agencies foundations.

Target communities: rural areas & villages slums towns & small cities suburbs capital or large cities.

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth health care early childhood development mental health AIDS oral rehydration nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: child safety -

Child at risk: emotional difficulties street children children with AIDS orphans

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child · child in urban setting · boys · girls · family ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare - primary health care - household food security - family services -

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services social welfare home visits youth programmes.

Community development & awareness: skills

training · awareness raising ·

Community livelihood: environmental protection Community advocacy: children's rights child protection

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services counselling/guidance services documentation/information services

Information Activities

 in Jordan: information/inquiry services awareness raising/advocacy publications service training/workshops

JO026 UNITED NATIONS CHILDREN'S FUND - JORDAN (UNICEF Jordan)

Fonds des Nations Unies pour l'Enfance - Jordanie

P.O. Box 811721 Amman Jordan

Telephone: (962-6) 629571 Telex: 23798 UNICEF JO Fax: (962-6) 640049

Contact: Assistant Project Officer - Maha Homsi

Aims: To cooperate with countries to protect the lives of children and women, and promote their proper development. To support governments in their efforts to protect the lives of children and women, and their proper development.

Active in: Jordan

Actions in Jordan

Research: data collection/surveys development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of trainers training of caregivers training of parents

Policy: policy advocacy · policy monitoring ·

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation

Networking: institution building/support information exchange project funding/cofinancing meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies. UN agencies research institutes schools/universities hospitals/medical centres professional associations community



groups · cooperatives · women's groups · youth groups ·

Target communities: rural areas & villages · slums · towns & small cities · capital or large cities ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities health care immunization early childhood development early intervention mental health oral rehydration nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: home-based programmes non-formal centre-based programmes formal childcare centres infant care disabled children

preschool education multiculturalism

Child at risk: child abuse/negleet · child labour · street children ·

Child advocacy: children's rights · UN Convention on the Child ·

Target groups: 0-1 year infant 2-3 years child 4-6 years child child in rural setting child in urban setting boys girls parents professionals paraprofessionals policymakers family

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare primary health care family planning health centres

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education child-rearing practices parent/child interaction, stimulation nutrition education health education literacy weaning practices

Family at risk: poor families

Family advocacy: health protection human rights Target groups: family in rural setting family in urban ing parents of disabled children illiterate women professionals policymakers community.

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services health services family welfare centres social welfare formal preschool/care community-based preschool/care parent-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: community health—water & environmental sanitation—social mobilization—skills training—awareness raising—social marketing—

Community livelihood: women's programmes income-generation activities rural development environmental protection

Community advocacy: health policy children's rights child protection

Target groups: rural communities poor communities children youth parents professionals policymakers community leaders

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services research/consultancy ,ervices provision of equipment/supplies outreach programmes/extension work technical services radio/television/media programmes information campaigns

Information Activities

 in Jordan: awareness raising/advocacy documentation centre audio-visual service publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops computerized information service

Publications: instructional guides/manuals institution's activities reports issue-oriented documents/dossiers research/conferences reports

Materials: audio-visual ai (films/videos/slides/posters) · teaching aids/kits ·



KUWAIT

Children under 5 (thousands) 1993	Under 5 mortality rate 1993	Malnourished childre under 5 (%) 1992 a/
300	13	6
Male literacy	Female literacy	Total fertility
rate (%)	rate (%)	rate per woman
1995	1995	1993
82	75	3.7
GNP per	Access to health	Access to
capita (US\$)	care services (%)	safe water (%)
1992 Ы	1985-93	1988-93
16150*	100	100*
Pre-primary	Pre-primary gross	Convention on the
age group	enrolment ratio (%)	Rights of the Child
1991	1991	ratified
4-5	35	20/11/1991

CENTER FOR CHILD EVALUATION AND TEACHING (CCET)

Centre pour l'Evaluation et l'Education des Enfants

P.O. Box 5453 Safat 13055 Kuwait

Telephone: (965) 4845221 Fax: (965) 4847221

Contact: Fatin Al Bader Founded: 1984

Aims: To diagnose, provide remedial services and followup for children with learning disabilities. To create, standardize and compile tests and measurements appropriate for evaluation. To conduct research and studies in the field of learning disabilities. To develop a corps of qualified Kuwaiti manpower in the field of assessment and remedial services. To develop awareness of learning disabilities in society. To train people in the field of learning disabilities. To link with local and international organizations to develop programmes in the field of assessment and remedial services.

Active in: Kuwait

Actions in Kuwait

Research: basic research development models/methods/materials

Training: training of professionals - training of paraprofessionals

Services: development of services provision of services -

Networking: information exchange meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: schools/universities ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: intellectual/language development ·

Child care & education: non-formal centre-based programmes

Child at risk: behavioural difficulties learning difficulties

Services & Information

Services: counselling/guidance services documentation/information services research/consultancy services outreach programmes/extension work ·

Information Activities

in Kuwait: awareness raising/advocacy documentation centre · publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops computerized information service ·

Publications: issue-oriented documents/dossiers research/conferences reports reference documents (directories, bibliographies)

Materials: teaching aids/kits

KW028 DEPARTMENT OF SPECIAL EDUCATION **SCHOOLS**

Département des Ecoles d'Education Spéciale

Ministry of Education PO Box 44006 32055 Hawalli Kuwait

Telephone: (965) 2618321 Fax: (965) 2631526

Contact: Manager - Sulaiman Al-Saleh

Founded: 1955

Annual budget: US\$ 18684000

Aims: To give the opportunity of education to each handicapped child. To give each child the opportunity of growth and social adaptation to the extent to which his abilities allow him to do so. To enable him to overcome the effects of his disabilities and lead him to become a successful and fruitful citizen.

Active in: Kuwait

Actions in Kuwait

Research: data collection/surveys - development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals · training of trainers · training of parents training of students

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services -

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation ·

Networking: institution building/support - information project funding/cofinancing meetings/workshops

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: physical development intellectual/language development childhood disabilities health care early intervention

Child care & education: home-based programmes disabled children special education Child at risk: developmental difficulties

difficulties children with special needs -

Child advocacy: child legislation

Target groups: 4-6 years child boys professionals - paraprofessionals - family -



Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: primary health care · family

services family guidance

Family education & awareness: health ducation Target groups: family in rural setting parents of disabled children -

Services & Information

counselling/guidance services Services: documentation/information services university radio/television/media courses/programmes programmes

Information Activities

in Kuwait: information/inquiry services publications service

instructional guides/manuals Publications: textbooks/publications

Materials: teaching aids/kits:

KW029

KUWAIT SOCIETY FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF ARAB CHILDREN (KSAAC)

Société Koweitienne pour la Promotion des Enfants Arabes

P.O. Box 23928 Safat 13100 Kuwait Kuwait

Telephone: (965) 4748479 / 4748387

Fax: (965) 4749381

Contact: Chairman - Dr Hassan A. Al-Ebraheem

Founded: 1980

Staff: 9 salaried ¶ 1 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 770000

Aims: To develop an Arab strategy for children's education and health care. To plan appropriate models for providing educational services for children. To suggest ways and means to educate parents on how to deal with children. To conduct research on children's social, psychological and physical development. To make parents aware of children's needs and how to provide parental services. To develop various types of psychological tests for children. To identify the different children's organizations in Arab countries and study their problems.

Active in: Kuwait, Arab States

Actions in Kuwait

Research: basic research - applied research - data collection/surveys

Training: training of students -

Policy: policy development - policy advocacy - policy

implementation

Programmes/projects: programme/project design implementation programme/project programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services provision of

Publications/materials: publications/materials design :

preparation publications/materials publications/materials distribution

Networking: institution building/support information funding/coffmancing project exchange meetings/workshops

Actions in other countries

Research: basic research - applied research - data collection/surveys ·

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project **funding**

Services: development of services provision of

Publications/materials: publications/materials design : publications/materials distribution

Networking: information exchange funding/cofinancing

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: national/local NGOs · international NGOs · governmental agencies · UN agencies · research institutes · schools/universities · hospitals/medical centres professional associations -

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities health care early childhood development mental health nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: recreational facilities - infant care disabled children rehabilitation preschool education special education multiculturalism

child safety :

Child at risk: behavioural difficulties - emotional difficulties | learning difficulties | child abuse/neglect refugee children children with special needs children of war/conflict Child advocacy: child protection - children's rights -

UN Convention on the Child

Target groups: 0-1 year infant + 2-3 years child + 4-6 years child child in multicultural setting boys girls parents professionals paraprofessionals family

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare family services family guidance
Family education & awareness: parent/child

interaction, stimulation - nutrition education - literacy

Family advocacy: family protection human rights Target groups: family in multicultural setting women . professionals illiterate men paraprofessionals - community -

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services health services - social welfare - voluntary services community-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment infrastructure development skills training - awareness raising -

Community livelihood: environmental protection -

Community advocacy: children's rights protection · human rights ·

Target groups: children pare professionals paraprofessionals parents - families -

Services & Information

services counselling/guidance Services: services documentation/information information research/consultancy services campaigns

Information Activities

in Kuwait: documentation centre library publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops - computerized information service :

guides/manuals instructional **Publications:** textbooks/publications - institution's activities reports



· periodicals/journals · research/conferences reports · reference documents (directories, bibliographies) · Materials: audio-visual aids (films/videos/slides/posters) ·



LEBANON

Children under 5	Under 5 mortality	Malnourished childres
(thousands)	rate	under 5 (%)
1993	1993	1992 a/
400	40	8
Male literacy	Female literacy	Total fertility
rate (%)	rate (%)	rate per woman
1995	1995	1993
95	90	3.1
GNP per	Access to health	Access to
capita (US\$)	care services (%)	safe water (%)
1992 b/	1985-93	1988-93
2150*	95	92
Pre-primary	Pre-primary gross	Convention on the
age group	enrolment ratio (%)	Rights of the Child
1991	1991	ratified
3-5	65	13/06/1991

LB030 ASSOCIATION LIBANAISE DES VILLAGES D'ENFANTS SOS

Lebanese Association of SOS Children's Villages

BP 55242 Beirut Lebanon

Telephone: (961-1) 499808 / 499787

Contact: Directrice - Amal Sawaya

Founded: 1964

Staff: 57 salaried · 3 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 1200000

Aims: To help orphans and abandoned children, by providing them in the framework of the SOS Children's Villages: a substitute mother, a home, a family and social life. To also provide assistance to families made up of a widow and her children.

Active in: Lebanon

Actions in Lebanon

Training: training of professionals - training of trainers - training of parents - training of students -

Services: development of services provision of services

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: SOS-Kinderdorf International (Austria).
Conseil National pour le Service Social (Lebanon)

Local branches/offices: 8

Target communities: rural areas & villages + slums + suburbs +

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development

Child care & education: home-based programmes formal childcare centres institutionalized children

Child at risk: child abuse/neglect

Target groups: 0-1 year infant - 2-3 years child - 4-6 years child - child in rural setting - child in multicultural setting - boys - girls - parents - siblings - family -

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: household food security family services

Family at risk: refugees · single-parent families · poor families ·

Target groups: family in rural setting family in urban setting family in multicultural setting working parents siblings literate women

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services health services social welfare home visits voluntary services

Community development & awareness: physical upgrading skills training

Community livelihood: small enterprise development credit systems, savings human resource development women's programmes incomegeneration activities

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services

Information Activities

- in Lebanon: training/workshops

LB031 GHASSAN KANAFANI CULTURAL FOUNDATION (GKCF)

Fondation Culturelle Ghassan Kanafani

P.O. Box 135/375, Chouran Beirut Lebanon

Telephone: (961-1) 311532 / 816251

Contact: Vice-Chairperson - Anni Kanafani

Staff: 92 salaried 2 non-salaried Annual budget: US\$ 400000 Grant-making: in Lebanon

Aims: To establish and run six kindergartens in Palestinian camps and deprived Lebanese areas. To train teachers and other staff in early childhood education. To develop two small kindergartens for mentally, physically handicapped children and a workshop producing furniture and equipment/aids for the children.

Active in: Lebanen

Actions in Lebanon

Research: basic research - applied research -

Training: training of professionals - training of trainers - training of caregivers - training of parents -

Programmes/projects: programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Networking: institution building/support

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: childhood disabilities - early childhood development

Child care & education: preschool education

Child advocacy: children's rights -

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education



69

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment awareness raising

Community advocacy: children's rights -

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services documentation/information services

Information Activities

- in Lebanon: information/inquiry service awareness raising/advocacy documentation centre library audio-visual service publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops computerized information service

LB032

INSTITUTE FOR WOMEN'S STUDIES IN THE ARAB WORLD (IWSAW)

Institut d'Etudes sur les Femmes dans le Monde Arabe

Beirut University College

P.O. Box 13-5053 Beirut Lebanon

Telephone: (961-1) 811968 / 811969

Telex: 23389LE

Contact: Director - Dr Julinda Abu Nasr

Founded: 1973 Staff: 7 salaried

Aims: To conduct, encourage and evaluate research into the history, condition, and evolving needs of women in the Arab world. To engage in action programmes to educate and assist the contemporary Arab woman, and undertake communication programmes to transmit, regionally and internationally, a better understanding of the Arab woman - her traditional role, her place in today's society, and her aspirations and potential for the future.

Active in: Lebanon, Arab States

Actions in Lebanon

Research: basic research - applied research -

Training: training of professionals - training of trainers training of caregivers - training of parents

Programmes/projects: programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation Networking: institution building/support

Actions in other countries

Research: basic research

Training: training of trainers - training of caregivers -

training of parents

Networking: institution building/support

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: health care - early childhood development -

Child care & education: home-based programmes - preschool education

Family Programmes

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: socioeconomic environment: awareness raising

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services documentation/information services

Information Activities

- in Lebanon: information/inquiry service awareness raising/advocacy documentation centre library audio-visual service publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops

in other countries: awareness raising/advocacy audio-visual service publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops

LB033

LEBANESE ORGANIZATION FOR THE LEBANESE CHILD

Organisation Libanaise pour l'Enfant Libanais

Gardenia Building, Karacon Druze-Tadmor Street Beirut Lebanon

Telephone: (961-1) 865775

Contact: Dr Nour Salman

Founded: 1959

Annual budget: US\$ 50000

Aims: To promote group work for the welfare of the child on all levels and in different communities.

Active in: Lebanon

Actions in Lebanon

Research: basic research - data collection/surveys -

Training: training of paraprofessionals training of parents

Programmes/projects: programme/project implementation · programme/project evaluation ·

Publications/materials: publications/materials distribution

Networking: institution building/support · information exchange · meetings/workshops ·

Co-operation/Partnership

Member organizations: 30

Individual members: 20

Partners: schools/universities hospitals/medical centres community groups women's groups youth groups

Target communities: rural areas & villages + towns & small cities + suburbs +

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development physical development childhood diseases/growth early childhood development mental health nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: home-based programmes - recreational facilities - preschool education - foster

care - child safety

Child at risk: developmental difficulties - emotional difficulties - child abuse/neglect - child labour - street children - children of war/conflict -

Child advocacy: child protection - child legislation - children's rights - UN Convention on the Child

Target groups: 0-1 year infant 2-3 years child 4-6 years child child in rural setting child in urban setting child in multicultural setting family



Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare primary health care · family planning · household

food security family guidance

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education parent/child interaction, stimulation nutrition education · health education · responsible parenthood · parent-to-be · literacy ·

Family at risk: poor families -

Family advocacy: family protection - family legislation - health protection - human rights

Target groups: family in rural setting - family in urban

setting family in multicultural setting working parents illiterate women policymakers

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services social welfare home visits youth programmes ommunity development & awaren

awareness: Community socioeconomic environment -

Community advocacy: family legislation - children's rights · human rights ·

Services & Information

Services: counselling/guidance services documentation/information services radio/television/media programmes · information campaigns ·

Information Activities

in Lebanon: awareness raising/advocacy publications service conferences/seminars

ublications: instructional guides/manuals institution's activities reports research/conferences Publications: reference documents (directories, bibliographies)

MAURITANIA

Children under 5 (thousands) 1993	Under 5 mortality rate 1993	Malnourished childr under 5 (%) 1992 a/
400	202	48
Male literacy rate (%) 1995	Female literacy rate (%) 1995	Total fertility rate per woman 1993
50	26	6.5
GNP per capita (US\$) 1992 b/	Access to health care services (%) 1985-93	Access to safe water (%) 1988-93
530	45	66
Pre-primary age group 1991	Pre-primary gross enrolment ratio (%) 1991	Convention on the Rights of the Child ratified
3-5	0.2	15/06/1991

PROJET ENFANTS MIGRANTS DES KEBBA

Migrant Children of the Kebba Project

Ministère de la Santé et des Affaires Sociales BP 169 Nouakchott Mauritania

Telephone: (222) 52052 Telex: 5583 MTN Fax: (222) 52268

Contact: Directrice des Affaires Sociales -

Founded: 1989

Staff: 12 salaried · 4 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 60000

Aims: To promote the survival and development of children and mothers in difficult situations. To develop basic services for children in slums through this Government/UNICLE/Caritas project. To undertake early intervention actions.

Active in: Mauritania

Actions in Mauritania

Research: applied research -

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals ·

Policy: policy development policy advocacy -

Programmes/projects: programme/project implementation -

Networking: information exchange:

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: international NGOs governmental agencies UN agencies schools/universities hospitals/medical centres -

Target communities: rural areas & villages - slums towns & small cities + suburbs + capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development mtellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities health care immunization early intervention AIDS oral relividration - nutrition/feeding programmes -

Child care & education: home-based programmes non-formal centre-based programmes tormal childcare centres - recreational facilities - infant care institutionalized children disabled children rehabilitation - preschool education - special education foster care child safety adoption/sponsorship ·

Child at risk: developmental difficulties - behavioural emotional difficulties | learning difficulties 🕟 difficulties child abuse/neglect child labour child prostitution - street children - refugee children orphans children with special needs children of war/conflict

Child advocacy: child protection - child legislation children's rights - UN Convention on the Child

Target groups: 0-1 year infant + 2-3 years child + 4-6 years child child in rural setting child in urban setting child in multicultural setting boys girls parents + siblings + professionals + paraprofessionals + policymakers family

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare : primary health care (family planning) teenage pregnancy (family services) health centres (family guidance · AIDS/transmitable diseases ·

Family education & awareness: nutrition education : health education · literacy

Family at risk: refugees teenage parents poor families migrants unemployed -

Family advocacy: human rights

Target groups: family in rural setting - family in urban setting family in multicultural setting working parents parents of disabled children siblings illiterate men women community

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services traditional support systems - health services - family welfare centres social welfare home visits voluntary services youth programmes forma tormal preschool/care community-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment - socioeconomic environment - physical upgrading community health water & environmental sanitation social mobilization infrastructure development skills training awareness raising - social marketing -

Community livelihood: small enterprise development credit systems, savings human resource development leadership training women's programmes income-generation activities rural development - environmental protection

Community advocacy: health policy family legislation population policy children's rights child protection

Target groups: rural communities : urban communities multicultural communities refugees communities children youth parents families professionals paraprofessionals policymakers community leaders :

Services & Information

Services: legal services · care services documentation/information services · university courses/programmes technical services. radio/television/media programmes hotline. help/support services :

Information Activities

- in Mauritania: information/miquiry services awareness raismg/advocacy conferences/semmars - training/workshops



MR035 WORLD VISION MAURITANIA

Vision Mondiale Mauritanie

BP 335, Ilot-095 Nouakchott Mauritania =

Telephone: (222) 253055 Fax: (222) 251183

Contact: Country Director - Paul Abbott

Founded: 1984

Staff: 27 salaried · 1 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 813000

Aims: To support child survival and Vitamin A programmes. To carry out emergency/relief projects. To promote social mobilization for health.

Active in: Mauritania

Actions in Mauritania

Research: data collection/surveys - development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of professionals:

Policy: policy development

Programmes/projects: programme/project design implementation programme/project programme/project evaluation

Services: provision of services

publications/materials Publications/materials: distribution

Networking: institution building/support - information exchange meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: World Vision International (USA) Partners: national/local NGOs - international NGOs governmental agencies UN agencies hospitals/medical centres community groups women's groups -

Young Child Programmes

development: childhood health S. Child diseases/growth immunization oral rehydration nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: infant care -

Target groups: 0-1 year infant + 2-3 years child + child in rural setting parents professionals policymakers family

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare primary health care

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education - nutrition education - weaning practices -

Family at risk: refugees poor families

Target groups: family in rural setting + illiterate + literate professionals policymakers

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: health services Community development & awareness: physical upgrading community health water & environmental sanitation social mobilization water & awareness raising - social marketing -

Community livelihood: income-generation activities : Target groups: rural communities refugees poor communities children parents families professionals policymakers community leaders

Services & Information

support æ services Services: advisory documentation/information services

Information Activities

- in Mauritania: information/inquiry services awareness raising/advocacy audio-visual service conferences/seminars · training/workshops ·

Publications: institution's activities reports

audio-visual Materials:

aids

(films/videos/slides/posters)



MOROCCO

Children under 5 (thousands) 1993	Under 5 mortality rate 1993	Malnourished childrei under 5 (%) 1992 a/
3900	59	9
Male literacy	Female literacy	Total fertility
rat a (%)	rate (%)	rate per woman
1995	1995	1993
57	31	4.3
GNP per	Access to health	Access to
capita (US\$)	care services (%)	safa water (%)
1992 Ы	1985-93	1988-93
1030	70	54
Pre-primary	Pre-primary gross	Convention on the
age group	enrolment ratio (%)	Rights of the Child
1991	1991	ratified
5-6	57	21/07/1993

MA036

ALLIANCE DE TRAVAIL DANS LA FORMATION ET L'ACTION POUR L'ENFANCE (ATFALE)

Working Alliance for Training and Action in favour of Children

Faculté des Sciences de l'Education BP 1072 Rabat Morocco

Telephone: (212-7) 771181

Contact: Project Director - Khalid II Andaloussi

Founded: 1986 Staff: 6 salaried

Annual budget: US\$ 287500

Aims: To undertake applied research in childhood development and education. To carry out community development programmes with an emphasis on children. To provide child caregivers' training.

Active in: Morocco

Actions in Morocco

Research: applied research -

Training: training of professionals - training of trainers - training of caregivers - training of parents -

Programmes/projects: programme/project evaluation Networking: institution building/support

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: Bernard van Leer Foundation Project Network (Netherlands)

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: early childhood development

Child care & education: non-formal centre-based programmes preschool education

Family Programmes

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education:

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment awareness raising

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services ·

Information Activities

 in Morocco: information/inquiry service documentation centre audio-visual service conferences/seminars training/workshops

MA037 GROUPE KORANIC PRESCHOOLS (GKPS)

Groupe des Ecoles Coraniques Préscolaires

Direction de l'Enseignement Primaire Ministère de l'Education Nationale Rabat Morocco

Telephone: (212-7) 771972 Fax: (212-7) 771956

Contact: Directeur du Projet - Aziz El Houssine

Founded: 1990 Staff: 7 salaried ·

Active in: Morocco

Actions in Morocco

Research: applied research

Training: training of professionals · training of trainers · training of caregivers · training of parents ·

Programmes/projects:

programme/project

implementation

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: Bernard van Leer Project Network (Netherlands)

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: early childhood

development ·

Child care & education: preschool education

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services documentation/information services

Information Activities

- in Morocco: information/inquiry services documentation centre conferences/seminars training/workshops



SUDAN

Children under 5 (thousands) 1993	Under 5 mortelity rate 1993	Melnourished children under 5 (%) 1992 a/
4800	128	35
Male literacy rate (%) 1995	Female literacy rate (%) 1995	Total fertility rate per woman 1993
58	35	6
GNP per capite (US\$) 1992 b/	Access to health care services (%) 1985-93	Access to safe water (%) 1988-93
420*	51	48
Pre-primary age group 1991	Pre-primary gross enrolment ratio (%) 1991	Convention on the Rights of the Child ratified
5.6	18	02/09/1990

SD038 AHFAD PRESCHOOL CENTRE

Centre Préscolaire d'Alifad

Ahfad University for Women P.O. Box 167 Omdurman Sudan

Telephone: (249) 53363

Contact: Manager - Amna Omer Eltayeb

Founded: 1979

Annual budget: US\$ 16399

Aims: To train teachers who will understand and provide programmes that allow young children to construct their own knowledge from activities and environment, planned by themselves and peers. To develop with children a daily routine that permit children to make choices. To develop appropriate curriculum that foster active learning (using language, experiences and ideas, classification, number concepts, seriation, etc...).

Active in: Sudan

Actions in Sudan

Research: applied research · data collection/surveys ·
Training: training of professionals · training of paraprofessionals · training of trainers · training of caregivers · training of parents · training of students ·
Policy: policy development · policy implementation ·

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Services: development of services provision of services

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation

Networking: information exchange project funding/cofinancing meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: Association of African Universities
Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs
UN agencies training organizations research
institutes schools/universities hospitals/medical
centres religious organization professional
associations community groups women's groups
parents' groups

Target communities: rural areas & villages + slums + towns & small cities + suburbs +

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities health care early childhood development mental health nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: home-based programmes - recreational facilities - disabled children - preschool

education - special education

Child at risk: behavioural difficulties learning difficulties child abuse/neglect children with special needs

Child advocacy: children's rights · UN Convention on the Child ·

Target groups: 4-6 years child child in rural setting boys girls parents family

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: primary health care—family planning—family guidance—

Family education & awareness: child-rearing practices nutrition education health education literacy weaning practices

Family at risk: poor families:

Target groups: parents of disabled children · illiterate · women ·

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: traditional support systems voluntary services workplace childcare community-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: skills training awareness raising

Community livelihood: income-generation activities Community advocacy: child protection · human rights

Target groups: children + families + professionals + paraprofessionals +

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services counselling/guidance services documentation/information services university courses/programmes outreach

Information Activities

 in Sudan: information/inquiry services - awareness raising/advocacy - documentation centre - library audio-visual service - publications service conferences/seminars - training/workshops

Publications: institution's activities reports research/conferences reports

Materials: audio-visual aids (films/videos/slides/posters) teaching aids/kits toys/recreational materials

SD039 MINISTRY OF SOCIA

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL WELFARE AND DEVELOPMENT

Ministère du Bien-Etre et du Developpement Social

P.O. Box 2663 Khartoum Sudati

Telephone: (249) 79008 / 74940

Contact: Undersecretary - Kamal Abdel Gadir Balla Founded: 1956

Staff: 1113 salaried -



Grant-making: in Sudan -

Aims: To address issues related to social planning. To provide supervision and training in the field of social welfare and development.

Active in: Sudan

Actions in Sudan

Research: basic research - applied research - data collection/surveys -

Training: training of professionals - training of trainers

Policy: policy development - policy advocacy - policy monitoring - policy implementation -

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Services: development of services provision of services

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials distribution

Networking: institution building/support information exchange meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies. UN agencies training organizations research institutes community groups women's groups parents' groups.

Target communities: rural areas & villages + slums + towns & small cities + suburbs + capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: social development
Child care & education: formal childcare centres
recreational facilities infant care institutionalized
children disabled children rehabilitation
preschool education special education
multiculturalism foster care child safety child
adoption/sponsorship

Child at risk: child abuse/neglect street children
Child advocacy: child protection child legislation children's rights UN Convention on the Child

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child · child in rural setting · child in urban setting · boys · girls · parents · policymakers · family ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare: family planning: family guidance:
Family education & awareness: child-rearing

Family education & awareness: child-rearing practices parent/child interaction, stimulation

Family at risk: poor families : Target groups: family in rural setting : family in urban setting : family in multicultural setting : illiterate : literate : men : women : policymakers : community :

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services family welfare centres a social welfare a voluntary services community-based preschool/care.

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment - socioeconomic environment - social mobilization - infrastructure development - skills training - awareness raising - social marketing -

Community livelihood: income-generation activities Community advocacy: family legislation children's rights child protection

Target groups: rural communities - urban communities - multicultural communities - poor communities - children - parents - families - policymakers - community leaders -

Services & Information

Services: counselling/guidance services care services documentation/information services outreach programmes/extension work information campaigns hotline, help/support services

Information Activities

- in Sudan: awareness raising/advocacy publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops

Publications: institution's activities reports periodicals/journals research/conferences reports

SD040

PRESCHOOL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

Département d'Education Préscolaire

Federative Ministry of Education Khartoum Sudan

Telephone: (249) 81418 / 78900

Contact: Department Director - Shawwa Elgizouli

Founded: 1984 Staff: 3 salaried Annual budget: US\$ 4000

Grant-making: (3% of annual budget) in Sudan

Aims: To undertake educational activities for 4-6 year old children. To develop and promote children's activities and curriculum. To train preschool staff. To develop educational aids and toys from locally available materials. To conduct surveys and samples research.

Active in: Sudan

Actions in Sudan

Research: basic research applied research data collection/surveys development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of trainers | training of caregivers | Policy: policy development | policy advocacy | policy monitoring |

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Services: development of services:

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials evaluation

Networking: information exchange meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: UN agencies training organizations community groups

Target communities: towns & small cities | capital or large cities |

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development physical development intellectual/language development childhood disabilities health care immunization nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: non-formal centre-based programmes i formal childcare centres i recreational facilities i infant care i disabled children i preschool education i child safety.

Target groups: 4-6 years child -

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: primary health care : family planning



Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education

Family at risk: poor families - unemployed -

Family advocacy: family protection - health protection

Target groups: parents of disabled children -

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services formal preschool/care community-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment awareness raising

Community livelihood: human resource development

Community advocacy: child protection

Target groups: children

SD041 PRIMARY HEALTH CARE AND RURAL HEALTH CENTRE

Centre de Soins de Santé Primaires et de Santé Rurale

Faculty of Medicine, Gezira University Wadmedani P.O. Box 130 Wadmedani Sudan

Telephone: (249) 83192 Telex: 50003 SD Yadum

Contact: Deputy Director - Dr Flbagir Ali Flfaki

Founded: 1985 Staff: 14 salaried

Aims: To strengthen the primary health care concept and understanding among all health and health care related workers. To train health workers in management skills and other managemal processes. To undertake research in all primary health care components, especially in mother and child health, and child survival.

Active in: Sudan, Fgypt, Jordan, Yemen, United Arab Emirates, Afghanistan, Lebanon, Somalia

Actions in Sudan

Research: applied research

Training: training of professionals: training of trainertraining of caregivers: training of parents

Policy: policy development :

Programmes/projects: programme/project implementation - programme/project evaluation - Networking institution building/support information

Networking: institution building/support information exchange

Actions in other countries

Training: training of professionals:

Networking: institution building/support information exchange:

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: health care nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: home-based programmes

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: physical upgrading community health awareness raising

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services university courses/programmes research/consultancy services :

Information Activities

- in Sudan: information/inquiry services documentation centre library conferences/seminars training workshops

in other countries: publications service conferences/seminars

SD042 SOS CHILDREN'S VILLAGE SUDAN

Village d'Enfants SOS Soudan

P.O. Box 1988 - Khartoum Sudan

Contact: Director - Tag 1 Sirag

Founded: 1978

Staff: 28 salaried - 2 non-salaried

Aims: To care for abandoned and homeless children. It give these children love, shelter, food, education and vocational training. To help them secure tobs in the future.

Active in: Sudan

Actions in Sudan

Research: applied research

Training: training of trainers - training of caregivers

training of parents - training of students

Programmes/projects: programme project

implementation programme project evaluation

Services: provision of services Networking: information exchange

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: SOS Kinderdort International (Austria)
Partners: national/local NGOs : international NGOs
governmental agencies UN agencies
schools/universities hospitals/medical centres

Target communities: capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development health care early childhood development mutition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: home-based programmes non-formal centre-based programmes recreational facilities institutionalized children preschool education foster care

Child at risk: developmental difficulties—behavioural difficulties—charid abuseneglect orphans—children of war conflict.

Child advocacy: child protection—UN Convention on the Child.

Target groups: 0-1 year infant 2-3 years claid 4-6 years child child in urban setting claid in inflicultural setting boxs guls family

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & int mt welfare household food security. Jamily services

Family education & awareness: parent care over education child-rearing practices responsible parenthood:

Family at risk: single-parent familie

Target groups: siblings

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social civices workplace childcare

Community development & awareness: according a environment:



Target groups: children · vouth ·

Services & Information

advisory Services: support services counselling/guidance services care services documentation/information services -

Information Activities

- in Sudan: awareness raising/advocacy documentation centre publications service training/workshops

Publications: institution's activities reports -

Materials: teaching aids/kits tovs/recreational materials ·

SD043

SUDAN FAMILY PLANNING ASSOCIATION

Association Soudanaise de Planning Familial

P.O. Box 170 Khartoum Sudan

Telephone: (249) 451095 Telex: 22578 IDA SD Cable: Famplan

Contact: President - Dr Tawtik El Deeb

Founded: 1965

Staff: 20 salaried · 16 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 240000

Grant-making: (10% of annual budget) in Sudan ·

Aims: To raise awareness of population factors and issues. To provide service delivery of contraceptives, training in mother and child health and family planning

programmes. To help improve women's life skills.

Active in: Sudan

Actions in Sudan

Research: data collection/surveys -

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of trainers training of

caregivers - training of students -Policy: policy advocacy - policy implementation -Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Services: development of services - provision of services ·

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials distribution -

Networking: information exchange

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: IPPF (UK)

Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies UN agencies training organizations research institutes schools/universities hospitals/medical centres religious organizations women's groups youth groups :

Target communities: rural areas & villages + slums + towns & small cities suburbs capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: social development childhood diseases/growth health care immunization - early childhood development - mental health · AIDS · oral rehydration · nutrition/feeding programmes :

Child at risk: child abuse/neglect street children refugee children · orphans · children of war/conflict ·

Child advocacy: child protection - child legislation children's rights · UN Convention on the Child ·

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 4-6 years child · child in urban setting boys

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare primary health care—family planning—teenage pregnancy—household food security—family services health centres · family guidance · AIDS/transmitable diseases

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education parent/child interaction, stimulation nutrition education + health education + responsible parenthood + parent-to-be + literacy + weaning practices ·

Family at risk: refugees -

Family advocacy: family protection—family legislation

health protection human rights

Target groups: family in rural setting - family in urban setting family in multicultural setting working parents parents of disabled children siblings illiterate literate men women professionals paraprofessionals · policymakers · community

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services health services social welfare

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment community health infrastructure development skills training - awareness raising -

Community advocacy: health policy population policy children's rights child protection

Target groups: rural communities - urban communities multicultural communities refugees children youth parents professionals policymakers

Services & Information

Services: advisory support services counselling/guidance services documentation/information services research/consultancy services outreach programmes/extension work - radio/television/media programmes · information campaigns ·

Information Activities

- in Sudan: information/inquiry services - awareness raising/advocacy · documentation centre · library · audio-visual service publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops training/workshops computerized information service

Publications: textbooks/publications

periodicals/journals Materials: audio-visual aids (films/videos/slides/posters) tovs/recreational materials ·



SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC

Children under 5	Under 5 mortality	Malnourished children
(thousands)	rate	under 5 (%)
1993	1993	1992 al
2600	39	12
Male literacy	Female literacy	Total fertility
rate (%)	rate (%)	rate per woman
1995	1995	1993
86	56	6.1
GNP per	Access to health	Access to
capita (US\$)	care services (%)	sefe water (%)
1992 b/	1985-93	1988-93
1160	90	74
Pre-primary	Pre-primary gross	Convention on the
age group	enrolment ratio (%)	Rights of the Child
1991	1991	ratified
3.5	6	14/08/1993

SY044 ASSOCIATION ARABE SYRIENNE DES VILLAGES D'ENFANTS SOS

Syrian Arab Association of SOS Children's Villages

BP 5567 Damas Syrian Arab Republic

Telephone: (963-11) 715299

Contact: Directrice - Zeinab El Solh

Founded: 1975

Annual budget: US\$ 357143

Aims: To provide care, shelter, love and education to orphans and abandoned children in a family-like environment, giving them a chance to enjoy a happy and balanced childhood.

Active in: Syria

Actions in Syria

Research: basic research - applied research -

Programmes/projects: programme/project implementation

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: SOS Kinderdorf International (Austria)

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: health care -

Child care & education: home-based programmes infant care preschool education

Child at risk: child abuse/neglect -

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services:

Information Activities

in Syrian Arab Pepublic: a vareness raising/advocacy publications service training/workshops

SY045 SYRIAN FAMILY PLANNING ASSOCIATION (SFPA)

Association Syrienne de Planning Familial

Al Jalaa Street, Saegh Building, P.O. Box 2282 Damascus Syrian Arab Republic

Telephone: (963-11) 330714

Telex: 412823

Cable: Famplan - Damas

Contact: President - Dr Madani Al Khyami

Founded: 1974

Staff: 60 salaried · 238 non-salaried ·

Annual budget: US\$ 302000

Grant-making: in Syrian Arab Republic

Aims: To undertake family planning activities. To provide mother and child counselling, and early detection of cervical cancer.

Active in: Syria

Actions in Syria

Research: basic research applied research data collection/surveys development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of trainers training of caregivers

Policy: policy development · policy advocacy · policy

monitoring policy implementation

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services provision of services.

Publications/materials: publications/materials design - publications/materials preparation - publications/materials distribution - publications/materials evaluation

Networking: institution building/support information exchange project funding/cofinancing

meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership Member of: IPPF (UK) Local branches/offices: 17 Individual members: 238

Partners: national/local NGOs · international NGOs · UN agencies · trade unions · women's groups · youth

Target communities: rural areas & villages : slums : towns & small cities : suburbs : capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: AIDS

Target groups: paraprofessionals · family ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare family planning—teenage pregnancy—family guidance—AIDS/transmitable diseases

Family education & awareness: child-rearing practices father's role be weaning practices.

Target groups: family in rural setting women



Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services health services family welfare centres voluntary services youth programmes

services · youth programmes ·
Community development & awareness: community health · skills training ·

Community livelihood: small enterprise development women's programmes income-generation activities rural development.

Community advocacy: health policy population policy

Target groups: poor communities -

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services counselling/guidance services documentation/information services university courses/programmes research/consultancy services provision of equipment/supplies outreach programmes/extension work technical services radio/television/media programmes

Information Activities

 in Syrian Arab Republic: documentation centre library audio-visual service publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops

Publications: instructional guides/manuals textbooks/publications periodicals/journals research/conferences reports

Materials: audio-visual aids (films/videos/slides/posters)



TUNISIA

Children under 5 (thousands)	Under 5 mortality rate	Malnourished children under 5 (%)
1993	1993	1992 a/
1100	36	10
Male literacy	Female literacy	Total fertility
rate (%)	rate (%)	rate per woman
1995	1995	1993
79	55	3.4
GNP per	Access to health	Access to
capita (US\$)	care services (%)	safe water (%)
1992 b/	1985-93	1988-93
1720	90	99
Pre-primary	Pre-primary gross	Convention on the
age group 1991	enrolment ratio (%) 1991	Rights of the Child ratified
3.5	9	29/02/1992

TN046 ASSOCIATION D'AIDE A L'ENFANCE

Child Care Association

42 Avenue Béchir Sfar Tunis Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 561056

Contact: Président - Trabelsi Mohsen

Founded: 1948

Staff: 22 salaried · 12 non-salaried ·

Grant-making: (60% of annual budget) in Tunisia

Aims: To provide maternal and child care. To disseminate basic knowledge of hygiene and child-rearing practices. To undertake early screening of disabled children. To provide support to working mothers by providing daycare and kindergarten services for their children, within the actions of the Association.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: data collection/surveys ·

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services provision of services

Networking: information exchange meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership Local branches/offices: 1

Individual members: 12

Partners: national/local NGOs · training organizations · hospitals/medical centres ·

Target communities: capital or large cities -

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development childhood diseases/growth childhood disabilities health care immunization early childhood development early intervention mental health nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: non-formal centre-based programmes recreational facilities infant care institutionalized children disabled children rehabilitation preschool education special education foster care child safety

Child at risk: developmental difficulties behavioural difficulties emotional difficulties learning

difficulties · children with special needs ·

Child advocacy: child protection · children's rights · Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child · child in urban setting · child in multicultural setting · boys · girls · parents · siblings · family ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare primary health care family services

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education child-rearing practices nutrition education health education

Family at risk: poor families

Family advocacy: family protection · health protection

Target groups: family in urban setting a family in multicultural setting working parents parents of disabled children siblings.

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: health services family welfare centres voluntary services formal preschool/care community-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment awareness raising

Community advocacy: health policy - children's rights - child protection -

Target groups: children youth parents families professionals

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services documentation/information services research/consultancy services

Information Activities

- in Tunisia: information/inquiry services conferences/seminars

Materials: toys/recreational materials -

TN047 ASSOCIATION DE SAUVEGARDE DES HANDICAPES MOTEURS DE SFAX

Sfax Association for the Care of Physically Disabled

Rue Mohamed Kacen M'Seddi 3003 Sfax Tunisia

Telephone: (216-42) 42647

Contact: Secrétaire Général Adjoint - Fourati Fathi

Founded: 1974

Staff: 8 salaried · 4 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 20482

Grant-making: (30% of annual budget) in Tunisia -

Aims: To provide medical care, training, social welfare and cultural activities for the physically disabled in the region of Sfax.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: basic research - applied research -

Training: training of profes...lonals - training of trainers - training of caregivers - training of parents -



80

72

Programmes/projects: programme/project implementation · programme/project evaluation ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: childhood disabilities health care early childhood development nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: home-based programmes non-formal centre-based programmes infant care institutionalized children

Child advocacy: children's rights ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare ·
Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education · child-rearing practices ·

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment awareness raising

Community advocacy: children's rights -

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services documentation/information services

Information Activities

 in Tunisia: library audio-visual service conferences/seminars training/workshops

TN048 ASSOCIATION LA VOIX DE L'ENFANT

Voice of the Child Association

13 rue Medersa Slimania 1008 Tunis Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 568162

Contact: Président Founded: 1986

Staff: 2 salaried · 50 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 5000

Aims: To listen to the psychological, educational, social and cultural needs of children, so as to make their voice heard in order to improve their situation. To promote children's self-expression and stimulate their creativity. To help children in need. To integrate children and women into the process of sustainable development.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: development of models/methods/materials · Policy: policy monitoring · policy implementation · Programmes/projects: programme/project design ·

programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services provision of services

Networking: institution building/support information exchange project funding/cofinancing

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: Union des Associations Maghrébiennes (Morocco)

Local branches/offices: 12 Individual members: 50 Partners: national/local NGOs · international NGOs · governmental agencies · hospitals/medical centres · women's groups ·

Target communities: rural areas & villages · towns & small cities ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development childhood disabilities mental health

Child care & education: non-formal centre-based programmes disabled children

Child at risk: emotional difficulties.

Child advocacy: child protection · child legislation · children's rights ·

Target groups: 4-6 years child · child in rural setting ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare ADS/transmitable diseases

Family at risk: single-parent families -

Family advocacy: family protection · family legislation

Target groups: family in rural setting · family in urban setting · women ·

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services home visits community-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: community health social mobilization awareness raising

Community livelihood: leadership training women's programmes rural development

Community advocacy: family legislation population policy

Target groups: rural communities urban communities children families

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services information campaigns

Information Activities

- in Tunisia: publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops - Publications: institution's activities reports issue-

Publications: institution's activities reports : issueoriented documents/dossiers : reference documents (directories, bibliographies) :

Materials: audio-visual aids (films/videos/slides/posters) teaching aids/kits toys/recreational materials

TN049 ASSOCIATION MEDICO-PSYCHOTHERAPIOUE

Ibnou Sina Child Medico-Psychotherapeutic Association

BP 81 Sfax 3000 Tunisia

INFANTILE IBNOU SINA

Telephone: (216-42) 34194 / 99386 / 67495

Contact: Président - Dr Mohamed Anouar Achich

Founded: 1986

Staff: 35 salaried · 8 non-salaried ·

Aims: To contribute to mental health actions for children and adolescents. To put in place mechanisms to prevent psychological difficulties and treat those through psycho-therapeutical and rehabilitative methods. To create and promote multi-disciplinary specialized therapeutic centres. To help families take appropriate care of their children, and help them overcome difficulties. To inform and raise awareness of the



problems of children and adolescents with psychological problems or other disfunctions.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: applied research

Training: training of professionals - training of trainers

· training of parents · training of students

Policy: policy advocacy

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation

publications/materials distribution

Networking: information exchange

meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs training organizations hospitals/inedical centres community groups

Target communities: towns & small cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development ir.tellectual/language development childhood disabilities mental health

Child care & education: disabled children rehabilitation preschool education special education

Child at risk: behavioural difficulties emotional difficulties learning difficulties

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child · parents · professionals · policymakers · family ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: family guidance

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education parent/child interaction, stimulation.

Target groups: parents of disabled children

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: awareness raising

Target groups: children · parents ·

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services counselling/guidance services care services documentation/information services research/consultancy services

Information Activities

- in Tunisia: documentation centre library audiovisual service publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops

Publications: periodicals/journals issue-oriented documents/dossiers research/conferences reports

Materials: audio-visual aids (films/videos/stides/posters) toys/recreational materials

TN050 ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE D'AIDE AUX SOURDS (ATAS)

Tunisian Association for the Care of the Deaf

8 rue Ibn El Bara - Cité Ettahrir 1042 - Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 223732

Contact: Zalila Fethia

Founded: 1970

Staff: 50 salaried · 20 non-salaried ·

Aims: To defend the rights of the deaf. To integrate all disabled people and their families into society by providing them with the means to become more independent, including early education and appropriate rehabilitation in specialized institutions or in schools which emphasize reintegration. To promote the recognition that all disabled people have the right to be educated, to receive vocational training and to refuse to be segregated. To participate in national policy making and programmes to assist the disabled.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: applied research

Training: training of professionals

Programmes/projects: programme/project evaluation ·

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: Fédération Mondiale des Sourds (Finland), Arabic Federation of Organizations of the Deaf - AFOD (Syria)

Local branches/offices: 19

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: childhood disabilities health care early childhood development.

Child care & education: infant care · institutionalized

children · preschool education · Child advocacy: children's rights ·

Family Programmes

Family education & awareness: parent/child interaction, stimulation

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment

Community advocacy: children's rights

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services documentation/information services

Information Activities

- in Tunisia: library conferences/seminars training/workshops

TN051

ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE DE L'ENFANT

Tunisian Child Association

92 Avenue Habib Bourguiba 2080 Ariana Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 719000

Contact: Président - Ali Ben Saad

Founded: 1982

Aims: To promote child development in the fields of education, culture and health.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Training: training of trainers

Services: provision of services

Networking: meetings/workshops



Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: international NGOs UN agencies schools/universities

Target communities: towns & small cities · capital or large cities ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: physical development health care

Child advocacy: children's rights Target groups: boys girls

Family Programmes

Family education & awareness: nutrition education

Family at risk: poor families ·
Family advocacy: health protection ·

Target groups: family in multicultural setting ·

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: sociocultural

environment

Community livelihood: human resource development -

Target groups: multicultural communities

TN052

ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE DES VILLAGES D'ENFANTS SOS (ATUESOS)

Tunisian SOS Children's Villages Association

Bureau National de Coordination, 3 bis rue Emrou El Kais 2070 La Marsa-Plage Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 742495 Fax: (216-1) 742581

Contact: Responsable, Bureau National de Coordination

- Doris Djazir Founded: 1981 Staff: 56 salaried

Aims: To improve the living conditions of abandoned children and orphans. To provide them with a home, a

family and care.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Training: training of trainers - training of caregivers - training of parents -

Programmes/projects:

implementation ·

/projects: programme/project

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: SOS Kinderdorf International (Austria)

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: early childhood development:

Child care & education: infant care preschool education

Child at risk: child abuse/neglect-Child advocacy: children's rights

Family Programmes

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education

Family at risk: single-parent families ·

Community Programmes

Community advocacy: children's rights -

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services ·

Information Activities

in Tunisia: information/inquiry service documentation centre library training/workshops

TN053

ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE DU PLANNING FAMILIAL (ATPF)

Tunisian Family Planning Association

9 rue Essouyouti El Menzah 1004 Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 232419 / 232141

Contact: Directeur Exécutit - Lotti Labbane

Founded: 1968

Staff: 22 salaried · 100 non-salaried ·

Annual budget: US\$ 200000

Aims: To raise public awareness of demographic problems by disseminating scientific information. To help improve the well-being of families, encouraging them to face up to their responsibilities and potentials. To prepare individuals to overcome the difficulties of life as a couple.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Training: training of professionals ·

Programmes/projects:

programme/project

implementation

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: IPPF (UK)

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: health care

nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: home-based programmes -

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver

education · child-rearing practices

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services
Community development & awareness: sociocultural
environment socioeconomic environment
awareness raising

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services ·

Information Activities

in Tunisia: library audio-visual service publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops

TN054

DIRECTION DE LA MEDECINE SCOLAIRE ET UNIVERSITAIRE (DMSU)

Directorate for School and University Health

Ministère de la Santé Publique



Place Bad Saadoun Tunis Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 794185

Contact: Directeur - Dr Alya Mahjoub Zarrouk

Founded: 198i Staff: 20 salaried ·

Annual budget: US\$ 500000

Aims: To provide medical supervision and heath promotion in the preschool, school and university environments.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: basic research · applied research · data development collection/surveys models/methods/materials ·

Training: training of professionals training of paraprotessionals training of trainers.

Policy: policy development policy advocacy policy monitoring policy implementation

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding ·

Services: development of services provision of

Publications/materials: publications/materials design preparation publications/materials publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation

project information exchange Networking: funding/cofinancing · meetings/workshops ·

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: Commission Maghrébine de Santé Scolaire

Partners: national/local NGOs · international NGOs · governmental agencies · UN agencies · training research institutes organizations schools/universities · hospitals/medical centres · professional associations · trade unions ·

Target communities: rural areas & villages · slums · towns & small cities · suburbs · capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development physical development · intellectual/language development · childhood diseases/growth · childhood disabilities health care immunization early childhood development - early intervention - mental health ·

Child at risk: developmental difficulties · behavioural difficulties emotional difficulties learning difficulties ·

Target groups: 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child · child in rural setting · child in urban setting · boys · girls · professionals · paraprofessionals · policymakers ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: heath centres

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education · nutrition education · health education · parent-to-be ·

Target groups: family in rural setting · family in urban women professionals setting · men · paraprofessionals · policymakers ·

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: health services · youth programmes ·

Community development & awareness: community health · social mobilization · awareness raising ·

Community advocacy: health policy

Target groups: rural communities urban communities children youth parents families professionals paraprofessionals policymakers community leaders ·

Services & Information

support services Services: advisory counselling/guidance services documentation/information services provision of equipment/supplies · outreach programmes/extension work technical services radio/television/media programmes · information campaigns

Information Activities

- in Tunisia: information/inquiry services awareness raising/advocacy · audio-visual service · publications service · conferences/seminars training/workshops

DIRECTION DES SOINS DE SANTE DE BASE

Directorate for Basic Health Care

Ministère de la Santé Publique 28 rue Cyrus le Grand Tunis Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 252849 Fax: (216-1) 351867

Contact: Directeur - Dr Moncef Sidhom

Founded: 1981 Staff: 115 salaried Annual budget: US\$ 2573

Aims: To provide integrated health services in response to the immediate needs of people. To put these services as close as possible to remote population through the decentralization of services and the setting up of basic health structures in the most remote areas. To provide health education at all levels of society. To promote maternal and child health, including family planning. To reinforce the means for disease control and prevention.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: applied research · data collection/surveys · Training: training of professionals · training of trainers

Policy: policy development · policy advocacy · policy monitoring · policy implementation ·

Programmes/projects: programme/project design implementation programme/project programme/project evaluation · programme/project funding ·
Services: development of services ·

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation ·

Networking: information exchange meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: governmental agencies UN agencies schools/universities training organizations · hospitals/medical centres ·



Target communities: rural areas & villages · slums · towns & small cities · suburbs · capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development physical development · childhood diseases/growth · childhood disabilities · health care · immunization · early childhood development · early intervention · mental health oral rehydration nutrition/feeding programmes .

Child at risk: developmental difficulties · behavioural difficulties emotional difficulties

abuse/neglect ·

Child advocacy: children's rights · UN Convention on

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child child in rural setting child in urban setting child in multicultural setting boys girls professionals · paraprofessionals · policymakers · family

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare primary health care · family planning · health centres AIDS/transmitable diseases

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education child-rearing practices nutrition education · health education · parent-to-be · weaning practices ·

Family at risk: poor families parents with disabilities/AIDS

Family advocacy: health protection human rights Target groups: family in rural setting · family in urban setting parents of disabled children women professionals · paraprofessionals · policymakers ·

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: health services family welfare centres · home visits ·

Community development & awareness: community health social mobilization infrastructure development · awareness raising ·

Community advocacy: child protection ·

Target groups: professionals - paraprofessionals -

Services & Information

Services: care services · documentation/information services university courses/programmes research/consultancy services provision equipment/supplies · outreach programmes/extension work · technical services · radio/television/media programmes · information campaigns · hotline. help/support services

Information Activities

- in Tunisia: information/inquiry services · library · audio-visual service publications service conferences/seminars · training/workshops

Publications: instructional guides/manuals textbooks/publications · institution's activities reports issue-oriented documents/dossiers research/conferences reports ·

Materials: audio-visual aids (films/videos/slides/posters) ·

FONDATION TUNISIENNE POUR LE DEVELOPPEMENT COMMUNAUTAIRE (FTDC)

Tunisian Foundation for Community Development

11 rue d'Irak 1002 Tunis Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 782513 Fax: (216-1) 782513

Contact: Directeur exécutif - Khanfir Habib

Founded: 1986

Staff: 35 salaried · 200 non-salaried ·

Annual budget: US\$ 500000

Aims: To promote integrated community development in poor areas. To undertake programmes in the following areas: mother and child survival and health; promotion of women through training, credit systems and improvement of basic infrastructures; environmental promotion. To provide educational assistance to poor children.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: applied research · data collection/surveys · development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of paraprofessionals · training of trainers - training of caregivers - training of parents -Policy: policy development - relicy advocacy - policy

monitoring · policy implementation ·

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Services: provision of services ·

Networking: information exchange meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: International Save the Children Alliance (Switzerland), Association des Organismes Familiaux (France)

Partners: national/local NGOs - international NGOs governmental agencies · UN agencies · training organizations research institutes sc. ools/universities · hospitals/medical centres community groups · foundations · cooperatives women's groups · youth groups · parents' groups · Target communities: rural areas & villages · towns &

small cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development childhood diseases/growth · immunization · early childhood development · early intervention · AIDS · oral rehydration · nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: institutionalized children $rehabilitation \cdot preschool\ education \cdot$

Child at risk: child labour · street children ·

Child advocacy: child protection · children's rights · UN Convention on the Child ·

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child child in rural setting child in urban setting boys girls parents professionals policymakers tamily

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare primary health care · family planning · household food security health centres family guidance AIDS/transmitable diseases - family support groups -

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education parent/child interaction, stimulation father's role nutrition education health education responsible parenthood - parent-to-be - literacy weaning practices

Family at risk: single-parent families - poor families -

unemployed -

Family advocacy: family protection - family legislation health protection - human rights -



Target groups: family in rural setting - family in urban setting siblings illiterate literate men women professionals paraprofessionals policymakers community

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services health services - social welfare - voluntary services -

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment · socioeconomic environment · physical upgrading · community health · water & environmental sanitation social mobilization infrastructure development skills training awareness raising

Community livelihood: small enterprise development credit systems, savings huma development leadership training human resource programmes income-generation activities rural development - environmental protection -

Community advocacy: health policy family legislation population policy children's rights

child protection human rights :

Target groups: rural communities - urban communities poor communities children youth parents families professionals paraprofessionals policymakers community leaders

Services & Information

Services: counselling/guidance services · information campaigns:

INSTITUT DE PROMOTION DES HANDICAPES (IPH)

Institut for the Promotion of the Disabled

rue Jabrane Khalil Jabrane Manouba 2010 Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 520588 / 581782

Fax: (216-1) 521267

Contact: Directrice générale - Souad Lamine Jomni

Founded: 1983

Staff: 60 salaried · 6 non-salaried ·

Aims: To renforce prevention programmes against disabilities. To set up rehabilitation structures. To provide training and further learning to technical staff. To support and supervise institutions for the disabled. To undertake research and raise public awareness in the field of disabilities. To provide vocational training for mentally disabled persons.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: basic research - applied research - data development collection/surveys models/methods/materials :

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of trainers training of caregivers - training of students

Policy: policy development policy advocacy policy

monitoring policy implementation Programmes/projects: programme/project design implementation programme/project programme/project evaluation

Services: development of services:

Publications/materials: publications/materials design : preparation publications/materials publications/materials distribution

Networking: institution building/support - information exchange meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

- Partners: UN agencies schools/universities hospitals/medical centres

Target communities: rural areas & villages : towns & small cities capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development intellectual/language development childhood disabilities intervention '

Child care & education: formal childcare centres institutionalized children disabled children rehabilitation preschool education specispecial education

Child at risk: developmental difficulties · behavioural emotional difficulties difficulties difficulties - children with special needs

Child advocacy: UN Convention on the Child

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child child in rural setting child in urban setting child in multicultural setting boys girls parents · siblings · professionals · paraprofessionals · policymakers family

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: family guidance

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education parent/child interaction, stimulation health education parent-to-be

Family at risk: parents with disabilities/AIDS

Target groups: family in rural setting - family in arban setting parents of disabled children

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: home visits: Community development & awareness: social marketing

Community livelihood: leadership training -

Community advocacy: children's rights protection

Target groups: rural communities - urban communities children policymakers

Services & Information

counselling/guidance Services: documentation/information services university provision courses/programmes services technical equipment/supplies radio/television/media programmes information campaigns · hotline, help/support services

Information Activities

- in Tunisia: awareness raising/advocacy · library · audio-visual service publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops

guides/manuals instructional Publications: textbooks/publications - institution's activities reports periodicals/journals - research/conferences reports -

audio-visual (films/videos/slides/posters)

INSTITUT NATIONAL DE NUTRITION ET DE TECHNOLOGIE ALIMENTAIRE

National Nutrition and Food Technology Institute

11 rue Diebel Lakledan - Bab Saadoun - Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 663770



Fax: (216-1) 562478

Contact: Prof. Z. Kallal

Founded: 1968 Staff: 309 salaried -

Aims: To undertake research, teaching and programmes in the field of nutrition, food hygiene and nutritional health control.

in: Tunisia, Morocco, Algeria, Sudan, Active Francophone Africa

Actions in Tunisia

Research: applied research -

Training: training of professionals - training of trainers training of caregivers - training of parents

Policy: policy advocacy

Programmes/projects: programme/project evaluation -

Actions in other countries Research: applied research -

Programmes/projects: programme/project evaluation ·

Young Child Programmes
Child health & development: health care nutrition/feeding programmes Child care & education: preschool education : Child advocacy: children's rights

Family Programmes Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare . Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education

Community Programmes Community advocacy: children's rights :

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services -Information Activities

- in Tunisia: awareness raising/advocacy library audio-visual service conferences/seminars training/workshops ·

INSTITUT NATIONAL DE SANTE PUBLIQUE

National Public Health Institute

Ministère de la Santé Publique Tunis 1030 Tunisia

Contact: Directeur - Hedi Mhenni

Founded: 1985 Staff: 3 salaried

Annual budget: US\$ 18072

Aims: To undertake research, training and policy development on public health issues.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: basic research - applied research -

Training: training of professionals

Policy: policy development

Programmes/projects: programme/project evaluation ·

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: childhood disabilities health care early childhood development nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: infant care -Child at risk: child abuse/neglect

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare -Family education & awareness: child-rearing practices -

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment awareness raising ·

Services & Information

Services: documentation/information services -

Information Activities

- in Tunisia: library conferences/seminars training/workshops

TN060 MINISTERE DE LA JEUNESSE ET DE L'ENFANCE (MJE)

Ministry of Youth and Childhood

86 Avenue Hédi Chaker Tunis 1002 Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 892161

Contact: Directeur de l'Enfance

Aims: To organize and develop early childhood education, through the improvement of care services and installations and their expansion in particular in rural areas, and through the education of parents to better prepare them in their child raising tasks. To promote protection and care of children from families in need and children with special needs. To organize and develop out-of-school educational activities for children (6 years old and older), providing them with afterschool care structures and offering them recreational activities adapted to their needs.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: basic research applied research development collection/surveys models/methods/materials -

Training: training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of trainers training of caregivers - training of parents - training of students

Policy: policy development - policy advocacy - policy monitoring policy implementation

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services provision of services

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation

Networking: institution building/support information exchange project funding/cofinancing meetings/workshops



Co-operation/Partnership

Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies UN agencies training institutes research organizations schools/universities religious organizations professional associations community groups foundations cooperatives women's groups parents' groups

Target communities: rural areas & villages · slums · towns & small cities · suburbs · capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development intellectual/language development - early childhood development mental health nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: home-based programmes non-formal centre-based programmes childcare centres · recreational facilities · infant care · institutionalized children preschool education multiculturalism · foster care · child safety

Child at risk: child abuse/neglect · child labour · street children children with special needs

Child advocacy: child protection child legislation children's rights. UN Convention on the Child

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 2-3 years child · 4-6 years child · child in rural setting · child in urban setting child in multicultural setting boys girls parents · professionals · policymakers

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: family services -

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education child-rearing practices parent/child interaction, stimulation father's role responsible parenthood

Family at risk: single-parent families poor families Family advocacy: family protection - health protection

Target groups: family in rural setting · family in urban setting family in multicultural setting working parents parents of disabled children siblings illiterate · literate · men · women · professionals · paraprofessionals policymakers community

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services social welfare bome visits vouth programmes workplace childcare formal preschool/care community-based preschool/care parent-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment · water & environmental sanitation · social mobilization - awareness raising -

Community livelihood: leadership training - women's programmes rural development environmental protection ·

Community advocacy: children's rights child protection

Target groups: rural communities · urban communities · multicultural communities · poor communities · children youth parents families professionals paraprofessionals policymakers community leaders :

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services - care services services documentation/information research/consultancy services provision equipment/supplies technical services radio/television/media programmes information campaigns · hotline, help/support services ·

Information Activities

Tunisia: awareness raising/advocacy in documentation centre · library audio-visual publications service service conferences/seminars · training/workshops ·

Publications: instructional guides/manuals oriented documents/dossiers

OFFICE NATIONAL DE LA FAMILLE ET DE LA POPULATION

National Family and Population Office

42 Avenue de Madrid, BP 55, Belvédère 1012 Tunis Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 341088

Telex: 15164 TN Fax: (216-1) 354507

Contact: Président, Directeur Général - Dr Mohamed

Moncef Boukhris Founded: 1973 Staff: 718 salaried ·

Annual budget: US\$ 5600000

Aims: To carry out economic, social and demographic research to improve the level of information on family planning issues at the family and community levels. To develop programmes that promote family health care and facilitate health education at all levels of society.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: basic research - applied research -

Training: training of professionals · training of trainers training of caregivers training of parents

Policy: policy development · policy advocacy

programme/project Programmes/projects: implementation · programme/project evaluation

Young Child Programmes
Child health & development: health care nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: home-based programmes infant care -

Child at risk: child abuse/neglect ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & infant welfare Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education

Family at risk: single-parent families :

Community Programmes

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment awareness raising ·

Services & Information

نځ support Services: advisory documentation/information services

Information Activities

Tunisia: information/inquiry service in audio-visual documentation centre · library publications service conferences/seminars training/workshops



TN062 UNION TUNISIENNE D'AIDE AUX INSUFFISANTS MENTAUX (UTAIM)

Tunisian Union for the Care of Mentally Disabled

5 rue Khemaies Ternane, Montfleury Tunis 1008 Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 247190

Contact: Président - Mustapha Kamel Terzi

Founded: 1967

Aims: To promote the prevention of mental and intellectual handicaps and provide rehabilitation programmes for people with such disabilities. To teach and vocationally train people with mental handicaps, and provide them with an opportunity to meet each other. To defend the rights and interests of people who are mentally disabled.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Programmes/projects: implementation

programme/project

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: childhood disabilities. Child care & education: preschool education.

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services documentation/information services

Information Activities

- in Tunisia: library - audio-visual service conferences/seminars - training/workshops -

TN063 UNION TUNISIENNE DE SOLIDARITE SOCIALE (UTSS)

Tunisian Social Solidarity Union

4 rue Al-Roussafi 1002 Tunis Tunisia

Telephone: (216-1) 890266 / 890087

Fax: (216-1) 797757

Contact: Directeur Général - Sadok Bel Haj Dahmane

Founded: 1956 Staff: 600 salaried

Annual budget: US\$ 5200000

Aims: To design and implement development and social welfare programmes in faveur of people in need. To plan and coordinate social welfare actions of its various structures: regional federations, local associations and specifized groups. To support and promote the actions undertake by others to promote disadvantaged groups (childhood, disabled, ...). To design, plan and manage social welfare actions and assistance in case of disaters or natural catastrophes.

Active in: Tunisia

Actions in Tunisia

Research: data collection/surveys development of models/methods/materials

Training: training of paraprofessionals -

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding

Services: development of services provision of services.

Networking: institution building/support information exchange project funding/cofinancing meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership Local branches/offices: 23

Partners: national/local NGOs · international NGOs · governmental agencies · women's groups ·

Target communities: rural areas & villages · slums · towns & small cities · suburbs · capital or large cities

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development social development physical development immunization oral rehydration nutrition/feeding programmes

Child care & education: non-formal centre-based programmes recreational facilities preschool

education

Child at risk: developmental difficulties orphans Child advocacy: child protection child legislation children's rights UN Convention on the Child

Target groups: 4-6 years child child in rural setting child in urban setting

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: household food security
Family education & awareness: nutrition education
responsible parenthood

Family at risk: poor families

Family advocacy: family protection

Target groups: family in rural setting · family in urban setting ·

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: youth programmes community-based preschool/care

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment - socioeconomic environment - social mobilization - skills training - awareness raising -

Community livelihood: human resource development women's programmes income-generation activities.

Community advocacy: child protection · Target groups: rural communities ·

Services & Information

Services: care services documentation/information services hotline help/support services

Information Activities

 in Tunisia: information/inquiry services awareness raising/advocacy training/workshops

Publications: institution's activities reports issueoriented documents/dossjers

Materials: toys/recreational materials



YEMEN

Children under 5	Under 5 mortality	Malnourished childre
(thousands)	rate	under 5 (%)
1993	1993	1992 af
2600	137	30
Male literacy	Female literacy	Total fertility
rate (%)	rate (%)	rate per woman
1995	1995	1993
53	26	7.1
GNP per	Access to health	Access to
capita (US\$)	cars services (%)	safe water (%)
1992 b/	1995-93	1988-93
520	38	36
Pre-primary	Pre-primary gross	Convention on the
age group	enrolment ratio (%)	Rights of the Child
1991	1991	ratified
3-6	4	31/05/1991

YE064
YEMEN FAMILY CARE ASSOCIATION (YFCA)

Association d'Aide à la Famille du Yemen

PO Box 795 Sana'a Yemen

Telephone: (967-1) 270948 Telex: 2965 YFCA YE Fax: (967-1) 270948

Contact: Executive Director - Dr Yahiya Al-Babily

Founded: 1976

Staff: 43 salaried · 20 non-salaried · Annual budget: US\$ 600000

Grant-making: (70% of annual budget) in Yemen

Aims: To carry out mother and child health, and family planning programmes. To provide health and population education. To offer health services and training in family planning.

Active in: Yemen

Actions in Yemen

Research: data collection/surveys:

Training: training of caregivers - training of parents - training of students -

Policy: policy advocacy · policy implementation ·

Programmes/projects: programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation

Services: development of services provision of services

Publications/materials: publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution

Networking: institution building/support meetings/workshops

Co-operation/Partnership

Member of: International Planned Parenthood Federation (UK)

Local branches/offices: Individual members: 300

Partners: national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies. UN agencies training organizations research institutes schools/universities hospitals/medical centres religious organizations professional associations community groups trade unions foundations.

cooperatives women's groups youth groups parents' groups

Target communities: rural areas & villages - towns & small cities - suburbs - capital or large cities -

Young Child Programmes

Child health & development: emotional development physical development health care immunization oral rehydration

Child care & education: home-based programmes formal childcare centres disabled children preschool education

Child at risk: child labour - street children -

Child advocacy: child protection - child legisla children's rights - UN Convention on the Child

Target groups: 0-1 year infant · 4-6 years child parents ·

Family Programmes

Family health & welfare: mother & intant welfare primary health care family planning tamily services health centres family guidance.

Family education & awareness: parent/caregiver education nutrition education health education responsible parenthood

Family at risk: refugees teenage parents poor families migrants unemployed

Family advocacy: family protection - family legislation - health protection - human rights

Target groups: family in rural setting family in urban setting family in multicultural setting working parents parents of disabled children filliterate men women professionals policymakers community

Community Programmes

Community welfare & involvement: social services traditional support systems - health services - social welfare - voluntary services - formal preschool/care - community-based preschool/care -

Community development & awareness: sociocultural environment socioeconomic environment community health water & environmental sanitation social mobilization infrastructure development skills training awareness raising

Community livelihood: small enterprise development human resource development women's programmes income-generation activities rural development environmental protection

Community advocacy: health policy family legislation population policy children's rights child protection human rights

Target groups: rural communities - urban communities - multicultural communities - refugees - poor communities - children - youth - parents - families

Services & Information

Services: advisory & support services counselling/guidance services care services documentation/information services university courses/programmes research/consultancy services provision of equipment/supplies outreach programmes/extension work radio/television/media programmes

Information Activities

 in Yemen: information/inquiry services—awareness raising/advocacy documentation centre—audiovisual service—publications service conferences/seminars—training/workshops computerized information service

Publications: instructional guides/manuals institution's activities reports research/conferences reports

Materiais: audio-visual are (films/videos/slides/posters) · teaching aids/kits

INFORMATION LISTS / BIBLIOGRAPHY



UNESCO National Commissions in the Arab States

UNESCO National Commissions fulfil several roles. They serve as advisory organs for their respective countries, assisting in preparations for and participation in UNESCO meetings and conferences, in the elaboration of government positions concerning UNESCO programmes and in the evaluation of such programmes, and in national projects contributing to the implementation of UNESCO programmes.

The Commissions are organs of liaison with other governmental authorities, universities and research institutions, NGOs, national professionnal associations, trade unions, women and youth organizations and individual experts. They serve as executive bodies participating in UNESCO country projects and in national programmes, activities and studies.

The Commissions are also information organs. In this role they may issue regular bulletins and other publications, translate UNESCO publications into local languages, organize seminars, meetings, exhibitions and other events, co-operate with the press, radio and television in their respective countries, and use various other means to inform the general and specialized public of UNESCO's aims and activities, and of related national activities.

ALGERIA

COMMISSION NATIONALE ALGERIENNE POUR L'UNESCO BP 65K El Mouradia Alger, Algeria

IRAQ

IRAQI NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR UNESCO
Ministry of Education
Baghdad, Iraq

BAHRAIN

BAHRAIN NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR UNESCO Ministry of Education PO Box 43 Manama, Bahrain

JORDAN

JORDAN NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SCIENCE Ministry of Education PO Box 1646 Amman, Jordan

DJIBOUTI

COMMISSION NATIONALE DE DJIBOUTI POUR L'UNESCO Ministère de l'éducation nationale BP 2102 Djibouti, Djibouti

KUWAIT

KUWAIT NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR UNESCO PO Box 3266 Safat Kuwait 13033, Kuwait

EGYPT

EGYPTIAN NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR UNESCO 17 Kuwait Street PO Box 12311 Dokki, Guizeh Cairo, Egypt

LEBANON

COMMISSION NATIONALE LIBANAISE POUR L'UNESCO Ministère de l'éducation nationale et des Beaux-Arts Palais de l'UNESCO Beirut, Lebanon



LIBYAN ARAB JAMAHIRIYA

NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR EDUCATION, SCIENCE AND CULTURE OF THE LYBIAN ARAB JAMAHIRIYA PO Box 1091 Tripoli, Libyan Arab Jamahirirya

MOROCCO

COMMISSION NATIONALE MAROCAINE POUR L'EDUCATION, LA CULTURE ET LES SCIENCES BP 420 10000 Rabat, Morocco

MAURITANIA

COMMISSION NATIONALE POUR L'EDUCATION, LA SCIENCE ET LA CULTURE BP 5115 Nouakchott, Mauritania

OMAN

OMAN NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SCIENCE Ministry of Education PO Box 3 Muscat, Oman

QATAR

QATAR NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR UNESCO Ministry of Education 22nd February Street PO Box 9865 Doha, Qatar

SYRIA

COMMISSION NATIONALE SYRIENNE POUR L'UNESCO Ministère de l'éducation Damas, Syria

SAUDI ARABIA

NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR UNESCO Ministry of Education Riyadh, Saudi Arabia

SOMALIA

SOMALI NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR UNESCO Ministry of Education and Culture PO Box 1182 Mogadiscio, Somalia

SUDAN

SUDANESE NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR EDUCATION, SCIENCE AND CULTURE PO Box 2324 Khartoum, Sudan

TUNISIA

COMMISSION NATIONALE TUNISIENNE POUR L'EDUCATION, LA SCIENCE ET LA CULTURE Ministère de l'éducation et des sciences 22 rue d'Angleterre BP 1000 R.P. Tunis, Tunisia

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR UNESCO Ministry of Education and Youth PO Box 295 Abu Dhabi. United Arab Emirates

YEMEN

YEMENI NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR UNESCO Bustan Alkheir 26 September Street PO Box 12642 Sana'a, Yemen



United Nations Information Centres in the Arab States

The UN Department of Public Information regularly provides all its Information Centres with press releases and news-oriented information kits, periodicals and books published by the Department and some of the specialized Agencies. These include Development Forum, the UN Chronicle and the Yearbook of the United Nations. Statistical publications are available at the Centres for reference only. Some of the Centres also produce their own newspapers.

All Information Centres are official depository libraries of the UN and receive major official UN documents, including summary and verbatim record of all UN meetings, special reports and studies prepared by substantive departments of the UN Secretariat. They also stock United Nations posters, wallsheets, and photographs. From time to time, Centres can provide speakers on UN activities for special NGO programmes.

ALGERIA

UNITED NATIONS INFORMATION CENTRE BP 823 Alger-Gare, Algeria

BAHRAIN

(services also provided for Qatar and the United Arab Emirates)

UNITED NATIONS INFORMATION CENTRE House No. 131, Road 2803 Segaya 328, PO Box 26004 Manama, Bahrain

EGYPT

(services also provided for Saudi Arabia and Yemen)

UNITED NATIONS INFORMATION CENTRE 1 Osoris Street Tagher Building (Garden City), PO Box 262 Cairo, Egypt

JORDAN

(services also provided for Iraq)

UNITED NATIONS INFORMATION CENTRE Economic and Social Commission for Western Asia PO Box 927115 Amman, Jordan

LEBANON

(services also provided for Kuwait and Syria)

UNITED NATIONS INFORMATION CENTRE Fakhoury Building, Apt. No. 1 Montée Bain Militaire, Ardati Stract BP 4656 Beirut, Lebanon

LIBYAN ARAB JAMAHIRIYA

UNITED NATIONS INFORMATION CENTRE Muzaffar Al Aftas Street Hay El-Andalous (2) PO Box 286 Tripoli. Libyan Arab Jamahiriya

MOROCCO

UNITED NATIONS INFORMATION CENTRJ. Angle Charia Ibnouzaid et Zankat Roundanat. No. 6 BP 601 Rabat, Morocco

SUDAN

UNITED NATIONS INFORMATION CENTRE United Nations Compound University Avenue PO Box 1992 Khartoum, Sudan



TUNISIA

UNITED NATIONS INFORMATION CENTRE 61 Boulevard Bab Benat BP 863 Tunis, Tunisia



O

Organizations/agencies involved in social and economic development in the Arab States

The following organizations/agencies are involved in social and economic development activities in favour of children, families and communities in the Arab States, at various levels (including research, information dissemination, project implementation, funding, technical assistance, etc ...). The organizations/agencies listed should be contacted directly for details on their programmes and actions in the region.

ALGERIA

PAN-AFRICAN YOUTH MOVEMENT BP 72, Plateau Saulière, Alger, Algeria

AUSTRALIA

ACROD LTD

P.O. Box 60, Curtin ACT 2605, Australia

AUSTRALIAN CATHOLIC RELIEF

19 MacKenzie Street, North Sidney NSW 2060, Australia

AUSTRALIAN COUNCIL FOR OVERSEAS AID

Private Bag 3, Deakin ACT 2600, Australia

AUSTRALIAN INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE BUREAU

P.O. Box 887, Canberra ACT 2061, Australia

AUSTRALIAN RED CROSS SOCIETY

206 Clarendon Street, East Melbourne 3002, Australia

AUSTRALIAN SOCIETY FOR INTERCOUNTRY AID FOR CHILDREN

P.O. Box 68, Northbridge NSW 2063, Australia

COMPASSION

P.O. Box 32, Broadmeadow NSW 2292, Australia

INTERNATIONAL CHILDREN'S AID

24 Gladstone Avenuc, Ryde NSW 2112, Australia

INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL FOR CONTROL OF IODINE DEFICIENCY DISORDERS

Division of Human Nutrition, P.O. Box 10041, Gouger Street. Adelaide 5000, Australia

PLAN INTERNATIONAL AUSTRALIA

PO Box 188, Kew VIC 3101, Australia

REFUGEE COUNCIL OF AUSTRALIA

Locked Bag 15, Camperdown NSW 2050, Australia

WORLD VISION OF AUSTRÁLIA

161 Sturt Street, South Melbourne VIC 3205, Australia

YMCA OF AUSTRALIA

196 Albert Road, South Melbourne, VIC 3205, Australia

AUSTRIA

BUNDESMINISTERIUM FÜR AUSWARTIGE ANGELEGENHEITEN

Ballhausblabs 2, 1010 Vienna, Austria

ENTWICKLUNGSHILFE-KLUB

Postfach 250, 1020 Vienna, Austria

INSTITUT FÜR INTERNATIONALE ZUSAMMENARBEIT

Wipplingergsgrasse 32, 1010 Vienna, Austria

INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL ON SOCIAL WELFARE

Koestlergasse 1/29, 1060 Vienna, Austria

OPEC FUND FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

P.O. Box 995, 1011 Vienna, Austria

ÖSTERREICHISCHE FORSCHUNGSSTIFTUNG FÜR ENTWICKLUNGSHILFE

Türkenstrasse 3/11I, 1090 Vienna, Austria



88

ÖSTERREICHISCHER ENTWICKLUNGSDIENST

Türkenstrasse 3/III, 1090 Vienna, Austria

SOS-KINDERDORF HERMANN-GMEINER AKADEMIE

Luigenstrasse 121, 6020 Innsbruck, Austria

SOS-KINDERDORF INTERNATIONAL

Bilrothstrasse 22, 1190 Vienna, Austria

UNITED NATIONS RELIEF & WORKS AGENCY FOR PALESTINE REFUGEES IN THE NEAR EAST (UNRWA)

Vienna International Centre, PO Box 700, 1400 Vienna, Austria

BELGIUM

ADMINISTRATION GENERALE DE LA COOPERATION AU DEVELOPPEMENT

Place du Champ de Mars 5, BP 57, 1050 Brussels. Belgium

CENTRE NATIONAL DE COOPERATION AU DEVELOPPEMENT

9 Quai du Commerce, 1000 Brussels, Belgium

CENTRE POUR L'ETUDE DES PROBLEMES DU MONDE MUSULMAN CONTEMPORAIN

44 Avenue Jeanne, 1050 Brussels, Belgium

COLLECTIF D'ECHANGES POUR LA TECHNOLOGIE APPROPRIEE

18 rue de la Sablonière, 1000 Brussels, Belgium

DIRECTORATE-GENERAL FOR DEVELOPMENT

Commission of the European Communities, 200 rue de la Loi, 1049 Brussels. Belgium

FONDS EUROPEEN DE DEVELOPPEMENT

Commission of the European Communities, 200 rue de la Loi, 1049 Brussels, Belgium

INSTITUTE OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS INTERNATIONAL

8 rue Amedée Lynen, 1030 Brussel, Belgium

INTERNATIONAL COALITION FOR DEVELOPMENT ACTION

115 rue Stevin, 1040 Brussel, Belgium

INTERNATIONAL FALCON MOVEMENT - SOCIALIST EDUCATION INTERNATIONAL

Waelhemstraat 71, 1030 Brussel, Belgium

LES AMIS DE SOEUR EMMANUELLE

29 Avenue G.Bergmanns, 1050 Bruxelles, Belgium

NATIONAAL CENTRUM VOOR ONTWIKKELINGSSAMENWERKING

11 rue de la Linière, 1060 Brussel, Belgium

NGO DIVISION

DGVIII/B/2, Commission of the European Communities, 200 rue de la Loi, 1049 Brussels, Belgium

SECOURS INTERNATIONAL DE CARITAS CATHOLICA

Rue Guimard 1, 1040 Bruxelles, Belgium

CANADA

AIDE MEDICALE INTERNATIONALE A L'ENFANCE

100 4eme avenue, C.P. 282, La Pocatière Que G0R IZ0, Canada

ASSOCIATION QUEBECOISE DES ORGANISMES DE COOPERATION INTERNATIONALE

4205 rue St. Denis, Suite 240, Montreal Que H2J 2K9, Canada

CANADIAN COUNCIL FOR INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATION

1 Nicholas Street, Suite 300, Ottawa Ont K1N 7B7, Canada

CANADIAN INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

200 Promenade du Portage, Hull K1A 0G4, Canada

CARE CANADA

1550 Carling Avenue, P.O. Box 9000, Ottawa Ont K1G 4X6, Canada

CARREFOUR DES ČEDRES

2376 Quesnel Street, Montreal, Quebec H3J 1G5, Canada

COLLABORATION SANTE INTERNATIONALE

1001 rue de la Canardière, Quebec, Quebec G1J 5G5, Canada

CUSO

135 Rideau Street, Ottawa Ont K1N 9K7, Canada

GIRL GUIDES OF CANADA

50 Merton Street, Toronto, Ontario M4S 1A3, Canada

INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT RESEARCH CENTRE

P.O. Box 8500, 250 Albert Street, Ottawa Ont K1G 3H9, Canada

INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL FOR ADULT EDUCATION

720 Bathurst Street, Suite 500, Toronto Ont M5S 2R4, Canada

MEDICAL AID FOR PALESTINE

356 Sherbrooke Street East, Montreal, Quebec H2X 1E6, Canada



SAVE THE CHILDREN CANADA

3080 Yongc Street, Suite 6020, Toronto, Ontario M4N 3P4, Canada

SERVICE MOND-AMI

3333 rue Sherbrooke Est, Montréal Que H1C 1W5, Canada

WORLD VISION CANADA

6630 Turner Valley Road, Mississauga, Ontario L5N 2S4, Canada

CYPRUS

ARAB RESOURCE COLLECTIVE

PO Box 7047, Nicosia, Cyprus

DENMARK

DANISH INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (DANIDA)

Ministry of Foreign Affairs, 2 Asiatisk Plads, 1448 Copenhagen K, Denmark

CENTER FOR MELLEMOST-STUDIER

University of Odense, Campusvej 55, 5230 Odense M, Denmark

KVINDERNES U-LANDSUDVALG

Landgreven 7 3.t.v., 1301 Copenhagen, Denmark

MELLEMFOLKELIGT SAMVIRKE

Borgergade 10-14., 1300 Copenhagen K, Denmark

RED BARNET

Brogaardsvacnget 4, 2820 Gentofte, Denmark

SOS-BORNEBYERNE

Poul Ankers Gade 2.2, 1271 Kopenhagen K, Denmark

SPEJDERHJÆLPEN

Rosenborggade 3, 1130 Kobenhavn K, Denmark

STOTTEKOMITEEN FOR GHASSAN KANAFANIS KULTURFOND

Sacttedammen 16, 3400 Hillcrod, Denmark

WORLD ASSEMBLY OF YOU'TH

4 Ved Bellahoj, 2700 Bronshoj, Denmark

FINLAND

INSTITUTE OF DEVELOPMENT STUDIES

University of Helsinki, P.O. Box 47, 00014 Helsinki, Finland

FINNISH INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (FINNIDA)

Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Mannerheimintie 15C, 00260 Helsinki 26, Finland

KEHITYSYHTEISTYON PALVELUKESKUS

Fredrikinkatu 63 A 8, 00100 Helsinki, Finland

FRANCE

ACTION INTERNATIONALE CONTRE LA FAIM

34 Avenue Reille, 75014 Paris, France

ACTION INTERNATIONALE POUR LES DROITS DE L'ENFANT

BP 427, 75870 Paris Cedex 18, France

AGENCE DE COOPERATION CULTURELLE ET TECHNIQUE (ACCT)

13 Quai André Citroën, 75015 Paris, France

APPEL AIDE AUX ENFANTS VICTIMES DE LA GUERRE ET DES CONFLITS

89 rue de Flandre, 75019 Paris, France

ASMAE-LES AMIS DE SOEUR EMMANUELLE

15 rue Chapon, 75003 Paris, France

ASSOCIATION CULTURELLE ET AMICALE DES FAMILLES D'OUTRE-MER ET MIGRANTS

42 rue des Sept Arpents, 95000 Pantin, France

ASSOCIATION EURÔPEENNE POUR L'ETUDE DE L'ALIMENTATION ET DU DEVELOPPEMENT DE L'ENFANT

9 Boulevard des Capucines, 75002 Paris, France

ASSOCIATION SANTE-SUD

Le Gyptis, Bâtiment B., 200 Boulevard National, 13003 Marseille, France



BIOFORCE DEVELOPPEMENT

44 Boulevard Léninc, 69694 Venissieux, France

CAISSE FRANÇAISE DE DEVELOPPEMENT

35 rue Boissy d'Anglas, 75379 Paris Cedex 08, France

CENTRE DE CULTURE ET D'INFORMATION SUR LE MONDE ARABE

13 rue St Savournin, 13005 Marseille, France

CENTRE INTERNATIONAL DE L'ENFANCE

Chateau de Longchamp, Bois de Boulogne, 75016 Paris, France

COMMISSION COOPERATION DEVELOPPEMENT

27 rue Blomet, 75015 Paris, France

COMITE CATHOLIQUE CONTRE LA FAIM ET POUR LE DEVELOPPEMENT

4 rue Jean Lantier, 75001 Paris, France

COMITE DE COORDINATION DU SERVICE VOLONTAIRE INTERNATIONAL

Maison de l'UNESCO, 1 rue Miollis, 75015 Paris, France

CONSEIL INTERNATIONAL DES FEMMES

13 rue Caumartin, 75009 Paris, France

EMMAUS INTERNATIONAL

108 bis rue Vaillant Couturier, 94140 Alfortville, France

ENFANCE ET PARTAGE

7 rue Guy Deverre, 61200 Argentan, France

ENFANTS REFUGIES DU MONDE

2 Impasse de la Providence, 75020 Paris, France

FEDERATION INTERNATIONALE DES CEMEA

76 Boulevard de la Villette, 75940 Paris Cedex 19, France

FEDERATION INTERNATIONALE POUR L'ECONOMIE FAMILIALE

5 Avenue de la Porte Brancion, 75015 Paris, France

FEDERATION INTERNATIONALE POUR L'EDUCATION DES PARENTS

1 Avenue Léon Journault, 92311 Sèvres Cedex, France FEDERATION MONDIALE DES CITES UNIES VILLES JUMELEES

22 rue d'Alsace, 92300 Levallois Perret Cedex, France

FONDATION DE FRANCE

Section Enfance, 40 avenue Hoche, 75008 Paris, France

FONDATION POUR LE MECENAT HUMANITAIRE

14 rue de Londres, 75009 Paris, France

FONDS D'AIDE ET DE COOPERATION

Ministère de la Coopération, 20 rue Monsieur, 75007 Paris, France

FRANCE-LIBERTES FONDATION DANIELLE MITTERRAND

Palais de Chaillot, 1 Place du Trocadéro, 75116 Paris, France

HANDICAP INTERNATIONAL

14 Avenue Berthelot, 69361 Lyon, France

INSTITUT DU MONDE ARABE

1 rue des Fossés Saint-Bernard, 75936 Paris Cedex 05, France

INSTITUT FRANÇAIS DE RECHERCHE SCIENTIFIQUE POUR LE DEVELOPPEMENT EN COOPERATION

213 rue Lafavette, 75480 Paris Cedex 10, France

MEDECINS DU MONDE

67 Avenue de la République, 75541 Paris Cedex 11, France

MEDECINS SANS FRONTIÊRES

8 rue Saint-Sabin, 75544 Paris Cedex 11, France

MINISTERE DE LA COOPERATION ET DU DEVELGEREMENT

20 rue Mensieur, 75007 Paris, France

MOUVEMENT INTERNATIONAL ATD QUART MONDE

107 avenue du Général Leclerc. 95480 Pierrelaye. France

OEUVRES HOSPITALIERES FRANCAISES DE L'ORDRE DE MALTE

92 rue du Ranelagh, 75787 Paris Cedex 16, France

ORGANIZATION FOR ECONOMIC COOPERATION AND DEVELOPMENT (OECD)

2 rue André Pascal, 75775 Paris Cedex 16, France

RESEAU D'INFORMATION SUR LES PAYS EN DEVELOPPEMENT - IBISCUS

1 bis rue du Havre, 75008 Paris, France

SANABEL FRANCE

BP 45, 101 ruc Boucicaut, 92263 Fontenay-aux-Roses Cedex, France

SECOURS CATHOLIQUE - CARITAS FRANCE

106 rue du Bac, 75341 Paris Cedex 07, France

SECOURS POPULAIRE FRANCAIS

9-11 rue Froissart, 75140 Paris Cedex 03, France

TERRE DE VIE

Route de Nantes, La Sicaudais, 44320 St Pére en Retz, France



UNION INTERNATIONALE D'EDUCATION POUR LA SANTE

15-21 rue de l'Ecole de Médecine, 75270 Paris Cedex 06, France

UNION INTERNATIONALE DES ORGANISMES FAMILIAUX

28 place Saint-Georges, 75009 Paris, France

GERMANY

ARBEITSGEMEINSCHAFT FÜR ENTWICKLUNGSHILFE

Theodor-Hürth-Strasse 2-6, Postfach 210128, 5000 Cologne 21, Germany

BUNDESMINISTERIUM FÜR WIRTSCHAFTLICHE ZUSAMMENARBEIT

Karl-Marx-Strasse 4-6, 5300 Bonn 1, Germany

DEUTSCHE ARBEITSGEMEINSCHAFT VORDERER ÖRIENT

Mittelweg 150, 20148 Hamburg, Germany

DEUTSCHE GESELLSCHAFT FÜR TECHNISCHE ZUSAMMENARBEIT

Postfach 5180, 65726 Eschborn, Germany

DEUTSCHE STIFTUNG FÜR INTERNATIONALE ENTWICKLUNG

Rauchstrasse 25, 1000 Berlin 30, Germany

DEUTSCHER CARITASVERBAND

Karlstrasse 40, 7800 Freiburg, Germany

GEMEINSCHAFT DER VINZENZ-KONFERENZEN DEUTSCHLANDS

Blumenstrasse 20, 5000 Köln I, Germany

INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION OF FERTILITY SOCIETIES

Universitäts-Frauenklinik, Christian-Albrechts Universität, Michaelistrasse 16, 2300 Kiel, Germany

KREDITANSTALT FÜR WIEDERAUFBAU

Postfach 11 11 41, 60046 Frankfurt/Main, Germany

MEDICAL WOMEN'S INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION

Herbert-Lewin-Strasse 5, 5000 Köln 41, Germany

MISEREOR

Mozartstrasse 9, 5100 Aachen, Germany

ORT DEUTSCHLAND

Hebelstrasse 6, 6000 Frankfurt/Main 1, Germany

WORLD VISION INTERNATIONAL -CHRISTLICHES HILFSWERK

Adenauerallee 32, 6370 Oberursel 1, Germany

IRELAND

DEVELOPMENT CO-OPERATION DIVISION

Ministry of Foreign Affairs, 75 Harcourt Street, Dublin 2. Ireland

TROCAIRE

169 Booterstown Avenue, Blackrock, Co. Dublin, Ireland

ISRAEL

ARAB STUDIES SOCIETY

PO Box 20479, Jerusalem, Israel

GOLDA MEIR MOUNT CARMEL INTERNATIONAL TRAINING CENTRE

PO Box 6111, Haifa, Israel

HOME INSTRUCTION PROGRAM FOR PRESCHOOL YOUNGSTERS INTERNATIONAL (HIPPY)

NCJW Research Institute for Innovation in Education, Hebrew University, Mount Scopus.

Jerusalem 91905, Israel

ITALY

ASSOCIAZIONE, «TERNAZIONALE VOLONTARI I AICI

Corso IV Novembre 28, 12100 Cunco, Italy

ASSOCIAZIONE PER GLI INTERVENTI DI COOPERAZIONE ALLO SVILUPPO

Via Martiri Oscuri 5, 20125 Milan, Italy

ASSOCIAZIONE ITALIANA DONNE PER LO SVILUPPO

Via dei Giubbonari 30, 00186 Rome, Italy

CARITAS INTERNATIONALIS

Palazzo San Calisto, 00120 Citta del Vaticano, Italy



COORDINAMENTO DI INIZIATIVE POPOLARI DI SOLIDARIETA INTERNAZIONALE

Via F. Baldelli 41, 00146 Rome, Italy

DIREZIONE GENERALE PER LA COOPERAZIONE ALLO SVILUPPO

Ministerio degli Affari Esteri, Piazzale della Farnesina 1, 00100 Rome, Italy

FEDERAZIONE DI ORGANISMI CRISTIANI DI SERVIZIO INTERNAZIONALE VOLONTARIO

Via Stradelle 10, 20129 Milan, Italy

FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL ORGANIZATION OF THE UNITED NATIONS (FAO)

18 Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00100 Rome, Italy

GRUPPO PER LE RELAZIONI TRANSCULTURALI

Via Zuretti 50, 20125 Milano, Italy

INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION OF GYNEGOLOGY AND OBSTETRICS

Instituto di Ginecologia e Obstetricia, Policlinico Monteluce, 06100 Perugia, Italy

UNICEF INTERNATIONAL CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTRE

Spedale degli Innocenti, Piazza della S.S. Annunziata 12, 50122. Firenze, Italy

WORLD FOOD PROGRAMME

426 Via Cristoforo Colombo, 00145 Rome, Italy

JAPAN

CAMPAIGN FOR CHILDREN OF PALESTINE

212 Fuji Denko Bldg N°3, 1-7-3 Hyakunin-cho, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 169, Japan

JAPAN INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION AGENCY (JICA)

10-5 Ichigava Honmura-cho, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 162, Japan

JAPANESE COMMITTEE FOR THE CHILDREN OF PALESTINE

Rm 211, Daisan-Fuji-Denko Bldg, 1-7-3 Hyakunin-cho, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 169, Japan

JAPANESE NGO CENTER FOR INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION

1-14-45 Hongo, Bunkyo-ku, Tokyo 113, Japan

JAPANESE ORGANIZATION FOR INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION IN FAMILY PLANNING

Hoken Kaikan Bekkan, 1-1 Sadohara-cho, Ichigaya, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 162, Japan

NGO CO-OPERATION CENTRE

Economic Co-operation Bureau, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, 2-2-1 Kasumigaschi, Chiyoda-ku,

Tokyo 100, Japan

UNITED NATIONS UNIVERSITY (UNU)

53-70, Jingumae 5-chome, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 150, Japan

JORDAN

UNITED NATIONS RELIEF & WORKS AGENCY FOR PALESTINE REFUGEES IN THE NEAR EAST (UNRWA) Bayader Wadi Seer. PO Box 484. Amman, Jordan

KUWAIT

ARAB LEAGUE EDUCATIONAL, CULTURAL AND SCIENTIFIC ORGANISATION

P.O. Box 24017, Safat, Kuwait

KUWAIT FUND FOR ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

P.O. Box 21921, Safat 13030, Kuwait

LEBANON

CENTRE D'ETUDES ET DE RECHERCHES SUR LE MOYEN-ORIENT CONTEMPORAIN

rue de Damas, BP 2691, Beirut, Lebanon

LLBANESE NGO FORUM

P.O. Box 11-5520, Beirut, Lebanon

LUXEMBOURG

102

TUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK

100 Boulevard Konrad Adenauer, 2950 Luxembourg, Luxembourg



FONDS POUR LES VILLAGES D'ENFANTS SOS DANS LE MONDE Rue Glesener 37, 1631 Luxembourg, Luxembourg

MAURITANIA

FEDERATION INTERNATIONALE DES ONG DE MAURITANIE c/o AFVP, Nouakchott, Mauritania

MONACO

ASSOCIATION MONDIALE DES AMIS DE L'ENFANCE 16 Boulevard de Suisse, 98030 Monaco Cedex. Monaco

NETHERLANDS

BERNARD VAN LEER FOUNDATION

Postbus 82334, 2508 EH Den Haag, The Netherlands COMMITIEE ON INTERCHURCH AID OF THE NETHERLANDS REFORMED CHURCH PO Box 72, 3970 AB Driebergen, The Netherlands

DIRECTORATE FOR INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION

P.O. Box 20061, 2500 EB The Hague, The Netherlands

INSTITUUT VOOR ONTWIKKELINGSVRÄAGSTUKKEN

P.O. Box 90153, 5000 LE Tilburg, The Netherlands

INTERNATIONAL MONTESSORI ASSOCIATION

Koninginneweg 161, 1075 CN Amsterdam, The Netherlands INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATION OF CONSUMERS UNIONS

9 Emmastraat, 2595 EG The Hague, The Netherlands

INTERNATIONAL UNION OF LOCAL AUTHORITIES

41 Wassenaarseweg, P.O. Box 90646, 2509 LP The Hague, The Netherlands

MEMISA MEDICUS MUNDI

PO Box 61, 3000 AB Rotterdam. The Netherlands

NEDERLANDSE ORGANISATIE VOOR INTERNATIONALE ONTWIKKELINGSSAMENWERKING

7 Amaliastraat, 2514 JC The Hague, The Netherlands

NETHERLANDS UNIVERSITIES FOUNDATION FOR INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATION

P.O. Box 99734, 2500 The Hague. The Netherlands

NGO PROGRAMMES CO-ORDINATION DIVISION

Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Bazudanhovtseweg 67, The Hague, The Netherlands

STICHTING WILDE GANZEN

Heuvellaan 36, 1217 JN Hilversum. The Netherlands

VEREINIGING VAN EUROPESE PARTICULIERE ORGANISATIES VOOR VOEDSELEN NOODHULP

P.O. Box 77, 2340 AB Oegstgeest, The Netherlands

VEREINIGING VOOR PERSONELE SAMENWERKING MET ONTWIKKELINGSLANDEN

Willem Witsenplein 2, 2596 BK's Gravenhage, The Netherlands

YOUTH FOR DEVELOPMENT AND COOPERATION

Leliegracht 21, 1016 GR Amsterdam, The Netherlands

NEW ZEALAND

CORSO - NEW ZEALAND ASSOCIATION FOR INTERNATIONAL RELIEF, REHABILITATION AND DEVELOPMENT

PO Box 9716, Wellington, New Zealand

EXTERNAL AID DIVISION

Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Private Bag 18901, Wellington, New Zealand

NEW ZEALAND RED CROSS SOCIETY

PO Box 12-140, Wellington North, New Zealand

NORWAY

NORWEGIAN AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT (NORAD) PO Box 8034 Dep. 0030 Oslo 1, Norway



REDD BARNA NORWAY

P.O. Box 6200 Etterstad, 0602 Oslo 6, Norway

SAUDI ARABIA

ARAB BUREAU OF EDUCATION FOR THE GULF STATES

P.O. Box 3908, Rihvad 11481, Saudi Arabia

ARAB GULF PROGRAMME FOR UN DEVELOPMENT ORGANISATIONS (AGFUND)

PO Box 18371, Riyadh 11415, Saudi Arabia

ASSOCIATION OF ARAB UNIVERSITIES

P.O. Box 2873, Rivadh, Saudi Arabia

ISLAMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK

PO Box 5925, Jeddah 21432, Saudi Arabia

SAUDI FUND FOR DEVELOPMENT

PO Box 5711, Riyadh 11441, Saudi Arabia

SPAIN

AYUDA EN ACCION

Barquillo 8 - 10 Ocha, 28004 Madrid, Spain

CARITAS ESPANOLA

San Bernardo 99 bis - 7°, 28015 Madrid, Spain

COORDINADORA ESPAÑOLA DE ORGANIZACIONES NO GUBERNAMENTALES PARA EL DESARROLLO

Calle de la Reina 17 3°, 28028 Madrid. Spain

CRUZ ROJA ESPAÑOLA

Rafael Villa s/n. 28220 El Plantio-Madrid, Spain

EQUIPO DE COMUNICACION EDUCATIVA

Teniente Muñoz Diaz 13, bajo, 28018 Madrid, Spain

GENERAL DIRECTORATE FOR COOPERATION

Ministry of Forcign Affairs, Plaza Provincia 1, 28012 Madrid. Spain

MEDICUS MUNDI

Sánchez Barcaiztegui 38, 1°, puerta 11, 28007 Madrid, Spain

SOLIDARIDAD INTERNACIONAL

Glorieta de Quevedo 7, 6dcha, 28015 Madrid, Spain

SUDAN

ARAB BANK FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN AFRICA (BADEA)

Saved Abdel Rahman Street, P.O. Box 2640, Khartoum, Sudan

COMBINED AGENCIES RELIEF TEAM (CART)

c/o NCA/EP, PO Box 52802, Nairobi, Kenya

SWEDEN

DAG HAMMARSKJOLD FOUNDATION

Ovre Slottsgatan 2, 752 20 Uppsala, Sweden

DEPARTMENT FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT CO-OPERATION

Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Box 16121, 103 23 Stockholm, Sweden

FREDLIGT ARBETE TH L INSIKT MEDMÄNSKLIGHET ANSVAR UNIONEN

Box 2078, 103-12 Stockholm, Sweden

INSTITUTE OF EDUCATIONAL RESEARCH

Stockholm Institute of Education, Box 34103, 100 26 Stockholm, Sweden

RÄDDA BARNEN

104

Tegeluddsvägen 31, Box 27320, 102 54 Stockholm, Sweden

STIFTLI SEN HOPPËTS STJÄRNA

Kärrsjö, 8 % 54 Trehörningsjö, Sweden

SWEDISH AGENCY FOR RESEARCH CO-OPERATION WITH DEVELOPING COUNTRIFS

Birger Jarlsgatan 61, 105 25 Stockholm, Sweden

SWEDISH INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (SIDA)

Birger Jarlsgatan 61, 105 25 Stockholm, Sweden



SWITZERLAND

ASSOCIATION DES AMIS DE SOEUR EMMANUELLE

c/o Sopleco, 19 rue du Rhône 1204 Genève, Switzerland

CARITAS SCHWEIZ

Löwenstrasse 3, 6002 Luzern, Switzerland

DEFENCE FOR CHILDREN INTERNATIONAL

1 rue de Varembé, P.C. Box 88, 1211 Genève 20, Switzerland

DIRECTION DE LA COOPERATION AU DEVELOPPEMENT ET DE L'AIDF HUMANITAIRI

Département Fédéral des Affaires Etrangères, Eigerstrasse 73, 3003 Bern, Switzerland DIVISION OF FAMILY HEALTH

World Health Organization, 20 via Appia, 1211 Genève 27, Switzerland ENFANTS DU MONDE

Chemin Auguste Vilbert 14, 1218 Grand Saconnex, Switzerland

EUROPEAN ASSOCIATION OF DEVELOPMENT RESEARCH AND TRAINING INSTITUTES

P.O. Box 272, 1211 Geneva 21, Switzerland

FEDERATION INTERNATIONALE DES COMMUNAUTES EDUCATIVES

Rämistrasse 27, 8001 Zürich, Switzerland

FEDERATION INTERNATIONALE TERRE DES HOMMES

22 rue Michel-Chauvet, 1208 Geneve, Switzerland

GENEVA INFANT FEEDING ASSOCIATION

C.P. 157, 1211 Geneva 19, Switzerland

HENRY DUNANT INSTITUTE

114 rue de Lausanne, 1202 Genève, Switzerland

INNOVATIONS ET RESEAUX POUR LE DEVELOPPEMENT

3 rue de Varembé, BP 116, 1211 Geneva 20, Switzerland

INSTITUT UNIVERSITAIRE D'ETUDES DU DEVELOPPEMENT

CP 136, 1211 Geneva 21, Switzerland

INTER-AFRICAN COMMITTEE

147 rue de Lausanne, 1202 Geneva, Switzerland

INTERNATIONAL CATHOLIC CHILD BUREAU

65 rue de Lausanne, 1202 Geneva, Switzerland

INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL OF VOLUNTARY AGENCIES

CP 216, 1211 Geneva 21, Switzerland

INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION OF RED CROSS & RED CRESCENT SOCIETIES

Box 372, 1211 Geneva 19, Switzerland

INTERNATIONAL FORUM FOR CHILD WELFARE

6 rue Guillaume-Tell, 1201 Genève, Switzerland

INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE

4 Chemin des Morillons, 1211 Geneva 22, Switzerland

INTERNATIONAL SAVE THE CHILDREN ALLIANCE

147 rue de Lausanne, 1202 Geneva, Switzerland

KINDERHILFE BETHLEHEM

Löwenstrasse 7, C.P.133, 6000 Luzern 6, Switzerland

MOTHER AND CHILD INTERNATIONAL

Kürbergstrasse 1, 8049 Zürich, Switzerland

MU'ASSAT AL-TA'AWUN WELFARE ASSOCIATION

7 avenue Pictet-de-Rochemont, CP 602 1211, Geneva 6, Switzerland

ORGANISATION MONDIALE DU MOUVEMENT SCOUT

5 rue Pré-Jérôme, C.P. 241, 1211 Geneva 4, Switzerland

SANABEL SUISSE

57 rue du Rhône, 1204 Genève, Switzerland

SENTINELLES

10 chemin du Languedoc, 1007 Lausanne 20, Switzerland

STIFTUNG KINDERDORF PESTALOZZI

Rue Guillimann 12, 1701 Fribourg, Switzerland

SWISS AID AGENCIES COALITION

10 chemin des Epinettes, 1007 Lousanne, Switzerland

TERRE DES HOMMES SUISSE

22 rue Michel Chauvet, 1208 Geneva, Switzerland

UNHER CENTRE FOR DOCUMENTATION ON REFUGELS

Centre William Rappard, 154 rue de Lausanne, 1202 Geneva, Switzerland

UN NON-GOVERNMENTAL LIAISON SERVICE (UN-NGLS)

Palais des Nations, 12011 Geneva 10, Switzerland

WORLD AT LIANCE OF YOUNG MEN'S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATIONS

37 Quai Wilson, 1201 Geneva, Switzerland



WORLD UNIVERSITY SERVICE

5 Chemin des Iris, 1216 Geneva, Switzerland

TUNISIA

ARAB FAMILY ORGANIZATION

78 Avenue de la Liberté, Tunis, Tunisia

ASSOCIATION OF ARAB INSTITUTES & CENTRES FOR ECONOMIC & SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT RESEARCH

27 rue du Liban, 1002 Tunis, Tunisia

EL TALLER FOUNDATION

BP 137, 1002 Tunis Belvédère, Tunisia

UNITED KINGDOM

APPROPRIATE HEALTH RESOURCES & TECHNOLOGIES ACTION GROUP

Farringdon Point, 29-35 Farringdon Road, London EC1M 3JB, United Kingdom

ARAB RESEARCH CENTRE

76/78 Notting Hill Gate, London W11 3HS, United Kingdom

CARE BRITAIN

35 Southampton Street, London WC2 7HE, United Kingdom

CENTRE FOR INTERNATIONAL CHILD HEALTH

Institute of Child Health, 30 Guilford Street, London WC1N 1EH, United Kingdom

CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT GROUP

University of Cambridge, Free School Lane, Cambridge Cb2 3RF, United Kingdom

CHILD-TO-CHILD TRUST

Institute of Education, Room 633, 20 Bedford Way, London WC1H OAL, United Kingdom

CHRISTIAN AID

PO Box 100, London SE1 7RT, United Kingdom

COMMONWEALTH DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

One Bessborough Gardens, London SW1V 2JQ, United Kingdom

COMMONWEALTH SECRETARIAT

Marlborough House, Pal Mall. London SW1Y 5HY, United Kingdom

CONCERN UNIVERSAL

17A New Road Avenue, Chatham, Kent ME4 6BA, United Kingdom

DEVELOPMENT AND PROJECT PLANNING CENTRE FOR DEVELOPING COUNTRIES

University of Bradford, Bradford, West Yorks BD7 1DP, United Kingdom

DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

Old Westbrook Farm, Evercreech Somerset BA4 6DS, United Kingdom

INTERNATIONAL BROADCASTING TRUST

2 Ferdinand Place. London NW! 8EE, United Kingdom

INTERNATIONAL CONFEDERATION OF MIDWIVES

Barley Mow Passage, Chiswick, London W4 4PH, United Kingdom

INTERNATIONAL PLANNED PARENTHOOD FEDERATION

Regent's College, Inner Circle, Regent's Park, London NW1 4NS, United Kingdom

INTERNATIONAL FAMILY HEALTH

1st Floor, Margaret Pyke Centre. 15 Bateman's Buildings. Soho Square, London WIV STW.

United Kingdom

MARIE STOPES INTERNATIONAL

129 Whitfield Street, London W1P 6BE, United Kingdom

OVERSEAS DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION

Eland House, Stag Place, London SW1E 5DH, United Kingdom

OVERSEAS DEVELOPMENT INSTITUTE

Regent's College, Inner Circle, Regent's Park, London NW1 4NS, United Kingdom

OXFAM

274 Banbury Road, Oxford OX2 7DZ, United Kingdom

PLAN INTERNATIONAL UK

5-6 Underhill Street, London NW1 7HS, United Kingdom

POPULATION CONCERN

231 Tottenham Court Road, London WIP 9AE, United Kingdom

SAVE THE CHILDREN FUND UNITED KINGDOM

Mary Datchelor House, 17 Grove Lane, Camberwell, London SE5 8RD, United Kingdom

97

SCOTTISH CATHOLIC INTERNATIONAL AID FUND

5 Oswald Street, Glasgow G1 4QR, United Kingdom



BEST COPY AVAILABLE

SOROPTIMIST INTERNATIONAL

87 Glisson Road, Cambridge CB1 2HG, United Kingdom

WOMANKIND WORLDWIDE

122 Whitechapel High Street, London E1 7PT, United Kingdom

WORLD ASSOCIATION OF GIRL GUIDES AND GIRL SCOUTS

Olave Centre, 12c Lyndhurst Road, London NW3 5PQ, United Kingdom

WORLD ORT UNION - ORGANISATION FOR REHABILITATION THROUGH TRAINING

ORT House, Sumpter Close, Finchley Road, London NW3 5HR, United Kingdom WORLD VISION OF BRITAIN

Dychurch House, 8 Abington Street, Northampton NN1 2AJ, United Kingdom

UNITED STATES

AMERICA-MIDEAST EDUCATIONAL & TRAINING SERVICES (AMIDEAST)

1100 17th Street NW, Washington DC 20036, USA

ASHOKA INNOVATORS FOR THE PUBLIC

1200 North Nash Street, Arlington, VA 22209, USA

CARE USA

660 First Avenue, New York NY 10016, USA

CATHOLIC RELIEF SERVICES

1011 First Avenue, New York NY 10022, USA

CENTER ON WAR AND THE CHILD

PO Bcx 48735, Benton Street, Eureka Springs AR 72632, USA

CENTRE FOR INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION

Hills House South, University of Massachusetts, Amhurst MA 01003, USA

CHRISTIAN CHILDREN'S FUND

2821 Emerywood Parkway, Richmond, VA 23294, USA

CLEARINGHOUSE ON INFANT FEEDING AND MATERNAL NUTRITION

American Public Health Association, 1015 15th Street, NW, Washington, DC 20005, USA

CONSULTATIVE GROUP ON EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT

c/e UNICEF, H2F, 3 United Nations Plaza, New York NY 10017, USA

COUNCIL ON FOUNDATIONS

Suite 300, 1828 L Street NW, Washington DC 20036, USA

DEPARTMENT OF CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

Teacher Education Building, 225 North Mills Street, Madison, WI 53707, USA

DIVISION OF NUTRITIONAL SCIENCES

College of Human Ecology, and Agriculture and Life Sciences, Cornell University, 127 Savage Hall, Ithaca, NY 14853, USA

EDUCATION DEVELOPMENT CENTER

55 Chapel Sreeet, Newton MA 02160, USA

ERIC CLEARINGHOUSE

College of Education, University of Illinois, 805 W. Pennsylvania Avenue, Urbana,

Illinois 61801-4897. USA

FAMILY HEALTH INTERNATIONAL

P.O. Box 13950, Research Triangle Park Branch, Durham, NC 27709, USA

FAMILY PLANNING INTERNATIONAL ASSISTANCE

810 Seventh Avenue, New York NY 10019, USA

FORD FOUNDATION

320 East 43rd Street, New York NY 10017, USA

FOSTER PARENTS PLAN INTERNATIONAL

804 Quaker Lane, East Greenwich, RI 02818, USA

HARVARD INSTITUTE FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

One Eliot Street, Cambridge MA 02138, USA

HEALTH, POPULATION AND NUTRITION DIVISION

The World Bank, 1818 H Street NW, Washington DC 20433, USA

HELEN KELLER INTERNATIONAL

15 West 16th Street, New York NY 10011, USA

HIGH/SCOPE EDUCATIONAL RESEARCH FOUNDATION

600 North River Street, Ypsilanti, Michigan 48198-2898, USA

HOLY CHILDHOOD ASSOCIATION

1720 Massachussetts Avenue NW, Washington DC 20036, USA

INSTITUTE FOR INTERNATIONAL STUDIES IN NATURAL FAMILY PLANNING

Georgetown University, Washington DC 20007, USA

INSTITUTE FOR RESPONSIVE EDUCATION

605 Commonwealth Avenue, Boston MA 02215, USA



INSTITUTE OF CHILD DEVELOPMENT

University of Minnesota, 51 E. River Road, Minneapolis, MN 55455, USA

INSTITUTE OF INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION

809 United Nations Plaza, New York NY 10017-3580, USA

INTERACTION

1717 Massachusetts Avenue NW, Suite 801, Washington, DC 20036, USA

INTERNATIONAL CENTER FOR RESEARCH ON WOMEN

1717 Massachusetts Avenue, Suite 302, Washington, DC 20036, USA

INTERNATIONAL CHILD RESOURCE INSTITUTE

1810 Hopkins Avenue, Berkeley, CA 94707, USA

INTERNATIONAL FEDERATION FOR FAMILY LIFE PROMOTION

2009 North 14th Street, Suite 512, Arlington VA 22201, USA

JOHN HOPKINS PROGRAM FOR INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION IN REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH

Brown's Wharf, Suite 200, 1615 Thames Street, Baltimore, MD 21231, USA

NEAR EAST FOUNDATION

342 Madison Avenue, Suite 1030, New York NY 10173-0020, USA

PATHFINDER INTERNATIONAL

9 Galen Street, Watertown MA 02165, USA

PERHAPS KIDS MEETING KIDS CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE

Box 8H, 380 Riverside Drive, New York, N.Y. 10025, USA

POPULATION COUNCIL

1 Dag Hammarskjold Plaza, New York NY 10017, USA

POPULATION CRISIS COMMITTEE

1120 19th Street NW, Suite 550, Washington DC 20016, USA

PORTAGE PROJECT - COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY # 5

626 East Slifer Street, Portage, WI 53901, USA

PRITECH - TECHNOLOGIES FOR PRIMARY HEALTH CARE

1925 North Lynn Street, Suite 400, Arlington, VA 22209, USA

PRIVATE AGENCIES COLLABORATING TOGETHER (PACT)

777 United Nations Plaza, New York NY 10017, USA

PROGRAM FOR APPROPRIATE TECHNOLOGY IN HEALTH

4 Nickerson Street, Seattle WA 98109, USA

PROJECT CARE FOR CHILDREN

2144 Fourth Street, San Rafael CA 94901, USA

REHABILITATION INTERNATIONAL

25 East 21st Street, New York, NY 10010, USA

ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION

1133 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10036, USA

SALVATION ARMY WORLD SERVICE OFFICE

1025 Vermont Ave. N.W., Suite 305, Washington DC 20005, USA

SAVE THE CHILDREN USA

54 Wilton Road, Westport, Connecticut 06880, USA

TEACHING STRATEGIES

P.O. Box 42243, 6407 32nd Street NW, Washington, DC 20015, USA.

THRASHER RESEARCH FUND

50 East North Temple Street, 7th Floor, Salt Lake City UT 84150, USA

UNITED NATIONS CHILDREN'S FUND (UNICEF)

Three United Nations Plaza, New York NY 10017, USA

UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT FUND FOR WOMEN

304 East 45th Street, Room 616. New York NY 10017. USA

UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

One United Nations Plaza, New York NY 10017, USA

UNITED NATIONS FUND FOR POPULATION ACTIVITIES

220 East 42nd Street, New York NY 10017, USA

UNITED STATES AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT (USAID)

Department of State, 21st and Virginia Avenue NW, Washington DC 20523, USA

UNITED STATES COMMITTEE FOR UNICEF

333 East 38th Street, New York NY 10016, USA

WORLD ORGANIZATION FOR THE FAMILY

2020 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Suite 274, Washington DC 20006, USA

WORLD REHABILITATION FUND

386 Park Avenue South, Suite 500, New York NY 10016, USA

WORLD VISION INTERNATIONAL

919 West Huntington Drive, Monrovia CA 91016, USA



108

Selected publications on early childhood care and education

The following publications can be consulted for information on early childhood care and education actions of United Nations agencies, governmental bodies, research institutes, NGOs, and community groups, as well as on a variety of issues with which they are confronted.

Publications

- ACCD. A Manual on Poliomyelities Eradication for Public Health Field Staff, Arab Council for Childhood and Development, Cairo, 1990.
- J. ABU NASR, N. KHOURY & H. AZZAM (eds.). Women, Employment and Development in the Arab World, Mouton Publishers, Berlin, 1985.
- ATFALE. Actes du premier colloque Maghrébin sur l'éducation préscolaire Théories et pratiques, Faculté des Sciences de l'Education, Université Mohammed V, Rabat, 1992.
- ATFALE. Actes des journées internationales audiovisuelles sur l'éducation préscolaire, Faculté des Sciences de l'Education, Université Mohammed V, Rabat, 1994.
- BAAF. Direct Work with Children: A Guide for Social Work Practitioners, British Agency for Adoption and Fostering, London, 1988.
- E. BALKE (ed.). Play and Culture: the Child between the World of Yesterday and the World of Tomorrow, Organisation Mondiale pour l'Education Préscolaire, Oslo, 1987.
- W. BARKER. Early Childhood Education and the Social and Economic Growth of Developing Societies, Early Childhood Development Unit, Bristol, 1985.
- D. BATTY & M. BRYER. Planning in Child Care Training Pack, British Agency for Adoption and Fostering, London, 1990.
- R. BEHRMAN (ed.). The Future of Children: School Linked Services, Center for the Future of Children, The David and Lucile Packard Foundation. Los Altos, CA, 1992.
- M. BENDER & C.A. BAGLIN (eds.). Infants and Toddlers: A Resource Guide for Practitioners, Singular Publishing Books, San Diego California, 1992.
- A. BEQUELE & J. BOYDEN. Combating Child Labour, ILO, Geneva, 1988.
- G. Bibi. The UN Convention on the Rights of the Child in the Arab World: Realities, Needs and Challenges, Radda Barnen & Arab Resource Collective, Nicosia, 1994.
- G. Bibi. Towards Involving Parents in Early Childhood Education Partnership with Parents, Arab Resource Collective, Nicosia, 1993.
- M. BORNSTEIN & M. LAMB. Development in Infancy: An Introduction, McGraw-Hill Co., Hightown, 1992.
- J. BOYDEN. Families: Celebration and Hope in a World of Change, UNESCO Publishing/Gaia Books Ltd, London, 1993.
- H. BROWN & P. BAILY. Working with Children and Families, Pavilion Publishing, London, 1990.
- N. BURRA. *Child Labour and Education*, Child, Family, Community Digests, No 28, UNESCO-UNICEF Co-operative Programme, Paris, 1989.
- BvLF. Why Children Matter: Investing in Early Childhood Care and Development, Bernard van Leer Foundation, The Hague, 1994.



- CANADIAN PAEDIATRIC SOCIETY. Little Well Beings: A Handbook on Health in Family Day Care Homes. Canadian Paediatric Society, Ottawa, 1994.
- A.J. CAPUTE & P. J. ACCARDO (eds.). Developmental Disabilities in Infancy and Childhood, Paul H. Brookes Publishing Co., Baltimore, 1991.
- K. CASTELLE (ed.). In the Child's Best Interest: A Primer on the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child, Foster Parents Plan International & Defence for Children International, New York, 1989.
- M. COCHRAN (ed.). International Handbook of Child Care Policies and Programs, Greenwood Press. London, 1993.
- A. COHEN (ed.). Early Education: The Parent's Rote, Community Education Development Centre, Coventry, 1991.
- N. D. Colletta (cd.). Understanding Cross-Cultural Child Development and Designing Programs for Children, Christian Children's Fund and PACT, New York, 1992.
- J. COMANS. Family Day Care Around the World, National Family Day Care Council of Australia, Avoca Beach, 1994.
- CONSULTATIVE GROUP ON EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE & DEVELOPMENT. Preparing Children for Schools and Schools for Children, Notes, Comments ... No194, UNESCO/UNICEF/WFP Co-operative Programme, Paris, April 1991.
- CONSULTATIVE GROUP ON EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT. Meeting Basic Learning Needs through Programmes of Early Childhood Care and Development, 2nd Meeting of the International Consultative Forum on Education for All Forum Quality Education for All, New Delhi India, 8-10 September 1993.
- M. CUTRIGHT. Growing Up Confident How to Make Your Child's Early Years Learning Years, Doubleday, New York, 1992.
- E. DE'ATH& G. WEBSTER. Families and Self-Help: A Resource Pack, National Children's Bureau, London, 1989.
- E. DE'ATH & G. PUGH. Working with Parents: A Training Resource Pack, National Children's Bureau, London, 1986.
- E. DE'ATH & G. PUGH. Working with Parents: A Training Resource Pack, Arabic Edition, Arab Resource Collective, Nicosia, 1993.
- D. DINKMEYER & G. McKay. The Parent's Handbook, Third edition, American Guidance Service, Circle Pines, MN, 1989.
- D. DINKMEYER, G. McKay & J. DINKMEYER. Parenting Young Children, American Guidance Service, Circle Pines MN, 1989.
- M. EDWARDS & D. HULME (eds.). Making a Difference: NGOs and Development in a Changing World, Save the Children UK & Earthscan, London, 1992.
- EFA FORUM SECRETARIAT. Education for All: Status and Trends, UNESCO, Paris, 1993.
- R.L. EGBERT (ed). Improving Life Chances for Young Children, High/Scope Press, Ypsilanti Michigan, 1989.
- L. Eldering & P. Leseman (eds.). Early Intervention and Culture Preparation for Literacy: The Interface between Theory and Practrice, UNESCO Publishing & Netherlands National Commission for UNESCO, Paris, 1993.
- S. EL-KATSHA& S. WATTS. The Empowerment of Women: Water and Sanitation Initiatives in Rural Fgypt. Cairo Papers in Social Science, v. 16, No 2, American University in Cairo Press, Cairo, 1993.
- J. Ennew & B. Milne. The Next Generation: Lives of Third World Children, Zed Books, London, 1990.



- A. S. EPSTEIN. Training for Quality: Improved Early Childhood Programs through Systematic Inservice Training, High/Scope Press, Ypsilanti Michigan, 1994.
- E. A. FISHER. Early Childhood Care and Education A World Survey, UNESCO, Paris, 1991.
- ELRU. Resource Books on Early Childhood Education, Early Learning Resource Unit, Cape Town, 1990.
- M.G. FLEKKOY. A Voice for Children: Speaking Out as their Ombudsman, Jessica Kingsley Publishers, London, 1991.
- J. GARBARINO, N. DUBROW, K. KOSTLENY & C. PARDO, Children in Danger Coping with the Consequences of Community Violence, Jossey-Bass Publishers, San Francisco California, 1992.
- R.J. GELLES & J.B. LANCASTER (eds.). Child Abuse and Neglect: Biosocial Dimensions, DeGruyter & Co., Berlin, 1988.
- J. GILKES. Towards Involving Parents in Early Childhood Education Training the Trainers, Arab Resource Collective, Nicosia, 1993.
- H. GMEINER. Les Villages d'Enfants SOS, SOS Kinderdorf-Verlag, Innsbruck, 1986.
- G. GORDON & T. KLOUDA. Preventing a Crisis: AIDS and Family Planning Work, Jason Press Ltd, Hertford, 1989.
- G. GORDON & T. KLOUDA. Talking AIDS: a Guide for Community Workers, Macmillan Publishers, London, 1989.
- M. GOTTESMAN (ed.). Residential Child Care: An International Reader, Whiting & Birch Ltd, London, 1991.
- J. P. GRANT. The State of the World's Children 1995. UNICEF, Oxford University Press, 1995.
- GRASSROOTS EDUCARE TRUST. How to Start and Run a Community Preschool Educare Project, Educare Handbooks Series, Grassroots Educare Trust, Gatesville, 1989.
- D.A. HAMBURG. A Decent Start: Promoting Healthy Child Development in the First Three Years of Life, Carnegie Corporation of New York, New York, 1990.
- D. A. HAMBURG. The Family Crucible and Healthy Child Development, Carnegic Corporation of New York, New York, 1991.
- K. HAMMELL CARPENTER. Sourcebook on Parenting and Child Care, Oryx Press, New York, 1994.
- R.H. HART, M.A. BELSEY & E. TARIMO. L'intégration des services de santé maternelle et infantile dans dans les soins de santé primaires: condisidérations pratiques, OMS. Geneva, 1991.
- H. HAWES. Child-to-Child: Another Path to Learning, UNESCO Institute for Education, Hamburg, 1988.
- T. HUSEN & T. N. POSTLETHWAITE (cds.). The International Encyclopedia of Education, 2nd edition, Elsevier Science Ltd., Oxford, 1994.
- ICA. Village Health Manual, Institute of Cultural Affairs Middle East & North Africa, Cairo, 1990.
- ICRI. The World of Daycare, Child Resource World Review, International Child Resource Institute, Berkeley, 1984.
- ICRW. Understanding and Evaluating Traditional Practices: A Guide for Improving Maternal Care, International Center for Research on Women, Washington D.C., 1990.
- B. JABRE. Education and Primary Health Care, Child, Family, Community Digests, No 17, UNESCO-UNICEF Co-operative Programme, Paris, 1986.
- S. JOEKES. Women's Work and Social Support for Childcare in the Third World, International Center for Research on Women, Washington D.C., 1987.



- M. KADDAR. Systèmes et politiques de santé au Maghreb un état des lieux, Centre International de l'Enfance, Paris, 1994.
- M. S. KHATTAB. A Comprehensive Review of the Status of Early Childhood Development in the Middle East and North Africa, Education Section, UNICEF Middle East and North Africa Regional Office, Amman, 1995.
- K. Kristensen, D. Baine & M.J. Thorburn. Educational Assessment and Early Intervention for Handicapped Children in Developing Countries. Child. Family, Community Digests, No 22, UNESCO-UNICEF Co-operative Programme, Paris, 1986.
- G.T. KURIAN (ed.). World Education Encyclopedia, Facts on File Publications, New York. 1988.
- J. LESLIE. Women's Time: A Factor in the Use of Child Survival Technologies?, International Center for Research on Women, Washington D.C., 1988.
- J. LESLIE. Women's Work and Child Nutrition in the Third World. International Center for Research on Women, Washington D.C., 1987.
- A. D. LOMBARD. Success Begins at Home: The Past, Present and Future of the Home Instruction Programme for Preschool Youngsters, 2nd edition, Dushkin Publishing Group, Guilford CT, 1994.
- J. LOMBARDI. Beyond Transition: Ensuring Continuity in Early Childhood Services, ERIC Digest. ERIC/Clearinghouse on Elementary and Early Childhood Education, Urbana, IL, 1992.
- J.A. LEVINE, D.T. MURPHY & S. WILSON (cds.). Getting Men Involved: Strategies for Early Childhood Programs, Scholastic Inc, New York, 1993.
- R. McMahon, E. Barton & M. Piot. On Being in Charge: A Guide to Management in Primary Health Care, 2nd edition, World Health Organization, Geneva. 1992.
- S.J. Meisels & J.P. Shonkoff (eds.). Handbook of Early Childhood Intervention, Cambridge University Press, New York, 1991.
- A. MELAVILLE & M. BLANK. What It Takes: Structuring Interagency Partnerships to Connect Children and Families with Comprehensive Services, Education and Human Services Consortium, Washington DC, 1991.
- S.S. MILADI & M. EL-GHORAB. Bibliography on Public Health and Nutrition of Children in the Arab World 1945-1989, Arab Council for Childhood and Development, Cairo, 1990.
- S. MILADI & H. SERAG EL.DIN. The State of the Child in the Arab World 1990. Arab Council for Childhood and Development, Cairo, 1990.
- MOBILE CRECHES. Activities for Preschool Children, Mobile Crèches/Government of Goa/UNICEF, Bombay, 1992.
- MCTC. Emergent Literacy in Early Childhood Education, The Young Child and the Family Environment Project, UNESCO, Paris, 1993.
- R. MYERS. Programming for Early Child Development and Health, Child. Family. Community Digests. No 30, UNESCO-UNICEF Co-operative Programme, Paris, 1990.
- R. MYERS. Towards a Fair Start for Children: Programming in Early Childhood Care and Development in the Developing World, The Young Child and the Family Environment Project, UNESCO, Paris, 1990.
- R. MYERS. Towards a Fair Start for Children: Programming in Early Childhood Care and Development in the Developing World, Arabic Edition, UNESCO/Arab Resource Collective, Nicosia, 1993.
- R. Myfrs. The Twelve who Survive: Strengthening Programmes of Early Childhood Development in the Third World, Routledge, London, 1992.
- NCOPF. Information Manual for One-Parent Families, National Council for One Parent Families, London, 1990.



- P.P. OLMSTED & D.P. WEIKART (eds.). How Nations Serve Young Children: Profiles of Child Care and Education in 14 Countries, High/Scope Press, Ypsilanti Michigan, 1989.
- P.P. OLMSTED & D.P. WEIKART (eds.). Families Speak: Early Childhood Care and Education in 11 Countries, High/Scope Press, Ypsilanti Michigan, 1995.
- OMMS. Help Children Grow: Child Health Resource Kit, Organisation Mondiale du Mouvement Scout, Geneva, 1990.
- B.J. O'TOOLE. Guide to Community-Rased Rehabilitation Services, Guides for Special Education, No 8, Education Sector, UNESCO, Paris, 1991.
- H. PHILP. Barbs in the Arrow Explorations in Early Childhood Education and Care, The Bernard van Leer Foundation: 1965-1986, School of Education, Macquarie University, Sidney, 1989.
- B. Po-King Chan (ed). Early Childhood toward the 21st Century: a worldwide perspective, Yew Chung Education Publishing Company, Hong Kong, 1990.
- R. POULTON & M. HARRIS (eds.). Putting People First: Voluntary Organisations and Third World Organisations, Macmillan Publishers Ltd. London, 1988.
- G. Pugh (ed). Contemporary Issues in the Early Years: Working Collaboratively for Children, Paul Chapman Publishers and National Children's Bureau, London, 1992.
- E.M. RESSLER, J.M. TORTORICI& A. MARCELLINO. Children in War: A Guide to the Provisions of Services. UNICEF, New York, 1993.
- D. ROUSE (ed). Babies and Toddlers: Carers and Educators Quality for the Under Threes, National Children's Bureau, London, 1991.
- N. SADIK (cd.). Population Policies and Programmes: Lessons Learned from Two Decades of Experience, United Nations Population Fund, New York University Press, New York, 1991.
- G. SALOLE. Building on people's strengths: the case for contextual child development. Studies and Evaluation Papers, No 5, Bernard van Leer Foundation, The Hague, 1992.
- L.J. Schweinhart & L. de Pietro (eds.). Shaping the Future for Early Childhood Programs. High/Scope Press, Ypsilanti Michigan, 1988.
- SCF. Growing Up with Conflict: Children and Development in the Occupied Territories. Save the Children UK, London, 1992.
- J. SFEIR & J. GILKES. Challenges & Initiatives in Early Childhood Education, Arab Resource Collective, Nicosia, 1992.
- S. P. Shelove (ed.). Caring for Your Baby and Young Child: Birth to Age Five, American Academy of Pediatrics, Bantam, New York, 1991.
- E. SURBECK & M.F. KELLEY (cds.). Personalizing Care with Infants, Toddlers and Families, Childhood Education International, Wheaton, 1992.
- M. SWAMINATHAN. The First Three Years: a Sourcebook on Early Childhood Care and Education. Child. Family, Community Digests. No 31, UNESCO-UNICEF Co-operative Programme, Paris, 1990.
- A. TAUZIN & M. SOUBES. Femmes, famille et société au Maghreb, Editions Karthala, Paris, 1990.
- TEACHING STRATEGIES. Caring for Preschool Children: A Trainer's Guide, Teaching Strategies, Washington D.C., 1989.
- TEACHING STRATEGIES. A Parent Guide to Early Childhood Education, Teaching Strategies, Washington D.C., 1990.
- M. THORBURN & K. MARFO. Practical Approaches to Childhood Disability in Developing Countries, Memorial University of Newfoundland, Canada, 1990.



- D. Tolfree. Residential Care for Children and Alternative Approaches to Care in Developing Countries, Save the Children UK, London, 1994.
- D. TOLFREE. Roofs and Roots: The Care of Separated Children in Developing Countries, Save the Children UK & Arena, London, 1995.
- UNESCO. Education for AIDS Prevention Bibliography, Education Sector, UNESCO, Paris, 1991.
- UNESCO. World Education Report 1993, UNESCO, Paris, 1993.
- UNICEF. A Global, Regional and Country Assessment of Child Malnutrition, Staff Working Papers No 7, UNICEF, 1990.
- UNICEF. All for Health, P&LA, Benson, 1989.
- UNICEF. Children and Environment: A UNICEF Strategy for Sustainable Development, UNICEF Policy Review, UNICEF, New York, 1989.
- UNICEF. Early Childhood Development: The Challenge & The Opportunity, UNICEF Education Cluster, New York, 1993.
- UNICEF. First Call for Children Convention on the Rights of the Child, UNICEF, New York, 1990.
- UNICEF. Strategies for Children in the 1990s, UNICEF Policy Review, UNICEF, New York, 1989.
- UNICEF. Strategy for Improved Nutrition of Children and Women in Developing Countries, UNICEF Policy Review, UNICEF, New York, 1990.
- UNICEF. The Progress of Nations, UNICEF, New York, 1994.
- UNICEF/WHO/UNESCO. Facts for Life, P&LA, Benson, 1993.
- United Nations Development Programme. Human Development Report 1990, UNDP, New York, 1991.
- UNITED NATIONS. Child Mortality in Developing Countries: Socio-economic Differentials, Trends and Implications, UN Department of International Economic and Social Affairs, New York, 1991.
- VOLCUF. Directory Enquiries: How to Produce a Local Guide to Services for the Under Fives, Voluntary Organisations Liaison Council for Under Fives, London, 1989.
- J. WALKER. Orphans of the Storm Peacebuilding for Children of War, Between the Lines, Toronto, 1994.
- H.M. WALLACE & K. GIRI. Health Care of Women and Children in Developing Countries, Third Party Publishing, Oakland, 1990.
- B. W.W. WELSH& P. BUTORIN (eds.). Dictionary of Development Third World Economy, Environment & Society, Garland Publishing Co., New York, 1990.
- G.A. WOODILL, J. BERNHARD & L. PROCHNER (cds.). International Handbook of Early Childhood Education, Garland Publishing Co., New York, 1992.
- WORLD BANK. World Development Report 1991, World Bank, Washington D.C., 1991.
- WCEFA. World Declaration on Education for All & Framework for Action to Meet Basic Learning Needs, World Conference on Education for All Meeting Basic Learning Needs, Jomticn, Thailand March 1990.

International Directories



- ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR THE CO-ORDINATION OF INFORMATION SYSTEMS. ACCIS Guide to United Nations Information Sources on Food and Agriculture, Food and Agriculture Organisation of the United Nations, Rome, 1987.
- ACCIS. Directory of United Nations Information Sources, 5th edition, Advisory Committee for the Coordination of Information Systems, United Nations, New York, 1994.
- ACCIS. Directory of United Nations System Databases on Non-Governmental Organizations, Advisory Committee for the Co-ordination of Information Systems, United Nations, New York, 1988.
- ACCIS. Register of Development Activities of the United Nations System, Advisory Committee for the Coordination of Information Systems, United Nations, New York, 1993.
- AGENCE DE COOPERATION CULTURELLE ET TECHNIQUE. Répertoire des diffuseurs de documents audiovisuels éducatifs dans le monde francophone: films et vidéogrammes, ACCT, Paris, 1985.
- ACCT. Répertoire des fournisseurs d'information francophones pour le développement, Agence de Coopération Culturelle et Technique & Lavoisier-Technique et Documentation, Paris, 1989.
- ACCT. Répertoire de sources d'information francophones pour le développement, Agence de Coopération Culturelle et Technique, Paris. 1987.
- ADBS-ANRT. Répertoire des banques de données professionnelles. Association Française des Documentalistes et des Bibliothècaires Spécialisés, Paris, 1992.
- L'ADMICAL. Le répertoire du mécenat, l'Admical, Paris, 1992.
- H. ANDO & C. KUIL (eds.). Guide to Sources of International Population Assistance, 6th edition, UNFPA, New York, 1991.
- ARAB COUNCIL FOR CHILDHOOD AND DEVELOPMENT. A Guide to Research Institutions and Universities Working in the Field of Childhood in the Arab World, Arab Council for Childhood and Development, Cairo, 1989.
- P. Brillet & D. Mrejen. Annuaire des formations francophones en epidémiologie, santé publique et médecine tropicale, Réseau Epidémiologie pour le Développement, Editions Publisud, Paris, 1990.
- BUREAU INTERNATIONAL D'EDUCATION. Current Bibliographical Sources in Education, BIE/UNESCO, Paris, 1992.
- BIE. Répertoire des services de documentation et d'information pédagogiques, BIE/UNESCO, Paris, 1988.
- CAF. Directory of Grant-Making Trusts, Charities Aid Foundation, Kent, 1991.
- COMMUNAUTES EUROPEENNES. Répertoire des bases de données publiques produites par les institutions des Communautés européennes, Office des publications officielles des Communautés européennes, Luxembourg, 1993.
- COPAC. Directory of Agencies Assisting Cooperatives in Developing Countries, Committee for the Promotion and Advancement of Cooperatives, Rome, 1989.
- B.T. DARNAY (ed). Directory of Special Libraries and Information Centers, 9th edition, Gale Research Co., Detroit, 1985.
- A. DAVISON. Grants from Europe: How to Get Money and Influence Policy, 7th edition, National Council of Voluntary Organisations Publications, London, 1993.
- DSE. Arabische Institutionen: Datenblätter über Arabische Entwicklungsbanken und multilaterale Arabische Institutionen, Deutsche Stiftung für Internationale Entwicklung, Bonn. 1989.
- R.F. DYBWAD (ed). International Directory of Mental Retardation Resources, International League of Societies for Persons with Mental Handicap, Brussels, 1990.
- R. EAST, M. SMITH-MORRIS & M. WRIGHT (eds.). World Development Directory, Cambridge International Reference on Current Affairs Ltd. Longman Group UK Limited, Harlow, 1990.



- EFC. EFC European Foundation Profiles, European Foundation Centre, Brussels, 1992.
- EUROPA PUBLICATIONS. The Middle East and North Africa 1995, 41st edition, Europa Publications Ltd., London, 1993.
- EUROPA PUBLICATIONS. The World of Learning 1990, 14th edition, Europa Publications Ltd., London, 1989.
- J. FORDHAM. Growing Up in a Changing World: Youth Organisations and Family Education, International Planned Parenthood Federation, London, 1985.
- FONDATION RENE SEYDOUX. Répertoire Méditerranéen: Centres d'Action, de Recherche et de Formation, Fondation René Seydoux pour le monde méditerranéen, Paris, 1991.
- FOUNDATION CENTER. The Foundation Directory, The Foundation Center, New York, 1993.
- FOUNDATION CENTER. Guide to Funding for International and Foreign Programs, The Foundation Center, New York, 1992.
- U. GIERE (cd.). UNESCO/UIE Literacy Exchange Network on Industrialized Countries Directory of Members, UNESCO/UNESCO Institute for Education, Hamburg, 1994.
- G.R. GORMAN & J.J. MILLS. Guide to Current National Bibliographies in the Third World, 2nd revised edition, K.G. Saur Verlag, Frankfurt, 1987.
- W. HANDL (ed.). Directory of all SOS Facilities 1993-94, SOS-Kinderdorf International, Innsbruck, 1993.
- B. HARVEY. Networking in Europe: A Guide to European Voluntary Organisations, 2nd edition, National Council of Voluntary Organisations, NCVO Publications & Community Development Foundation, London, 1995.
- HESPERIAN FOUNDATION. Directory of Organizations Working with Persons with Disabilities in Developing Countries, Hesperian Foundation, Palo Alto, 1991
- H.V. HODSON (ed.). The International Foundations Directory, Europa Publications, London, 1991.
- HRI Child Rights Information Directory a listing of organizations with information on the Rights of the Child, Human Rights Internet, Ottawa, 1995.
- HRI Masterlist a listing of organizations concerned with human rights and social justice worldwide, Human Rights Internet, Ottawa, 1994.
- IBISCUS. Sources d'information francophones pour le développement, IBISCUS, Paris, 1992.
- ICVA. NGO Coordinating Bodies World-Wide A Directory, International Council of Voluntary Agencies, Geneva, 1992.
- ITEM. Third World Guide 93/94, Instituto del Tercer Mundo, Montevideo, 1992.
- G.T. KURIAN. Encyclopedia of the Third World, 3rd edition, Facts on File Inc., New York, 1987.
- J. LOGAN HALL. Online Bibliographic Databases: A Directory and Source Book, 4th edition, Aslib, London, 1986.
- A. Lucas (cd.). Encyclopedia of Information Systems and Services, Gale Research Inc., Detroit, 1989.
- K.Y. MARCACCIO (ed.). Gale Directory of Databases, Gale Research Inc., Detroit, 1993.
- NCVO. Finding Funds General Information on Funding for Voluntary Groups, 2nd edition, National Council of Voluntary Organisations Publications, London, 1993.
- OECD DEVELOPMENT CENTRE. Directory of Development Research and Training Institutes in Arab Countries, Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), Paris, 1988.



- OECD DEVELOPMENT CENTRE. Directory of Development Research and Training Institutes in Europe. Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), Paris, 1991.
- OECD DEVELOPMENT CENTRE. Directory of Non-Governmental Development Organisations in OECD Member Countries, Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), Paris, 1990.
- OECD DEVELOPMENT CENTRE. Directory of Non-Governmental Environment & Development Organisations in OECD Member Countries, Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), Paris, 1992.
- OECD DEVELOPMENT CENTRE. Human Rights, Refugees, Migrants & Development: Directory of NGOs in OECD Countries, Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), Paris, 1993.
- OECD DEVELOPMENT CENTRE. Population & Development Directory of Non-Governmental Organizations in OECD Countries, Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), Paris, 1994
- OECD DEVELOPMENT CENTRE. Register of Development Research Projects in Selected European Countries, Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), Paris, 1992.
- OECD DEVELOPMENT CO-OPERATION DIRECTORATE. Voluntary Aid for Development: the Role of Non Governmental Organisations, Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), Paris. 1988.
- OMEP. Directory, Organisation Mondiale pour l'Education Préscolaire, Québec. 1993.
- OMEP. Human Resources Bank Directory, Organisation Mondiale pour l'Education Préscolaire. Hindsboro. 1991.
- A. PICCIRELLI (ed.). Research Centers Directory, Gale Research Inc., Detroit, 1993.
- M. SACHS (ed.). World Guide to Scientific Associations and Learned Societies, 5th edition, K.G. Saur Verlag, Munich, 1990.
- C.A. SCHWARTZ & R.L. TURNER (eds.). Encyclopedia of Associations, Gale Research Inc., Detroit, 1994
- S. Shreir (ed.). Women's Movements of the World: an International Directory and Reference Unide. Longman Group UK Limited, Harlow, 1988.
- D.L. SMITH (ed.). International Research Centers Directory 1990-91, 5th edition, Gale Research Co., Detroit, 1990.
- K. TORKINGTON & C. LANDERS. Enhancing the Skills of Early Childhood Trainers, Training Pack, Bernard van Leer Foundation/UNESCO, Paris, 1995.
- UNESCO. Access to Human Rights Documentation: Documentation, Databases and Bibliographics on Human Rights, Division of Human Rights and Peace, Paris, 1991.
- UNESCO. Arab States Compendium of Higher Education Programmes in Family & Home Feonomics. Nutrition, Food Science and Technology & Health Sciences, Basic Education Division in cooperation with the International Union of Nutritional Sciences, Paris. 1992.
- UNESCO. Directory of Early Childhood Care and Education Organizations in Sub-Saharan Africa. The Young Child and the Family Environment Project, Paris, 1992.
- UNESCO. Directory of UNESCO Databases, Clearing House Co-ordinating Unit, Paris, 1994
- UNESCO. Directory of UNESCO Information Services, Clearing House Co-ordinating Unit, Paris, 1994
- UNESCO. For and with Young People World Directory to Foundations, Division of Youth and Sports Activities, Paris, 1993.
- UNESCO. Guide to the Information Activities of European Development Networks, Social and Human Sciences Sector, Paris, 1991.



- UNESCO. INNOV Database Innovative Basic Education Projects in Developing Countries, Basic Education Division/CBE, Paris, 1994.
- UNESCO. International Directory on the Young Child and the Family Environment, The Young Child and the Family Environment Project, Paris, 1991.
- UNESCO. International Directory of UNESCO Clubs. Centres and Associations, Division of National Commissions and UNESCO Clubs. Paris, 1993.
- UNESCO. International Directory of Youth Bodies, Division of Youth and Sports Activities, Paris, 1992.
- UNESCO. Selective Inventory of Social Science Information and Documentation Services. Social and Human Sciences Sector, Paris, 1989.
- UNESCO. UNESCO Associated Schools Project for Promoting International Education List of Participating Institutions, Education Sector, Paris, 1994.
- UNESCO/ICET. World Directory of Teacher-Training Institutions. UNESCO & International Council on Education for Teaching. Arlington VA. 1993.
- UNFPA. Inventory of Population Projects in Developing Countries around the World, United Nations Population Fund, New York, 1990.
- UNION OF INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATIONS. Fearbook of International Organizations, K.G. Saur Verlag, Munich, 1988/1989.
- UN-NGLS. Directory of NGO Projects in favour of Children in Eastern and Central Europe. United Nations Non-Governmental Liaison Service, Geneva. 1993.
- UN-NGLS. Inventory of Non-Governmental Organizations Working on AIDS in Countries that Receive Development Cooperation or Assistance, United Nations Non-Governmental Liaison Service, Geneva, 1991.
- UN-NGLS. United Nations Development Education Directory, 7th edition. United Nations Non-Governmental Liaison Service, Geneva, 1992.
- WHO. Directory of Funders in Maternal Health and Safe Motherhood, Division of Family Health, World Health Organization, Geneva, 1992.
- WORLD ALLIANCE OF YMCAS. *Directory*, World Alliance of Young Men's Christian Associations, Geneva, 1989.

National Directories

Australia

- ACFOA. Directory of Member Organisations, Australian Council of Overseas Aid, Canberra, 1988.
- NSW EARLY INTERVENTION Association. Directory of Services, 2nd edition, New South Wales Early Intervention Association, Chatswood, 1988.

Austria

MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS. *Fntwicklungslander* in: Fach-Informations-Führer 10, Böhlau Verlag, Vienna, 1986.

Belgium



- ASSOCIATION DES MAISONS D'ACCUEIL. Répertoire des maisons d'accueil de la Communauté Française de Belgique, 7eme édition, AMA, Brussels, 1989.
- CNCD. Inventaire des ONG belges de coopération au développement, Les Cahiers du Tiers Monde, Centre National de Coopération au Développement, Brussels, 1987.
- A. DE FABRIBECKERS. ONG et Communication: Tandem du développement. Bureau d'Informations Européennes SPRL, Brussels, 1989.

Canada

- AQOCI. Répertoire, Association Québécoise des Organismes de Coopération Internationale, Montréal, 1988.
- T. Brodhead & B. Herbert-Copley. Bridges of Hope? Canadian Voluntary Agencies and the Third World, North South Institute, Ottawa, 1988.
- CCCF. Directory of Canadian Child Care Organizations / Répertoire des services canadiens de garde à l'enfance, Canadian Child Care Federation, Ottawa, 1992.
- CCIC. I.D. Profile / Profil D.I., Canadian Council for International Co-operation, Ottawa, 1992.
- MINISTERE DES RELATIONS INTERNATIONALES. Répertoire des Intervenants Internationaux du Québec, Ministère des Relations Internationales, Québec, 1986.

Denmark

MS. U-vejviser, Mellemfolkeligt Samvirke, Copenhagen, 1987.

France

- ACEP. Guide pratique des crèches parentales, Association des Collectifs Enfants-Parents, Paris, 1991.
- CNFLRH. Répertoire des associations et organismes au service des personnes haudicapées. 4cmc édition. Comité National Français de Liaison pour la Réadaptation des Handicapés, Paris, 1990.
- COMMISSION COOPERATION-DEVELOPPEMENT. Répertoire des associations de solidarité internationale 1995, Ministère de la Coopération et du Développement, Paris, 1995.
- FONDATION DE FRANCE. Histoire du coeur, portrait de 31 fondations, Fondation de France, Paris, 1992,
- FONDATION POUR L'ENFANCE. Qui, quoi, que faire, comment? pour les enfants maltraités: mini guide pour l'action, Fondation pour l'Enfance, Paris, 1990.
- P. JOST & F. PERRIOT. Le guide des actions humanitaires, Presses de la Cité, Paris, 1993.
- F. KACHOUCH. Annuaire des resources sur la famille, Documentation Française, Paris, 1995.
- OECD DEVELOPMENT CENTRE. Directory of French Development Research Databases: An Overview, Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), Paris, 1994.
- F. DE SINGLY & J-C. KAUFMANN (eds.). Annuaire des chercheurs et des recherches sur la famille. GdR CNRS Sociologie de la Famille & Institut de l'Enfance et de la Famille, Paris, 1990.
- Guide annuaire des associations et fondations, Editions Juris Service, Paris, 1994.

Germany

DSE. Development Co-operation: A selection of German Institutions, Deutsche Stiftung für Internationale Entwicklung, Bonn, 1986.



1:0

- DSE. Institutionen der Entwicklungszusammenarbeit, Deutsche Stiftung für Internationale Entwicklung, Bonn, 1992.
- SENAT DEPARTMENT FOR ECONOMICS & LABOUR. On Offer in Berlin: A Handbook of Development Cooperation, Senat Department for Economics & Labour, Berlin, 1986.
- SENATSVERWALTUNG FÜR WIRTSCHAFT UND TECHNOLOGIE. Stadtführer Entwicklungspolitik: Adressenverzeichnis und Selbstdarstellungen von Initiativen und Institutionen aus der Entwicklungspolitik in Berlin, Landesstelle für Entwicklungszusammenarbeit, Senatsverwaltung für Wirtschaft und Technologie, Berlin, 1991.

Italy

COMUNE DI MILANO - SETTORE EDUCAZIONE. Guida alla Cooperazione e al Volontariato Internazionale. Comune di Milano, Milan, 1988.

Japan

JANIC. Directory of Japanese Non-Governmental Organizations: NGOs Active in International Cooperation, Japanese NGO Center for International Co-operation, Tokyo, 1994.

NCYOJ. Youth Organizations in Japan, National Council of Youth Organizations in Japan, Tokyo, 1988.

Netherlands

VOORLICHTINGSDIENST ONTWIKKELINGSSAMENWERKING. Adreslijst - Nederland en Ontwikkelingslanden, Ministerie van Buitenlandse Zaken, The Hague, 1993.

New Zealand

- DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE. Directory of Official Information, New Zealand Department of Justice, Wellington, 1993.
- NZCER. A Directory of Philanthropic Trusts in New Zealand. New Zealand Council for Educational Research, Wellington, 1994.
- NZCTD. Directory of New Zealand Organisations involved in International Aid and Development, New Zealand Coalition for Trade and Development, Wellington, 1987.

Norway

NOSEB. Catalogue of Research Projects on Children in Norway, Norwegian Centre for Child Research, Draguoll, 1991.

Spain

COORDINADORA, Directorio (NGI) 1994, Coordinadora de Organizaciones No Gubernamentales para el Desarrollo, Madrid, 1994.

Sweden

FOI. Swedish NGOs in Development and Solidarity, Bistandsinformation/FOI, Stockholm, 1988.

Switzerland

1UED. Annuaire Suisse-Tiers monde 1990, Institut Universitaire d'Etudes du Développement, Geneva, 1989.



- IUED. Guide de la documentation Suisse-Tiers monde, Institut Universitaire d'Etudes du Développement, Geneva, 1987.
- IUED. Suisse-Tiers monde: répertoire d'institutions, Institut Universitaire d'Etudes du Développement, Geneva, 1989.

United Kingdom

- ACTIONAID. A Directory of British Development NGOs supporting Education in Asia, Latin America and Africa, ACTIONAID, London, 1993.
- AHRTAG. Guide to Primary Health Care Courses in the United Kingdom, Appropriate Health Resources and Technologies Action Group, London, 1990.
- AHRTAG. Primary Health Care in Developing Countries: A Guide to Resources and Information in the United Kingdom, Appropriate Health Resources and Technologies Action Group, London, 1990.
- CAF. Give as You Earn Directory of Charities, Charities Aid Foundation, Kent. 1991.
- CHOICES IN CHILDCARE. National Network of Children's Information Services National Directory 1993, Choices in Childcare, Sheffield, 1993.
- CIIR. Action for Justice and Peace: a Handbook for Groups, Catholic Institute for International Relations, London, 1986.
- CRE. Racial Equality Councils A Directory. Commission for Racial Equality, London, 1991.
- EARLY CHILDHOOD UNIT. Services for Under Fives and Their Families An Information Pack, National Children's Burcau, London, 1992.
- NCVO. *The Voluntary Agencies Directory*, National Council of Voluntary Organisations, Bedford Square Press, London, 1995.
- L. STUBBS (ed.). The Third World Directory 1993, The Directory of Social Change, London, 1993.
- VOLCUF & NATIONAL CHILDREN'S BUREAU. Organisations Concerned with Young Children and Their Families A National Directory 1992, Voluntary Organisations Liaison Council for Under Fives & National Children's Bureau Early Childhood Unit, London, 1992.

United States

- AMFAR. Learning AIDS: an Information Resources, 2nd edition, American Foundation for AIDS Research, New York, 1989.
- FRANCK & D. BROWNSTONE (eds.). What's New for Parents: The Essential Resource to Products and Services, Programs and Information, New for the 90s, Prentice-Hall, New York, 1993.
- E. E. HAAG. Research Guide for Studies in Infancy and Childhood, Greenwood, New York, 1988.
- INTERACTION. InterAction Member Profiles, InterAction, New York, 1987.
- L. LONG. Non-Governmental Organizations' Involvement in Child Development in Developing Countries, Agency for Educational Development, Washington DC, 1992.
- D. STARER. Who to Call: The Parent's Source Book, Morrow, New York, 1992.



112

INDEXES



Country Reference Codes

ALGERIA	DZ
DJIBOUTI	DJ
EGYPT	EG
JORDAN	JO
KUWAIT	KW
LEBANON	LB
MAURITANIA	MR
MOROCCO	MA
SUDAN	SD
SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC	SY
TUNISIA	TN
YEMEN	YE



Alphabetical List of Organizations

AHFAD PRESCHOOL CENTRE	(SD038)
ALLIANCE DE TRAVAIL DANS LA FORMATION ET L'ACTION POUR L'ENFAN	CE(MA036)
ARAB COUNCIL FOR CHILDHOOD AND DEVELOPMENT	(EG007)
ASSOCIATION ALGERIENNE ENFANCE ET FAMILLES D'ACCUEIL BENEVOLE	E(DZ001)
ASSOCIATION ARABE SYRIENNE DES VILLAGES D'ENFANTS SOS	(SY044)
ASSOCIATION D'AIDE A L'ENFANCE	(TN046)
ASSOCIATION DE SAUVEGARDE DES HANDICAPES MOTEURS DE SFAX	(.TN047)
ASSOCIATION LA VOIX DE L'ENFANT	(TN048)
ASSOCIATION LIBANAISE DES VILLAGES D'ENFANTS SOS	(LB030)
ASSOCIATION MEDICO-PSYCHOTHERAPIQUE INFANTILE IBNOU SINA	(.TN049)
ASSOCIATION MERE ET ENFANT	(DJ003)
ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE D'AIDE AUX SOURDS	(TN050)
ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE DE L'ENFANT	(TN051)
ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE DES VILLAGES D'ENFANTS SOS	(.TN052)
ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE DU PLANNING FAMILIAL	(TN053)
ASSUIT DISABLED CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION	(EG008)
CENTER FOR CHILD EVALUATION AND TEACHING	(KW027)
LES CHIFFONIERS DU CAIRE	(EG009)
CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL	(EG010)
DEPARTMENT OF CHILD EDUCATION	(EG011)
DEPARTMENT OF SPECIAL EDUCATION SCHOOLS	(KW028)
DIRECTION DE LA MEDECINE SCOLAIRE ET UNIVERSITAIRE	(TN054)
DIRECTION DES SOINS DE SANTE DE BASE	(TN055)
ECOLE MATERNELLE LA FARANDOLE	(DJ004)
ECOLE MATERNELLE LA NATIVITE	(DJ005)
EGYPTIAN FERTILITY CARE SOCIETY	(EG012)
EGYPTIAN SAVE THE CHILDREN	(E G 013)



FACULTY OF SOCIAL WORK	(EG014)
FONDATION TUNISIENNE POUR LE DEVELOPPEMENT COMMUNAUTAIRE	
GENERAL UNION OF VOLUNTARY SOCIETIES	
GHASSAN KANAFANI CULTURAL FOUNDATION	
GROUPE KORANIC PRESCHOOLS	
HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION	
INSTITUT DE PROMOTION DES HANDICAPES	
INSTITUT NATIONAL DE NUTRITION ET DE TECHNOLOGIE ALIMENTAIRE	
INSTITUT NATIONAL DE SANTE PUBLIQUE	(TN059)
INSTITUTE FOR CHILD HEALTH AND DEVELOPMENT / NOOR AL HUSSEIN FOUNDATION	(JO()20)
INSTITUTE FOR WOMEN'S STUDIES IN THE ARAB WORLD	(LB032)
INSTITUTE OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS - MIDDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRICA	(EG015)
INSTITUTE OF POST-GRADUATE CHILDHOOD STUDIES	(EG016)
KUWAIT SOCIETY FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF ARAB CHILDREN	(KW029)
LEBANESE ORGANIZATION FOR THE LEBANESE CHILD	(LB033)
MINISTERE DE LA JEUNESSE ET DE L'ENFANCE	(TN060)
MINISTRY OF EDUCATION	(IO02.1)
MINISTRY OF SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT	(JO()22)
MINISTRY OF SOCIAL WELFARE AND DEVELOPMENT	(SD039)
OFFICE NATIONAL DE LA FAMILLE ET DE LA POPULATION	(TN061)
PRESCHOOL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT	(SD040)
PRIMARY HEALTH CARE AND RURAL HEALTH CENTRE	(SD041)
PROJET ENFANTS MIGRANTS DES KEBBA	(MR034)
QUALITY OF LIFE PROJECT	(JO023)
QUEEN ALIA JORDAN SOCIAL WELFARE FUND	(JO024)
SOCIAL RESEARCH CENTER	(EG017)
SOS CHILDREN'S VILLAGE SUDAN	(SD()42)
SOS CHILDREN'S VILLAGES - JORDAN	(JO()25)
SUDAN FAMILY PLANNING ASSOCIATION	(SD043)



SYRIAN FAMILY PLANNING ASSOCIATION	(SY045)
UNION NATIONALE DES FEMMES DE DJIBOUTI	(DJ006)
UNION POUR LA DEFENCE ET LA PROTECTION DES DEFFICIENTS MENTAUX DE LA WALAYA DE TLEMCEN	(DZ002)
UNION TUNISIENNE D'AIDE AUX INSUFFISANTS MENTAUX	(.T.N062)
UNION TUNISIENNE DE SOLIDARITE SOCIALE	(TN063)
UNITED NATIONS CHILDREN'S FUND - JORDAN	(JO026)
WORLD VISION MAURITANIA	(MR035
YEMEN FAMILY CARE ASSOCIATION	(YE064)



Organizations' Acronym Index

AAEFAB	ASSOCIATION ALGERIENNE ENFANCE ET FAMILLES D'ACCUEIL BENEVOLE	(DZ001)
ACCD	ARAB COUNCIL FOR CHILDHOOD AND DEVELOPMENT	(EG007)
ATAS	ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE D'AIDE AUX SOURDS	(TN050)
ATFALE	ALLIANCE DE TRAVAIL DANS LA FORMATION ET L'ACTION POUR L'ENFANCE	(MA036)
ATPF	ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE DU PLANNING FAMILIAL	(TN053)
ATUESOS	ASSOCIATION TUNISIENNE DES VILLAGES D'ENFANTS SOS	(TN052)
CCET	CENTER FOR CHILD EVALUATION AND TEACHING	(KW027)
DMSU	DIRECTION DE LA MEDECINE SCOLAIRE ET UNIVERSITAIRE	(TN054)
E/SCF	EGYPTIAN SAVE THE CHILDREN	(EG013)
EFCS	EGYPTIAN FERTILITY CARE SOCIETY	(EG012)
FTDC	FONDATION TUNISIENNE POUR LE DEVELOPPEMENT COMMUNAUTAIRE	(TN056)
GKCF	GHASSAN KANAFANI CULTURAL FOUNDATION	(LB031)
GKPS	GROUPE KORANIC PRESCHOOLS	(MA037)
GUVS	GENERAL UNION OF VOLUNTARY SOCIETIES	(JO018)
HUDC	HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION	(JO019)
ICA	INSTITUTE OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS - MIDDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRICA	(EG015)
IPH	INSTITUT DE PROMOTION DES HANDICAPES	(TN057)
IWSAW	INSTITUTE FOR WOMEN'S STUDIES IN THE ARAB WORLD	(LB032)
KSAAC	KUWAIT SOCIETY FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF ARAB CHILDREN	(K W 029)
MJE	MINISTERE DE LA JEUNESSE ET DE L'ENFANCE	(TN060)
QAF	QUEEN ALIA JORDAN SOCIAL WELFARE FUND	(JO024)
QLP	QUALITY OF LIFE PROJECT	(JO023)
SFPA	SYRIAN FAMILY PLANNING ASSOCIATION	(SY045)
SRC	SOCIAL RESEARCH CENTER	(EG017)
UDPDM	UNION POUR LA DEFENCE ET LA PROTECTION DES	(DZ002)



______1

	DEFFICIENTS MENTAUX DE LA WALAYA DE TLEMCEN	
UNFD	UNION NATICNALE DES FEMMES DE DJIBOUTI	(DJ006)
UNICEF Jordan	UNITED NATIONS CHILDREN'S FUND - JORDAN	(JO026)
UTAIM	UNION TUNISIENNE D'AIDE AUX INSUFFISANTS MENTAUX	(TN062)
UTSS	UNION TUNISIENNE DE SOLIDARITE SOCIALE	(TN063)
YFCA	YEMEN FAMILY CARE ASSOCIATION	(YE064)



Type of Actions Index

CHILD-TO-CHILD PROGRAMMES

EG015, J0018, J0021, LB033, MR034, TN060

GRANT-MAKING

EG014, EG015, J0018, J0019, J0026, KW029, LB030, LB031, SD039, TN047, TN060, TN063, YE064

INFORMATION ACTIVITIES

DZ001,	DZ002,	EG007,	EG009,	EG010,	EG012,	EG013,	EG014,	EG015,
EG017,	JO018,	JO020,	JO021,	JO022,	JO023,	JC J26,	KW027,	KW029,
LB031,	LB032,	LB033,	MA036,	MA037,	MR034,	Mk035,	SD038,	SD039,
SD041,	SD042,	SD043,	SY044,	SY045,	TN046,	TN047,	TN048,	TN049,
TN050,	TN052,	TN053,	TN054,	TN055,	TN057,	TN058,	TN059,	TN060,
TN061,	TN063,	YE064						

INTEGRATED COMMUNITY PROGRAMMES

EG012,	JO018,	JO019,	JO022,	JO024,	JO026,	LB030,	LB033,	MR034,
MR035,	SD038,	SD039,	SY045,	TN056,	TN060,	TN063.	YE064	·

INTEGRATED PROGRAMMING

JO023, MR035,	JO025, SD038,	JO026, SD039,	EG012, KW028, SD041,	KW029, SD043,	LB030, SY044,	LB032, TN047,	LB033, TN050,	MR034, TN053,
TN054,	TN055,	TN056,	TN057,	TN058,	TN059,	TN060,	TN061,	TN063,
YE064								

NETWORKING

DJ006,	DZ001,	EG007,	EG010,	EG012,	EG013,	EG014,	EG015,	EG017,
		J0021,						
LB032,	MA036,	MR034,	MR035,	SD038,	SD039,	SD040,	SD041,	TN048,
		TN057,						

PARENT-TO-PARENT PROGRAMMES

EG016, LB033, SD041, SD043, SY045, TN056

PARENT/COMMUNITY PROGRAMMES

EG010,	EG014,	EG015,	JO023,	JO024,	LB031,	LB033,	MR034,	MR035,
SD039,	TN047,	TN050,	TN056,	TN060,	TN061			



POLICY

EG010,	EG012.	EG013,	EG014,	EG015,	JO018,	J0019,	J0020,	JUUZI,
J0022,	J0023	J0026.	LB033.	MR034,	SD039,	SD041,	SD043,	TN054,
TN055,	TN056	TN057.	TN058,	TN059,	TN060,	TN061,	YE064	
1110331	111030,		•					

PROGRAMMES/PROJECTS

DJ006,	DZ001.	DZ002,	EG007,	EG008,	EG009,	EG010,	EG011,	EG012,
EC014	EC015	FG016	EG017.	J0018,	JO019,	J0021,	JO022,	JO023,
EGU14,	EG013,	EG010,	10017,	LB032,	1 12 0 2 2	MA036	MA037.	MR034.
JO026,	KW028,	KW029,	PB031'	шьози,	прозз,	01015	TIME OF C	TNOAT
MR035,	SD038,	SD039,	SD040,	SD041,	SY044,	SY045,	INU46,	10047,
TN048.	TN049,	TN050,	TN052,	TN053,	TN054,	TN055,	TN056,	TN057,
				TN062.				

PUBLICATIONS/MATERIALS

DZ002.	EG007.	EG012,	EG016,	EG017,	J0018,	J0021,	JO022,	JO024,
J0025,	J0026,	KW028,	KW029,	MR035,	SD038,	SD039,	SD040,	SD043,
					TN060,			

RESEARCH

KW029,	JO019,	J0020,	J0021,	JO022,	JO024,	JO026,	KW027,	KW028,
	LB031,	LB032,	LB033,	MA036,	MA037,	MR034,	SD038,	SD039,
	SD041,	SD043,	SY044,	SY045,	TN046,	TN047,	TN049,	TN050,
TN054,	TN055,	TN056,	TN057,	TN058,	TN059,	TN060,	TN061,	YE064

SERVICES

5.7000	DG001	D7000	EG008,	EG009	EG016.	JO018.	JO019,	J0020,
DJ003,	DZUUI,	DZ002,	EGUU6,	EG((0)),	EGG10,	WW020	10020	MDOSA
J0021,	JO022,	JO024,	JO025,	JO026,	KW027,	KW029,	PB03//	MRU34,
MR035,	SD038,	SD039,	SD042,	SD043,	SY045,	TN046,	TN04),	TN051,
			TN060					

TRAINING

DJ1006.	DZ001.	DZ002,	EG007,	EG008,	EG009,	EG010,	EG011,	EG012.
EG013	EG014	EG015.	EG016,	JO018,	J0019,	JO020,	J0021,	JO022,
10013,	10024	.10026	KW027.	KW029.	LB030,	LB031,	LB032,	LB033,
00023,	00024, MD027	MD020,	MP035	SD038.	SD039,	SD040,	SD041,	SD042,
MAU36,	MAUSI,	mx034,	TNO 33,	TNO49	TMO50	TN052	TN053,	TN054
SD043,	SY045,	TNU4/,	1046,	TN047,	TNOSO,	TNOSE,	TNO63	VE064
TN055,	TN056,	TN057,	TN058,	TN059,	INUOU,	114001,	TN063,	1004



Focus of Programmes Index

CHILD ADVOCACY

DZ001,	DZ002,	EG007,	EG009,	EG010,	EG013,	EG014,	JO018.	J0021.
JO022,	JO026,	KW028,	KW029,	LB031,	LB033,	MR034,	SD038.	SD039.
SD042,	SD043,	TN046,	TN047,	TN048,	TN050,	TN051,	TN(52.	TN055.
TN056,						,	,	21.720,

CHILD AT RISK

JO020, LB030, TN048,	JO021, LB033, TN049,	JO022, MR034, TN052,	EG007, J0024, SD038, TN054,	JO025, SD039,	JO026, SD042,	KW027, SD043,	KW028, SY044,	KW029, TN046,
TN061,			11.001,	111033,	111030,	111037,	11055,	111060,

CHILD CARE & EDUCATION

DJ003,	DJ004,	DJ005,	DJ006,	DZ001,	DZ002,	EG007,	EG008,	EG009,
EG010,	EG011,	EG012,	EG013,	EG014,	EG015,	EG016,	JO018,	JO019,
JO020,	JO021,	JO022,	JO023,	JO024,	JO025,	J0026,	KW027,	KW028,
KW029,	LB030,	LB031,	LB032,	LB033,	MA036,	MA037,	MR034,	MR035,
SD038,	SD039,	SD040,	SD041,	SD042,	SY044,	TN046,	TN047,	TN048,
TN049,	TN050,	TN052,	TN053,	TN056,	TN057,	TN058,	TN059,	TN060,
TN061.	TN062	TNO63	VEO64				- •	/

CHILD HEALTH & DEVELOPMENT

DJ003, EG010, J0020, KW029, SD038, TN047,	DJ004, EG011, J0021, LB030, SD039, TN048,	DJ005, EG012, J0022, LB031, SD040, TN049,	DJ006, EG014, J0023, LB032, C.7041, TN050,	DZ001, EG015, J0024, LB033, SD042, TN051,	J0025, MA036, SD043, TN052,	EG007, EG017, J0026, MA037, SY044, TN053,	EG008, J0018, KW027, MR034, SY045, TN054,	EG009, J0019, KW028, MR035, TN046, TN055,
TN056,	TN057,	TN058,	TN050,	TN051,	TN052,	TN053,	TN054,	TN055, YE064

COMMUNITY ADVOCACY

DZ001, J0021, MR035, TN050, YE064	JO022, SD038,	JO024, SD039,	JO025, SD040,	JO026, SD043,	KW029, SY045,	LB031, TN046,	LB033, TN047,	MR034, TN048,
---	------------------	------------------	------------------	------------------	------------------	------------------	------------------	------------------

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & AWARENESS

EG014, JO024,	EG015, JO025,	EG017, JO026,	JO018, KW029,	EG009, J0019, LB030,	JO020, LB031,	JO021, LB032,	JO022, LB033,	JO023,
MA037,	MR034,	MR035,	SD038,	SD039,	SD040,	SD041,	SD042,	SD043,
SY045,	TN046,	TN047,	TN048,	TN049,	TN050,	TN051,	TN053,	TN054,
				TN060,				,



COMMUNITY LIVELIHOOD

DJ006, J0022, SD039,	J0024, SD040,	J0025,	J0026,	KW029,	LB030,	MR034,	MR035,	SD038,
TN063,	YE064							

COMMUNITY WELFARE & INVOLVEMENT

DJ003,	DJ006,	DZ001,	DZ002,	EG007,	EG008,	EG009,	EG010,	EG012,
EG013.	EG014,	EG016,	EG017,	JO018,	JO019,	JO020,	JO021,	J0022,
J0023,	J0024,	J0025,	J0026,	KW029,	LB030,	LB033,	MR034,	MR035,
SD038.	SD039.	SD040,	SD042,	SD043,	SY044,	SY045,	TN046,	TN048,
TN053,	TN054,	TN055,	TN056,	TN057,	TN060,	TN063,	YE064	

FAMILY ADVOCACY

EG007,	EG009,	EG012,	J0018,	JO020,	J0021,	J0022,	JO024,	J0026,
KW029,	LB033,	MR034,	SD040,	SD043,	TN046,	TN048,	TN051,	TN055,
TN056,	TN060,	TN063,	YE064					

FAMILY AT RISK

DJ003,	EG007,	EG009,	EG012,	EG014,	J0018,	JO019,	J0020,	J0021,
J0022,	JO024,	J0026,	LB030,	LB033,	MR034,	MR035,	SD038,	SD039,
SD040,	SD042,	SD043,	TN046,	TN048,	TN051,	TN052,	TN055,	TN056,
TN057,	TN060,	TN061,	TN063,	YE064				

FAMILY EDUCATION & AWARENESS

D 7006	D7001	EG007,	FGOOR	EG009.	EG010.	EG011.	EG012,	EC 113,
, 2006ת	DZ001,	EG007,	EG000,	TO010	70010	TO020	.TO021	.TO022
EG014,	EG015,	EG016,	EG017,	30018,	00019,	00020,	00021,	00022,
JO023,	JO024,	J0026,	KW028,	KW029,	LB031,	LB032,	LB033,	MA036,
MR034,	MR035,	SD038,	SD039,	SD040,	SD042,	SD043,	SY045,	TN046,
TN047,	TN049,	TN050,	TN051,	TN052,	TN053,	TN054,	TN055,	TN056,
		TM059						

FAMILY HEALTH & WELFARE

DJ006, EG014, EJ0025, SD038, STN049, TN061,	EG017, JO026, SD039, IN053,	JO018, KW028, SD040, TN054,	J0019, KW029, SD042,	JO020, LB030, SD043,	J0021, LB031, SY045,	J0022, LB033, TN046,	J0023, MR034, TN047,	J0024, MR035, TN048,
---	--------------------------------------	--------------------------------------	----------------------------	----------------------------	----------------------------	----------------------------	----------------------------	----------------------------



134

Index of Services Provided

ADVISORY & SUPPORT SERVICES

JO022, SD042,	JO023, SD043,	JO024, SY045,	EG012, JO025, TN046,	LB031,	LB032,	MA037,	MR035,	SD038,
TN061,	TN062,	YE064						

CARE SERVICES

DJ003,	DZ001,	DZ002,	EG008,	EG009,	EG012,	JO018,	J0019,	J0021,
						TN060,		

COUNSELLING/GUIDANCE SERVICES

DZ002,	EG016,	J0018,	J0020,	J0021,	J0022,	JO024,	J0025,	KW027.
KW028,	KW029,	LB033,	SD038,	SD039,	SD042,	SD043,	SY045,	TN049.
		TN057.				•	•	•

DOCUMENTATION/INFORMATION SERVICES

HOTLINE, HELP/SUPPORT SERVICES

EG009, J0018, MR034, SD039, TN055, TN057, TN060, TN063

INFORMATION CAMPAIGNS

DZ001, EG009, EG012, J0021, J0022, J0024, J0026, KW029, LB033, SD039, SD043, TN048, TN054, TN055, TN056, TN057, TN060

LEGAL SERVICES

EG012, J0019, MR034

OUTREACH PROGRAMMES/EXTENSION WORK

EG007, EG008, J0018, J0019, J0020, J0021, J0022, J0023, J0024, J0026, KW027, SD038, SD039, SD043, SY045, TN054, TN055, YE064

PROVISION OF EQUIPMENT/SUPPLIES

J0019, J0021, J0022, J0026, SY045, TN054, TN055, TN057, TN060, YE064



RADIO/TELEVISION/MEDIA PROGRAMMES

DZ001, DZ002, EG009, EG012, EG016, J0018, J0021, J0022, J0026, KW028, LB033, MR034, SD043, SY045, TN054, TN055, TN057, TN060, YE064

RESEARCH/CONSULTANCY SERVICES

DJ006, EG007, EG009, EG011, EG012, EG016, EG017, J0018, J0019, J0021, J0022, J0024, J0026, KW027, KW029, SD041, SD043, SY045, TN046, TN049, TN055, TN060, YE064

TECHNICAL SERVICES

EG009, EG012, J0018, J0019, J0021, J0022, J0026, MR034, SY045, TN054, TN055, TN057, TN060

UNIVERSITY COURSES/PROGRAMMES

EG011, EG016, J0021, KW028, MR034, SD038, SD041, SY045, TN055, TN057, YE064



Geographical Coverage Index

AFGHANISTAN

SD041

ALGERIA

DZ001, DZ002, EG007, TN058

ARAB STATES

EG012, EG014, KW029, LB032

BAHRAIN

EG007

DJIBOUTI

DJ003, DJ004, DJ005, DJ006, EG007

EGYPT

EG007, EG008, EG009, EG010, EG011, EG012, EG013, EG014, EG015, EG016, EG017, SD041

FRANCOPHONE AFRICA

TN058

IRAN (Islamic Republic of)

EG012

IRAQ

EG007

JORDAN

EG007, EG012, EG015, J0018, J0019, J0020, J0021, J0022, J0023, J0024, J0025, J0026, SD041

KUWAIT

EG007, KW027, KW028, KW029



LEBANON

EG007, LB030, LB031, LB032, LB033, SD041

LIBYAN ARAB JAMAHIRIYA

EG007

MAURITANIA

EG007, MR034, MR035

MIDDLE EAST

EG010, EG017

MOROCCO

EG007, MA036, MA037, TN058

OMAN

EG007

PALESTINE

EG007

QATAR

EG007

SAUDI ARABIA

EG007

SOMALIA

EG007, SD041

SUDAN

EG007, EG012, EG015, SD038, SD039, SD040, SD041, SD042, SD043, TN058

SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC

EG007, EG012, SY044, SY045



TUNISIA

EG007, EG012, TN046, TN047, TN048, TN049, TN050, TN051, TN052, TN053, TN054, TN055, TN056, TN057, TN058, TN059, TN060, TN061, TN062, TN063

TURKEY

EG012

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

EG007, SD041

YEMEN

EG007, EG012, SD041, YE064



ANNEXES



The Convention on the Rights of the Child

The Convention on the Rights of the Child was adopted by the United Nations on November 20th 1989 and entered into force on September 2nd 1990 after being ratified by 20 States. As of July 12th 1995, 176 countries had either signed the Convention or become States Parties to it by ratification or accession. When ratified by a State, the Convention becomes binding law in it.

The Convention seeks to balance the rights of the child with the rights and duties of parents or others who have responsibilities for child survival, development and protection, and gives the child the right to participate in decisions affecting both the present and the future. The fifty-four articles of the Convention describe the individual rights of any person under 18 to develop his or her full potential, free from hunger and want, neglect, exploitation or other abuses.

The inherent strength of the new Convention lies in its flexibility, its capacity to accommodate the many different approaches of nations in pursuit of a common goal. It has not evaded the sensitive issues, but has found means to adjust to the different cultural, religious and other values which address universal child needs in their own ways.

Main provisions of the Convention

Preamble

The preamble reaffirms the fact that children because of their vulnerability, need special care and protection, and places special emphasis on the primary caring and protective responsibility of the family. It also reaffirms the need for legal and other protection of the child before and after birth, the importance of respect for the cultural values of the child's community, and the vital role of international co-operation in securing children's rights.

Definition of a child (article 1)

A child is recognized as a person under 18, unless national laws recognize the age of majority earlier.

Non-discrimination (article 2)

All rights apply to all children without exception. It is the State's obligation to protect children from any form of discrimination and to take positive action to promote their rights.

Best interests of the child (article 3)

All actions concerning the child shall take full account of his or her best interests. The State shall provide the child with adequate care when parents, or others charged with that responsibility, fail to do so.

Implementation of rights (article 4)

The State must do all it can to implement the rights contained in the Convention.

Parental guidance and the child's evolving capacities (article 5)

The State must respect the rights and responsibilities of parents and the extended family to provide guidance for the child which is appropriate to her or his evolving capacities.

Survival and development (article 6)

Every child has the inherent right to life, and the State has an obligation to ensure the child's survival and development.



Name and nationality (article 7)

The child has the right to a name at birth. The child has also the right to acquire a nationality and, as far as possible, to know his or her parents and be cared for by them.

Preservation of identity (article 8)

The State has an obligation to protect, and if necessary re-establish, basic aspects of the child's identity (including name, nationality and family ties).

Separation from parents (article 9)

The child has a right to live with his or her parents unless this is deemed incompatible with the child's best interests. The child also has the right to maintain contacts with both parents if separated from one or both.

Family reunification (article 10)

Children and their parents have the right to leave any country and to enter their own for purposes of reunion or the maintenance of the child-parent relationship.

Illicit transfer and non-return (article 11)

The State has an obligation to prevent and remedy the kidnapping or retention of children abroad by a parent or third party.

The child's opinion (article 12)

The child has the right to express his or her opinion freely and to have that opinion taken into account in any matter or procedure affecting the child.

Freedom of expression (article 13)

The child has the right to express his or her views, obtain information, make ideas or information known, regardless of frontiers.

Freedom of thought, conscience and religion (article 14)

The State shall respect the child's right to freedom of thought, conscience and religion, subject to appropriate parental guidance.

Freedom of association (article 15)

Children have a right to meet with others, and to join or form associations.

Protection of privacy (article 16)

Children have the right to protection from interference with their privacy, family, home and correspondence, and from libel or slander.

Access to appropriate information (article 17)

The State shall ensure that information and materials from a diversity of sources is accessible to children, and it shall encourage the mass media to disseminate information which is of social and cultural benefit to the child, and take steps to protect him of her from harmful materials.

Parental responsibilities (article 18)

Parents have the joint primary responsibility for raising the child, and the State shall support them in this. The State shall provide appropriate assistance to parents in child-raising.

Protection from abuse and neglect (article 19)

The State shall protect the child from all forms of maltreatment by parents or others responsible for the care of the child and establish appropriate social programmes for the prevention of abuse and the treatment of victims.



Protection of a child without family (article 20)

The State is obliged to provide special protection for a child deprived of a family environment and to ensure that appropriate alternative family care or institutional placement is available in such cases. Efforts to meet this obligation shall pay due regard to the child's cultural background.

Adoption (article 21)

In countries where adoption is recognized and/or allowed, it shall only be carried out in the best interests of the child, and then only with the authorization of competent authorities, and with safeguards for the child.

Refugee children (article 22)

Special protection shall be granted to a refugee child or to a child seeking refugee status. It is the State's obligation to co-operate with competent organizations which provide such protection and assistance.

Disabled children (article 23)

A disabled child has the right to special care, education and training to help him or her enjoy a full and decent life in dignity and achieve the greatest degree of self-reliance and social integration possible.

Health and health services (article 24)

The child has a right to the highest standard of health and medical care attainable. States shall place special emphasis on the provision of primary and preventive health care, public health education and the reduction of infant mortality. They shall encourage international co-operation in this regard and strive to see that no child is deprived of access to effective health services.

Periodic review of placement (article 25)

A child placed by the State for reasons of care, protection or treatment is entitled to have that placement evaluated regularly.

Social security (article 26)

The child has the right to benefit from social security including social insurance.

Standard of living (article 27)

Every child has the right to a standard of living adequate for his or her physical, mental, spiritual, moral and social development. Parents have the primary responsibility to ensure that this responsibility can be fulfilled, and is. State responsibility can include material assistance to parents and their children.

Education (article 28)

The child has a right to education, and the State's duty is to ensure that primary education is free and compulsory, to encourage different forms of secondary education accessible to every child and to make higher education available to all on the basis of capacity. School discipline shall be consistent with the child's rights and dignity. The State shall engage in international co-operation to implement this right.

Aims of education (article 29)

Education shall aim at developing the child's personality, talents and mental and physical abilities to the fullest extent. Education shall prepare the child for an active adult life in a free society and foster respect for the child's parents, his or her own cultural identity, language and values, and for the cultural background and values of others.



Children of minorities or indigenous populations (article 30)

Children of minority communities and indigenous populations have the right to enjoy their own culture and to practise their own religion and language.

Leisure, recreation and cultural activities (article 31)

The child has the right to leisure, play and participation in cultural and artistic activities.

Child labour (article 32)

The child has the right to be protected from work that threatens his or her health, education or development. The State shall set minimum ages for employment and regulate working conditions.

Drug abuse (article 33)

Children have the right to protection from the use of narcotic and psychotropic drugs, and from being involved in their production or distribution.

Sexual exploitation (article 34)

The State shall protect children from sexual exploitation and abuse, including prostitution and involvement in pornography.

Sale, trafficking and abduction (article 35)

It is the State's obligation to make every effort to prevent the sale, trafficking and abduction of children.

Other forms of exploitation (article 36)

The child has the right to protection from all forms of exploitation prejudicial to any aspects of the child's welfare not covered in articles 32, 33, 34 and 35.

Torture and deprivation of liberty (article 37)

No child shall be subjected to torture, cruel treatment or punishment, unlawful arrest or deprivation of liberty. Both capital punishment and life imprisonment without the possibility of release are prohibited for offences committed by persons below 18 years. A child who is detained shall have legal and other assistance as well as contact with his or her family.

Armed conflicts (article 38)

State Parties shall take all feasible measures to ensure that children under 15 play no direct part in hostilities. No child below 15 shall be recruited into the armed forces. States shall also ensure the protection and care of children affected by armed conflict as described in relevant international law.

Rehabilitative care (article 39)

The State has an obligation to ensure that child victims of armed conflicts, torture, neglect, maltreatment or exploitation receive appropriate treatment for their recovery and social reintegration.

Administration of juvenile justice (article 40)

A child in conflict with the law has the right to treatment which promotes the child's sense of dignity and worth, takes the child's age into account and aims at his or her reintegration into society. The child is entitled to basic guarantees as well as legal or other assistance for his or her defence.

Respect for higher standards (article 41)

Wherever standards set in applicable national and international law relevant to the rights of the child are higher than those in the Convention, the higher standards shall always apply.



Implementation and entry into force (articles 42 to 54)

The provisions of these articles notably foresee:

- the State's obligation to make the rights contained in the Convention widely known to both adults and children.
- the setting up of a Committee on the Rights of the Child composed of ten experts, which will consider reports that State Parties to the Convention are to submit two years after ratification and every five years thereafter.
- States Parties are to make their reports widely available to the general public.
- The Committee may propose that special studies be undertaken on specific issues relating to the rights of the child, and may make its evaluations known to each State Party concerned as well as to the UN General Assembly.
- To foster the effective implementation of the Convention and to encourage international cooperation, the specialized agencies of the United Nations will be able to attend the meetings of the Committee. Together with any other body recognized as "competent", including NGOs in consultative status with UN agencies, they can submit pertinent information to the Committee and be asked to advise on the optimal implementation of the Convention.



Statistical tables: explanatory note

The data in these tables gives an overview of the basic social and economic statistics available by country, which directly concern the 0-5 age group and their families.

The Young Child

The status of young children is reported in terms of the under-five mortality rate and the percentage who are malnourished. Under-five mortality not only indicates the probability of a child surviving to the age of five, but also more generally reflects the risk of survivors falling ill. The percentage of malnourished children reflects the level of malnutrition, which both slows physical growth and retards the psycho-social development of the child. It also reflects the health and nutritional situations of all members of the population.

Children under 5: Total number of children, both boys and girls, who have not reached their fifth birthday. (Source: UNICEF)

Under-5 mortality rate: Number of deaths of children under five years of age per 1000 live births. (Source: UNICEF)

Malnourished children under 5: Percentage of children, under the age of five, below minus two standard deviations from median weight for age of the reference population. (Source: UNDP / World Bank)

The Family

The family's impact on a young child is illustrated in terms of total fertility, and male and female literacy rates. High fertility generally reflects closely spaced births, which in the context of low income, leads to the exhaustion of mothers and the division of their limited time and resources among many children. Female literacy has a major bearing not only on psychosocial development, but also on the provision of appropriate health and nutrition support to the young child. The educational level of mothers has been linked significantly with falling fertility rates, decreasing infant and maternal mortality, enhanced levels of infant and child development, and improved social outcomes for children. Obviously, the impact of the family on the child is not in any way confined to these variables.

Literacy rate: Percentage of the male and female population aged 15 and over who can read and write. (Source: UNESCO)

Total fertility rate: Number of children who would be born per woman, if she were to live to the end of her child-bearing years, conforming to the existing fertility pattern of the country. (Source: UNICEF)



The Community

Access to health care services and safe water, and Gross National Product (GNP) generally indicate the community support available. Health services provide direct support for the young child, such as vaccinations and medicine, as well as support and advice for the family. Safe, clean water supplies for drinking, cooking and bathing help prevent the spread of diseases. GNP is a broad measure of the economic situation of a country and reflects the likely existence of community infrastructures including schools and roads, and its capacity to finance early childhood programmes.

GNP per capita US\$ 1992: The gross national product estimated at current market prices in US dollars. (Source: World Bank)

Access to health care services: Percentage of the population that can reach appropriate local health care within one hour's walk or travel. (Source: UNICEF)

Access to safe water: Percentage of the population with reasonable access to safe water supply. (Source: UNICEF)

Pre-Primary Education

The 1990 Jomtien World Conference on Education for All strongly advocated that all countries set targets for the 1990s in terms of the learning achievements of children. Measures of enrolment in pre-primary education are used as interim indicators of learning achievement and preparedness for primary schooling. Pre-primary education programmes are intended to introduce young children to a school-like environment. They are concerned with the social, mental and physical development of young children, and often include activities designed to prepare children for the learning of reading, writing and mathematics. Research has shown that children who have experienced pre-primary programmes are more likely than other children to remain in primary school and achieve good results.

Age-group enrolled: Population age-group that according to the national regulations can be enrolled in pre-primary education. (Source: UNESCO)

Pre-primary gross enrolment ratio: Total enrolment in pre-primary education, regardless of age, expressed as a percentage of the population age-group corresponding to the national regulations for this level. (Source: UNESCO)

Convention on the Rights of the Child

The ratification of the Convention on the Rights of the Child provides an indication of the efforts undertaken by countries to implement the Convention and to provide better services and environments for children. Once ratified, the articles of the Convention become of a binding nature and governments have to submit within two years a report on the measures taken to impliment the Convention. The ratification offers a legal instrument and means to individuals, journalists and NGOs to remind decision makers of the commitments they made.

Symbols

The following symbols are used in the tables:

.. a/ b/ Data not available Data refers to 1991 Data refers to 1991



The Directory of Early Childhood Care and Education Organizations in the Arab States describes 64 non-governmental and governmental organizations, based in 12 Arab countries, involved in early childhood care and education. It contains both analytical and descriptive sections. Articles give an overview of the situation of children and their families in the Arab States and offer an insight into early childhood care and education efforts and strategies in the region. The organization profiles describe the major activities within the Young Child. Family and Community programmes of the organizations. Pertinent data on agencies and organizations involved in the Arab States and on various information sources on childhood issues is also provided. Finally, indexes are included to facilitate information retrieval.

The Directory aims to encourage and facilitate communication and information sharing between institutions and individuals active in improving the situation of children worldwide. Through its publication, UNESCO offers a creative solution to the problem of information exchange on childhood issues, and gives a just insight into the national, regional and international contributions to early childhood activities in the Arab States.

Balance - Probably Balance Balance - Post Carlo Control Control

DIRECTORY OF EARLY CHILDHOOD CARE AND EDUCATION ORGANIZATIONS IN THE ARAB STATES

EVALUATION FORM AND QUESTIONNAIRE

To help improve the next edition of the Directory, please complete the evaluation form and questionnaire inside and return them to the address below. Please photocopy if extra forms are needed for several users.

> YCFE DATA BASE PROJECT **UNESCO**

ED/BAS/YCF

7 place de Fontenoy

75352 Paris 07 SP, FRANCE



EVALUATION FORM

Name and Title:
Organization:
Address:
For what purpose did you use the Directory?
Which parts of the Directory did you find useful? Please note using numbers 1 to 3 (1 = very useful, 2 = useful, 3 = not useful)
[] Profiles: general information about the organization
[] Profiles: information about the organization's major programmes
[] Profiles: information about the organization's services and information activities
[] Information lists and bibliographies
[] Indexes
How easy are the Indexes to use? Please circle one: Very easy / Satisfactory / Difficult
How clear are the instructions on using the Directory? Please circle one: Very clear / Satisfactory / Unclear
Within the profiles, what additional information would you like to see included in future editions?
Please list names and addresses of any other organizations involved in early childhood care development and education activities you think should be approached for inclusion in future editions. Use a seperate sheet if necessary.
Additional comments:



QUESTIONNAIRE

THE YOUNG CHILD AND THE FAMILY ENVIRONMENT DATABASE PROJECT

Please provide the following information about the organization and return to: YCFE DATABASE PROJECT, ED\BAS\YCF, UNESCO, 7 Place de Fontenoy, 75352 Paris 07 SP France.

1. NAME AND ACRONYM OF THE ORGAN	HZATION:
Translation in English or French:	
2. ADDRESS:	
Country: Telephone: Cable: E-mail:	Telen: Fax:
3. CONTACT PERSON (name and title):	
4. YEAR OF ESTABLISHMENT:	
5. NUMBER OF STAFF: Salaried	Non-salaried
6. PRESENT ANNUAL BUDGET: in US\$	
7. MAIN SOURCES OF FUNDING OF THE national government foreign aid programmes intergovernmental agencies NGOs religious organizations financial institutions fundraising	ORGANIZATION (mark all appropriate categories): foundations private donations industry publications membership fees consulting fees others
8. ORGANIZATIONS PROVIDING FUNDS	(names and addresses, use a separate sheet if necessary)
9. MAJOR AIMS OF THE ORGANIZATION	N: (in English or French)



140

10. WORKING LANGUAGE(S) OF THE ORGANIZATION:

11. ACTIVITIES OF THE ORGANIZATION: (mark all appropriate categories)

In your country In other countries

	J J		
Research:	basic research applied research data collection/surveys development of models/methods/materials		
Training:	training of professionals training of paraprofessionals training of trainers training of caregivers training of parents training of students		
Policy:	policy development policy advocacy policy monitoring policy implementation		
Programmes/Projects:	programme/project design programme/project implementation programme/project evaluation programme/project funding		
Services:	development of services provision of services]]
Publications/Materials:	publications/materials design publications/materials preparation publications/materials distribution publications/materials evaluation		
Networking:	institution building/support information exchange project funding/cofinancing meetings/workshops		
Grant-making:	% of annual budget	[]	

12. INNOVATIONS/SUCCESSFUL INITIATIVES IN PARENT EDUCATION OR HOME-BASED

ACTIVITIES: (briefly describe an innovative project/activity of the organisation to help parents improve their knowledge and child care practices, or for children based in the homes. Example: a training kit for parents to prepare their children for active learning in preschool)



13. YOUNG CHILD PROGRAMMES: (mark all appropriate categories)

FOCUS OF ACTIONS:

Child Health & Development:	[] emotional development [] physical development [] childhood diseases/growth [] health care [] early childhood development [] mental health [] oral rehydration	[] social development [] intellectual/language development [] childhood disabilities [] immunization [] early intervention [] AIDS [] infant nutrition/feeding programmes	
Child Care & Education:	[] home-based programmes [] forma! childcare centres [] infant care [] disabled children [] preschool education [] multiculturalism [] child safety	[] non-formal centre-based programmes [] recreational facilities [] institutionalized children [] rehabilitation [] special education [] foster care [] child adoption/sponsorship	
Children At Risk:	[] developmental difficulties [] emotional difficulties [] child abuse/neglect [] child labour [] street children [] children with AIDS [] children with special needs	[] behavioural difficulties [] learning difficulties [] child pornography [] child prostitution [] refugee children [] orphans [] children of war/conflict	
Child Advocacy:	[] child protection [] children's rights	[] child legislation [] UN Convention on the Child	
ΓΥΡΕ OF ACTIONS:	In your country	In other countries	
Integrated Programming Child-to-Child program Research Training Policy Programmes/Projects Services Information activities Publications/Materials Networking Grant-making			
TARGET OF ACTION	S: [] 0-1 year infant [] 4-6 years child [] child in urban setting [] boys [] parents [] professionals [] nolicymakers	2-3 years child child in rural setting child in multicultural setting girls siblings paraprofessionals	



FOCUS OF ACTIONS: Family Health [] primary health care & Welfare: mother and infant welfare family planning teenage pregnancy f amily services household food security family guidance health centres family support groups AIDS/transmitable diseases Family Education child-rearing practices parent/caregiver education & Awareness: parent/child interaction, stimulation father's role nutrition education health education parent-to-be responsible parenthood [] literacy weaning practices] refugees Families At Risk: 1 minorities teenage parents single-parent families] poor families [] migrants parents with disabilities/AIDS [] unemployed [] family protection [] family legislation Family Advocacy: health protection [] human rights TYPE OF ACTIONS: In your country In other countries Parent-to-Parent programmes Research **Training** Policy Programmes/Projects Services Information activities Publications/Materials Networking Grant-making family in urban setting TARGET OF ACTIONS: I family in rural setting family in multicultural setting working parents



] illiterate

professionals

[] policymakers

] men

parents of children with disabilities

] siblings] literate

women

[] community

paraprofessionals

FOCUS OF ACTIONS:		
Community Welfare & Involvement:	[] social services [] health services [] social welfare [] voluntary services [] workplace childcare [] community-based preschool/care	[] traditional support systems [] family welfare centres [] home visits [] youth programmes [] formal preschool/care [] parent-based preschool/care
Community Development & Awareness:	[] sociocultural environment [] physical upgrading [] water and environmental sanitation [] infrastructure development [] awareness raising	[] socioeconomic environment [] community health [] social mobilization [] skills training [] social marketing
Community Livelihood:	[] small enterprise development [] human resource development [] women's programmes [] rural development	[] credit systems, savings [] leadership training [] income-generation activities [] environmental protection
Community Advocacy:	[] health policy [] population policy [] child protection	[] family legislation [] children's rights [] human rights
TYPE OF ACTIONS:	In your country In oth	her countries
Integrated Community Programmer Parent/Community programmer Research Training Policy Programmes/Projects Services Information activities Publications/Materials Networking Grant-making	rammes [] mes [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [
TARGET OF ACTIONS:	[] rural communities [] multicultural communities [] minorities [] children [] parents [] professionals [] policymakers	[] urban communities [] refugees [] poor communities [] youth [] families [] paraprofessionals [] community leaders



16. SERVICES & INFORMATION ACTIVITIES (mark all appropriate categories)

Services:	[] advisory and support solutions [] counselling/guidance [] documentation/inform [] research/consultancy solutions [] outreach programmes [] radio/television/media [] hotline, help/support solutions	services lation services services /extension work a programmes	 [] legal services [] care services [] university courses/programmes [] provision of equipment/supplies [] technical services [] information campaigns [] others
Information Acti		ur country	In other countries
awareness r documentat library audio-visua publication conferences training/wo	s service s/seminars		
Membership in (on-line databases: (specif	y name(s) and prod	lucer organization(s))
Materials:	[] audio-visual aids (film [] toys/recreational mate		sters) [] teaching aids/kits [] others
Publications:	[] instructional guides/n [] organization's activiti [] issue-oriented docum [] reference documents	es reports ents/dossiers	[] textbooks/publications [] periodicals/journals [] research/conference reports graphies)
Periodicals/Jour	nals: (if relevant, indicate	titles and periodic	ity)
INFORMATION S	SOURCES: (mark all app	propriate categories	·)
[] na [] gr [] tr [] so [] re [] yr [] fo	ational/local NGOs overnmental agencies aining organizations chools/universities eligious organizations ommunity groups outh groups oundations CTORIES/DATABASES	IN WHICH THE	GETS INFORMATION FOR ITS WORK [] international NGOs [] UN agencies [] research institutes [] hospitals/medical centres [] professional associations [] women's groups [] parents' groups [] others ORGANIZATION IS REGISTERED:
Edit	name of directory/databas or/compiler: ress:	se:	

ERIC

Full Text Provided by ERIC

17.

18. CO-OPERATION/PARTNERSHIP (mark all appropriate categories):

MEMBERSHIP IN NETWORKS: (specify name and country of headquarters)

AFFILIATES/MEMBERS:	local branches/offices: member organizations:	[]yes []yes []yes the names & ad	Number: Number: Number: ddresses of member organizations
PARTNERS/INSTITUTION [] national/local N [] governmental a [] training organi [] schools/univers [] religious organ [] community gro [] foundations [] women's groups	NGOs agencies zations sities izations oups	[] inter [] UN [] resea [] hosp [] prof [] trada [] coop	national NGOs agencies arch institutes oitals/medical centres essional associations e unions oeratives h groups
COMMUNITIES REACHED [] rural areas and [] towns and sma [] capital or large	villages Il cities	TION'S ACT [] slun [] subu [] othe	ns nrbs

COUNTRIES IN WHICH THE ORGANIZATION IS ACTIVE: (specify)

In returning this Questionnaire, please enclose a brochure on your organization and any further information on the following:

- 1. The names and addresses of major partner bodies and clients.
- 2. If relevant, the titles of the most important publications and documents published since 1992 by the organization on early childhood issues, along with a short description for each title.
- 3. The names and addresses of other important organizations involved in early childhood care and education activities, which in your opinion should be contacted.
- 4. Any other data that you may wish us to make known about your organization's activities.

Thank you for your co-operation.



SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTIONS

Questions 19, 20 and 21 are for analytical purposes <u>only</u>. The responses to these questions <u>will not appear</u> in the publication.

19. In the following list of major obstacles frequently met when implementing early childhood care and education activities, please mark the five you feel are the greatest obstacles to activity implementation.

|] bureaucracy
| cultural and social differences
| language differences
| lack of funds
| target group's lack of interest
| target group's reluctance to accept innovation
| lack of staff
| lack of contacts in other organizations and with information sources
| lack of technical support
| political instability in the country or region of activity
| attitudes of local, national and regional leaders
| differences of opinion about early childhood care and education
| other obstacle: (specify)

20. In the following list of elements that make up successful early childhood care and education programmes. please mark the five you feel are essential in a good programme.

| take a multifaceted view of child development | respect and adjust to different sociocultural contexts | look toward approaches and models that are financially feasible and cost effective | try to reach the largest possible number of children and families in difficult conditions | encourage parent and community involvement in the planning, management and evaluation of programmes | act as a catalyst and coordinator for parent, 'amily and community programmes | allow all parents to learn more about the needs of young children, how they develop and how they learn | allow children to learn to be creative, cooperate, solve problems, share, socialize, play and grow | provide full-day education and care services for children | offer part-time playgroups for children, with or without their parents | provide contact with various social and health services | organize feeding schemes when necessary | offer opportunities for community members to acquire skills in preschool administration and management | other: (specify)

21. In the following list of partners and actors in early childhood care and education actions, please mark the five most successful in undertaking such activities in your country.

l national/local NGOs international NGOs governmental agencies | UN agencies I training organizations research institutes l schools/universities | hospitals/medical centres religious organizations professional associations | community groups I trade unions 1 foundations women's groups | youth groups parents' groups | others: (specify)

